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Financial Highlights
VR BBRE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of C-MER
Eye Care Holdings Limited (the “Company”) announces the
annual consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022,
together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31
December 2021.

FHRNMEBEZERARAR ((XAT])E
=(BEE)g((ESg)EMARAIRE
WEBAE (REIARER]) 8 E2022F12
AMBLEFENEFRAREE BEREE
2021 F 12 A3 BIEFEMHLEEHF -

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BEREE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12 A31 HLELEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Revenue g %5 1,731,903 1,112,577 55.7%
Gross profit EA 447,697 358,228 25.0%
(Loss)/profit before income tax B P15 84 Al
(BB, /F8 (11,227) 26,875 N/AA i
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EER) FE (46,225) 16,230 N/A 7R i FA
(Loss)/profit for the year RAFERTE
attributable to equity holders of A FE1f F
the Company (E518) /FIH (21,875) 21,861 N/A 7R i A
Earnings before interest, taxes, ~ BRF8 ~ BLIE ~ #T
depreciation and amortisation B K B #5 B d 2% 7 225,351 183,976 22.5%
Gross profit margin (%) EHE (%) 25.9% 32.2% (6.3 ppfEE D E)
Net profit margin (%) A R (%) N/ATER 1.5% N/A T iE
Note: Yoz
1 This is not a measure of performance under Hong Kong 1 ZEBUWHEAMBERESER((EBUE

BEER]) TREXRROER  HEEFE
BREEAEEZEMNEZERRAEBR
B ARV EEMAR 2N ELE
FEIRELLE -

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), but is widely used by
management for monitoring business performance of a company
from operational perspective. It may not be comparable to similar
measures presented by other companies.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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A YEAR TO SET SAIL FOR NEW CHAPTER

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present to our shareholders of
the Company the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

2022 marked an important milestone for the 10th anniversary of
the Group. During the year, the Group continued its success with
two remarkable achievements despite the lingering impact of
the coronavirus pandemic (“COVID-19"). First of all, the Group’s
core medical service maintained steady growth and its revenue
hit a record high, exemplifying the remarkable performance in
the Group’s development in its first decade. The Group’s effort in
developing the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area
(the "GBA") is fruitful. Following the completion of the acquisition
of Shenzhen C-MER Aikangjian Dental Group Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Shenzhen Aikangjian Group Co., Ltd.) (“Shenzhen
CKJ") during the year, the Group has become one of the largest
and most influential private medical groups in Shenzhen. With the
full resumption of cross-border travel between Mainland China
and Hong Kong in early 2023, the Group will seize the opportunity
of the strong recovery of the consumer medical market in the
post-pandemic period and embark on the next golden decade.

ACCELERATING THE DEVELOPMENT OF
OPHTHALMIC AND DENTAL ECOSYSTEMS IN THE
GREATER BAY AREA

In 2022, the Group accelerated the development of ophthalmic
services in the GBA. For the ophthalmic business in Hong Kong,
we added three new eye centres and five optometry centres
during the year through mergers and acquisitions and organic
growth. With the fifth wave of the pandemic gradually subsiding
in the early part of the year, the ophthalmic business in Hong
Kong saw a rapid rebound in the second half of the year,
delivering a satisfactory performance and further strengthening its
leading position in the local ophthalmology market.

Despite the severe impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
ophthalmic business in Mainland China, the expansion of the
Group’s ophthalmology network in the Mainland was not
disrupted. With the opening of Guangzhou C-MER Dennis Lam
Eye Hospital and Jieyang C-MER Dennis Lam Eye Hospital in
April and August 2022, respectively, the number of the Group’s
ophthalmic hospitals in operation has increased to nine, covering
five key cities in the GBA. The preliminary preparation work for
the Foshan Eye Hospital has largely been completed and it is
expected to commence service within this year, which will increase
our number of hospitals locations in the GBA to six.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

ERBNHETRN—F

AANEBEREREFEMAMARABREIRE
REEHZ 2022512 A31 BILFEHFR -

2022 FREFEABIOAFHNEEZBREMR -
FEEAEMEN—F BE@HFIEER
%5 ([COVID-19 ) BIEMHBEFE - A%
ERFREGTRIBHETENXH &L -
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Bl T asEsm  AAEEE —E10F8E
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Chairman’s Statement
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In 2022, some of our hospitals and clinics in Mainland China
were temporarily closed down due to the effect of the pandemic,
with hospitals in Shanghai, Beijing and Shenzhen being
particularly affected, which inevitably had a negative impact on
the ophthalmic business in Mainland China. The business and
operation of hospital and clinic operations in various regions
gradually resumed to normal in 2023 following the gradual
relaxation and lifting of the pandemic prevention measures
since the end of last year. Benefiting from the strong rebound in
economy and consumption in Mainland China, the number of
outpatient visits and surgeries has continued to improve this year.

As Hong Kong’s largest and one of the GBA’s leading domestic
ophthalmic medical institutions from the Special Administrative
Region, our rapid development in the region has been strongly
supported by local governments’ policies and it promotes the
integration of Hong Kong-style quality healthcare into the GBA.
For example, under the unique policy of «The Measure of Allowing
Designated Healthcare Institutions Operating in the GBA to Use
Drugs and Medical Devices That Are Registered And Being Used
in Hong Kong And Macau But Are Not Yet Registered by National
Medical Products Administration» (the “Measure”), we are able
to introduce innovative drugs that have been clinically used in
Hong Kong and Macau but are not yet approved by the National
Medical Products Administration, so as to provide more innovative
treatment options for the benefit of more patients in need. | am
pleased to inform our shareholders that, following Zhuhai C-MER
Dennis Lam Eye Hospital becoming the first eye hospital under the
Measure in 2021, both Shenzhen Futian C-MER Dennis Lam Eye
Hospital and Guangzhou C-MER Dennis Lam Eye Hospital have
been included into the list of second batch of designated medical
institutions in February 2023, and our Group has since become
the institution with most designated hospitals under the Measure.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2022 4 - T A2 A B8 A R B D B8 B A
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

ONE OF THE LARGEST PRIVATE MEDICAL GROUPS
IN SHENZHEN

Shenzhen is the core area of development for the Group to access
the Mainland China’s and GBA’s markets. In 2022, with the
completion of the acquisition of Shenzhen CKJ, one of the largest
dental service groups in Shenzhen, the Group has officially entered
the dental market in Shenzhen. With this, C-MER has been
focusing on the “eye + dental” bi-specialty services and vigorously
developing the hugely promising healthcare market of Shenzhen.
At present, the Group has a total of three hospitals and 13
outpatient clinics in Shenzhen and has become one of the largest
private medical service groups in the Special Economic Zone. The
leading position and influence of the Group in Shenzhen will
enable us to further develop the highly attractive and fast-growing
consumer healthcare market in Shenzhen.

With the full resumption of cross-border travel between Mainland
China and Hong Kong earlier this year, Shenzhen’s dental business
recovered significantly and returned to the pre-pandemic level,
showing a stable and positive growth momentum. The Group
has become one of the few companies to benefit from the rapid
growth of both ophthalmic and dental consumer healthcare
services in the post-pandemic period. At present, approximately
91% of our revenue from medical services in Shenzhen and
other parts of Mainland China is derived from privately-paid
medical services, and the proportion of revenue derived from
consumer eye services has also reached 72% of our Mainland
China ophthalmic business. As we continued to advance our
development in the GBA during the pandemic, the Group is now
well positioned to capture the upcoming opportunities of the fast-
growing consumer healthcare market in Shenzhen.

RIBAREBERE 2 —

IR & [ F A B A R [ Y AR 0
BRES 2022F F £SEEAYERIIE
F-RRANTRREEEERRE  EX
EANRYNTEITG - FIBA TR+ T HE
ERRBIERER  RNERENEEN
FYBETS SBRERLRNBEESR
IHERRI3KFZ - ER BRI &AKH
ReEBEEEH ,— BESETFRIINE
EMANNEEN  BEDRMERDEE
AU AR AR e RERAEE T EE
i o

SENAEEEEZMBARK RO RE
EBMERERR  CEESRIBATHKF -
EERPAFEE - KEKRAREKEHD
HRABZENRBMAOREEERSRE
RHERA] - 9% R Y1 F 79 3 H b 3t
EAOEERRGEARES A EBERS H
EERMRBWALL AT EAREEIRE S
B A R B BR S 10 72% < BE R 1B B 4
BHEAXERMGD KSEREREBNLE -
BERFKRIDEBLBET S & RE RN
P o
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a
total revenue of HK$1,731.9 million, representing an increase of
55.7% as compared with HK$1,112.6 million in 2021.

Driven by the increasing demand for high-quality medical services,
coupled with the long-established brand recognition of the Group,
our revenue from our core medical business reached a record high,
up 28.9% year-on-year to HK$1,433.6 million. The ophthalmic
business (comprising of provision of ophthalmic services and sales
of vision aid products) grew steadily, with revenue up 16.5%
year-on-year to HK$1,235.3 million, accounting for 86.2% of the
revenue from our core medical business. The ophthalmic business
in Hong Kong delivered satisfactory performance despite the
pandemic, with revenue reaching HK$732.3 million, up 48.9%
year-on-year.

With regard to Mainland China operations, for the year ended
31 December 2022, revenue increased by 10.4% year-on-year to
HK$627.9 million. Of which, revenue from ophthalmic business
amounted to HK$502.9 million and revenue from the new dental
services amounted to HK$125.0 million. Although the revenue
of some hospitals and clinics in Mainland China were affected by
the pandemic, revenue from the Zhuhai Eye Hospital increased
by 49.5% during the year, and revenue from the Huizhou Eye
Hospital, which was fully operational in March 2021, increased
significantly by 103.1% year-on-year.

Despite the challenges faced by the Group during the pandemic,
the Group has swiftly responded to the demand for pandemic
prevention and control, and fully grasped the market opportunities
of medical consumables in Hong Kong. In 2022, the distribution
of medical consumables business recorded a revenue of HK$298.3
million, which has offset the negative impact to a certain extent.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

B EE
REE2022F12A31BLFE @ %

U R EEEA1,731. 9B BB T » 82021 4F
EM11126BEETER T7557% °

HEHEEEEREABEANER
FEBEEVEANREBANRE  TEAE
EzLBEEBRSAELT S BT
F289% E1,433.6 AEE L - REIEK (B
FRREREREIEERNHYHER) BD
BE - WFERLELIER165% £ 1,235.38 8
BIL L BEEBWALS2% c BE
REEBERB N NEERERE  WEE
7323B&EBT AL K48.9% ©

W RS E - REE2022912A31H
EFE  WEREERI104%E6279HE
BT o BPRREBRAARSRIBESET
IR RREWAB A 1250 8B T -
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TEE WERNWSREMERMKEER
495% 2021 F3 8 2EEENEMEBE
Bt - WEFIRFRIEIEIN103.1% ©
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C-MER HEADING INTO A NEW DECADE WITH ITS
HEAD HIGH

Looking ahead to 2023, which marks the 5th anniversary of
our listing, C-MER will implement a “ Bi-specialty-driven ([ & =
Rl o #EHEF) )" growth strategy, with ophthalmic services as
its core, providing “eye + dental” bi-specialty medical services
and developing towards upstream ophthalmic products to drive
greater business growth.

With the full resumption of cross-border travel between Mainland
China and Hong Kong, the Group is off to a good start, foretelling
the next golden decade for our Group. The integration of medical
services between Hong Kong and Shenzhen will be a long-term
trend. With the goal of focusing on the GBA and radiating our
network to the whole country, as well as bringing a broader scope
for development, the Group will embark on a new expedition for
the next decade.

Lastly, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to the Board of Directors, all customers and shareholders
for their long-term support to the Group over the past decade
and to all doctors, the management team and all staff for
their unremitting efforts in helping the Group to overcome the
difficulties arising from the COVID-19 pandemic and to grasp the
opportunity of the recovery of the consumer medical market. | am
confident that in the next golden decade, the Group will turn a
new page of prosperity!

Chairman
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis /P
31 March 2023, Hong Kong

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis
VEEERRE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview and business development and prospect

As the pandemic struck again in Mainland China in the second

half of 2022, with the highly transmissible Omicron variant
ravaging many regions, especially in first and second-tier cities

where our eye hospitals were located, the Group faced short-
term challenges in Mainland China during the second half of

2022 as the market conditions deteriorated. However, the
Group maintained its growth momentum and continued with

the plan to expand our service network in the Guangdong-Hong

Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area (the "GBA") (7 8 K /& &)
and other Mainland China regions. Despite the challenges, our
diversified portfolio of businesses remained resilient. Leveraging
on our strong reputation in providing quality medical services,
our revenue increased by 55.7%, reaching HK$1,731.9 million,
and our core medical service revenue (comprising of provision of
ophthalmic services, sales of vision aid products and provision of
dental and other medical services) increased by 28.9%, reaching
HK$1,433.6 million, for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Benefiting from the rebound in economic activities in Mainland
China in the first quarter of 2023, the Group recorded a very

strong revenue growth, laying a solid foundation of business

development for our medical businesses for the current financial

year. Furthermore, the easing of COVID-19 rules and restrictive

border control measures between Mainland China and Hong
Kong is expected to have an immediate positive impact on our
newly acquired dental business in Shenzhen which, based on the
latest preliminary operational data in 2023, suggested that its
business level has already returned to the pre-pandemic level.

e JE)
BEREXERRRAS

MR BEAME2022F THEEFRTIE
EEE  SEEMAOmiconEBHESES
HWEE LERKRMBRBERMEN— -
TR REBR2022F NEFELEFREH
At BB 2 TR B A8 SR T T RS S HA PR o
R AEBHEIFIEREBE  WEBHNT
BMEESRRNEE ([KEE]) RFRHEA
o E A T RS S AT S - EEE
HET  BRMZTEHEBESDARIME -
BERMTREEEEEERS A EHEE
HE2022F12A831HIEFEE - AR
FHHEANS5.7% E1,731.98EB T ML
BEREMKE (BIERERBIRG - $5E
RO E R RREETIRI REMEERS)
INER289% £ 1,433.6 B&EB T °

EERTEAMGEEBHE2023FE—F
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DT

Development in Hong Kong

Although the COVID-19 situation remained precarious, during
the year ended 31 December 2022, we were committed to
maintaining proactive business development. This was achieved in
part by the Group expanding our service portfolio by leveraging
our expertise in quality medical management and the recognition
of our brand and our capabilities from our patients. In 2021, we
started our business in dental, optometry, oncology, and medical
aesthetics in Hong Kong. In 2022, we continued to expand our
business scope in these areas.

In January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the equity interests
in Champion Eye Centre Limited (“Champion Eye”) (5 & iR %!
LB BR A A, which has over 20 years of history and operates
two clinics in Jordan and Causeway Bay in Hong Kong. This
increased the Group's market share, expanded our medical team
and further solidified the leadership position of the Group in the
ophthalmology sector in Hong Kong.

To expand our services offering in the area of myopia control,
optometry assessments and spectacles and contact lens
prescriptions in Hong Kong, we have acquired 60% of the
equity interest in The Optometry (OPT) Centre Limited (“OPT"),
an optometry group with centres located in Sai Wan, North
Point, Mong Kok, and Tseung Kwan O, and completion of the
acquisition took place in January 2022. This complemented the
Group’s existing business, created patient traffic from these
optometry centres to the Group’s ophthalmology clinic network,
and further expanded the Group’s service network to additional
locations in Hong Kong. In October 2022, a new optometry centre
was opened in Diamond Hill. It is expected that OPT will further
expand into different locations in Hong Kong to expand our
customer base.

For our dental business in Hong Kong, we started to provide our
services in Causeway Bay, Tsim Sha Tsui, Diamond Hill and Shatin
in 2021, and we expanded our service locations to Central, Kwun
Tong, and Wan Chai in 2022.

EREEBNER

REBE2022F12A3MBIEFERNBEE
COVID-19Z BINATIEBE  HERMB IR
BREMERER - BSULEBSKAKE
HoRAEEFNARMEEEEEERR
T F) 25 35 S0 38 DA I 28 2 39 3R P O o B RN
NERA - MBRREES - 712021 F -
BMFAREESSEETR - RENEX &
BRI REBEERER - R202290  H M
BUEZZHERERARMNERSGE -

R2022F 1A AEBWEZZEREB AL
ERAR(ZERM]) MR E  ZA
RIEABB0FMNESL  EEBER LI
WL EMELT - LR EAEEE NE
MEHE BEREEEERRE—FTEE
AEEBEEBRBYTENEEHA

ABREANESSRENTRIES - REHEK
FEARRERERRERSRSE - M
BB RABERLERAF (18X
ERER A N]) M60% K - HA—MIRER
HEE RAR-tA HEARBERRK
B ZUWE R 2022F 1 A AR o it £
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Further, we started our clinical research business in July 2022,
which may bring us opportunities for collaboration with different
biotech companies for, among other things, research and clinical
work. We expanded our general practice clinic network to Tai Wai
and Olympic (Tai Kok Tsui) in Hong Kong in April 2022 and July
2022 respectively.

In addition, the Group has been a distributor of COVID-19 related
medical consumables in Hong Kong since February 2022. In view
of the severe outbreak of the fifth wave of COVID-19 pandemic in
Hong Kong in the first quarter of 2022, the revenue from the sales
of COVID-19 related medical consumables amounted to HK$298.3
million during the year ended 31 December 2022, which partly
neutralised the adverse impact on the Group’s medical business
arising from the restrictive pandemic control measures that were
put in place to limit the spread of COVID-19.

Development in Mainland China

Our ophthalmic service network in Mainland China mainly
included nine eye hospitals, namely Futian (Shenzhen), Baoan
(Shenzhen), Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Huizhou,
Kunming, Jieyang and two eye centres in Fuzhou and Nanshan
(Shenzhen), of which six of them are located in the GBA.

We experienced substantial development in Mainland China with
the setting up of eye clinics, centres and hospitals during the year
ended 31 December 2022. Our ninth and tenth eye hospital/
centre are located in Guangzhou (E M) and Jieyang (¥&[5) of
Guangdong Province (&5 %), which commenced operations in
April 2022 (with an area of about 5,400 square meters with four
operating theatres and twelve consultation rooms), and in August
2022 (with an area of about 5,500 square meters with three
operating theatres and three consultation rooms), respectively.
Furthermore, our eye clinic in Nanshan, Shenzhen commenced
operations in June 2022. This further strengthened our service
network in Shenzhen and the rest of the GBA.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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In addition, the Group is in the progress of setting up an eye
hospital in Foshan (f#1L1) of Guangdong Province ([ %) and it
is expected that the eye hospital will commence operations in the
second half of 2023.

Our hospitals in Zhuhai, Shenzhen (Futian) and Guangzhou are
designated hospitals under «The Measure of Allowing Designated
Healthcare Institutions Operating in the GBA to Use Drugs and
Medical Devices That Are Registered And Being Used in Hong
Kong And Macau But Are Not Yet Registered by National Medical
Products Administration» (78 2 % 4% 3@ ). With the supportive
measures and our medical experiences in Hong Kong, the Group
is expected to be at a better position to serve the patients in the
GBA giving patients who receive treatment from us in the GBA
faster access to innovative and effective treatments.

In February 2022, we completed our acquisition of 61.5% equity
interest of Shenzhen C-MER Aikangjian Dental Group Co.,
Ltd. (formerly known as Shenzhen Aikangjian Group Co., Ltd.)
(“Shenzhen CKJ") which became a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Shenzhen CKJ is a leading and reputable dental
clinic chain in Shenzhen and the GBA with 26 years of history
and a sizeable service network. Acquisition of Shenzhen CKJ not
only allowed us to have an immediate and sizeable presence in
the growing dental market in Shenzhen and the GBA, it also
significantly enhanced our network and influence in the area.
Together with Shenzhen CKJ, we have become one of the largest
private medical service groups in Shenzhen with three hospitals
(two eye hospitals and a dental hospital), an eye centre and 12
dental clinics. We believe that we are well-positioned to continue
to expand in and exploit the sizeable and growing healthcare
market in Shenzhen. Since the easing of COVID-19 rules and
restrictive border measures between Mainland China and Hong
Kong in February 2023, we have observed an immediate positive
impact on our dental business in Shenzhen which, based on
the most recent preliminary operations data, soared to the
pre-pandemic level in the first quarter of 2023.

AN - AR E EE ER A GRS AR B BB -
TRHABR LB B A 70 2023 FF T F R E o

B RIRE R (R E) R EIMN e R
R [BREEWGE] R T e E BB - &K
BAFEKNERALENEEERERBERE
REeadERFEMRER - BARER
REMEEEEREMMEY RBEEEW -
ERZREBOIFH T MERMAEFTEN
BELR ANEEEHBEEFREAX
BEROBA MEXNEREIRIEEN
AR T S (R HE s S HT R T A A o

M2022F2 A HMERWEFINFIFE
FEROBREEARAR FIBFRITEERR
EREBBROERAR) (RINBER)) W
61.5% B ZRAIKAEARTNIELE
MB R A - RmYIEFEREFR R KERITE
RRHBEHETRILH B26 FLBESL
PR 4% iE MR o B B UEE R B B
BB R AR AR FRT
BEE B2 EAKIEETHRRNER
WBERTED - BRFINEERE &M
ERARINEANLREEREEE 2 —
ETE =R (MEREER N —MFR
EpE) c —MBERFONR12BETFRIZAE - &K
MRE BB HEERESER HREA
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COVID-197% #i K A 78 W b 28 = A9 PR ) 1 45
HR2023F2ARER  BRAME R
EHRMANERENTREBSEETE
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ZEBR2023FHEEMA R IBRIAKE -
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Revenue Overview

Our revenue had experienced a rapid growth during the year
ended 31 December 2022, which amounted to HK$1,731.9
million (2021: HK$1,112.6 million), representing a significant
increase of 55.7%. The increase was due to (i) the revenue from
sales of medical consumables in Hong Kong starting from February
2022, which amounted to HK$298.3 million during the year; (i)
the increase in revenue from our medical services in Hong Kong by
48.1% to HK$805.7 million (2021: HK$543.9 million); and (iii) the
revenue from the our newly acquired dental business in Shenzhen,
Shenzhen CKJ, which amounted to HK$125.0 million after the
completion in February 2022 and up to 31 December 2022, and
netted off by (iv) the decrease in revenue from our ophthalmic
services in Mainland China mainly due to the pandemic control
measures that were put in place to limit the spread of COVID-19
in the second half of 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, we generated 63.7%
(2021: 48.9%) of our revenue in Hong Kong and 36.3% (2021:
51.1%) of our revenue in Mainland China.

Our revenue derived from our operations in Hong Kong increased
by 103.0% to HK$1,104.0 million (2021: HK$543.9 million) due
to the new business segment of the sales of medical consumables,
the integration of our newly acquired businesses and the organic
growth of our ophthalmic, dental and other medical services.
Moreover, our core medical service revenue generated from
Hong Kong also increased by 48.1% to HK$805.7 million (2021:
HK$543.9 million) despite the adverse impact of the pandemic on
Hong Kong. This demonstrated our leading market position and
the resilient demand for quality medical service in Hong Kong.

Our revenue derived from our operation in the Mainland
China recorded an increase of 10.4% during the year ended
31 December 2022 as a result of the integration of our newly
acquired business of Shenzhen CKJ, and netted off by the
decrease in revenue from our ophthalmic services in Mainland
China mainly due to the pandemic control measures that were
put in place to limit the spread of COVID-19 in the second half of
2022.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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In the midst of COVID-19, the total revenue from the hospitals
in Futian and Baoan, Shenzhen decreased slightly by 16.2% and
amounted to HK$261.4 million (2021: HK$311.8 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly due to the pandemic
control measures that were put in place to limit the spread of
COVID-19 in the second half of 2022.

Despite the approval as a Medical Insurance Designated Medical
and Pharmaceutical Institution (2 R F 2t E & # &) for our
Beijing hospital in January 2022 which would broaden our patient
base, our eye hospital in Beijing was adversely affected by the
outbreak of COVID-19 in the region in April 2022 and the second
half of 2022, and the revenue of this eye hospital decreased
by 38.8% and amounted to HK$59.9 million (2021: HK$97.8
million).

Our eye hospital in Shanghai had a challenging first half of 2022
due to the stringent COVID-19 restrictions imposed across the
city. From March onwards, there was a serious deterioration in
business as various lockdowns commenced. The revenue of the
eye hospital in Shanghai decreased by 24.1% and amounted to
HK$49.7 million (2021: HK$65.5 million).

The other two acquired eye hospitals in Kunming and Zhuhai
contributed HK$60.6 million (2021: HK$61.8 million), and
HK$37.2 million (2021: HK$24.9 million) to the revenue of the
Group, respectively, during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Operations have been running smoothly and positively after the
acquisitions.

The eye hospitals in Huizhou, Guangzhou and Jieyang and the
eye centre in Fuzhou commenced full operations in March 2021,
April 2022, August 2022 and December 2021 and contributed
HK$13.9 million (2021: HK$6.8 million), HK$11.4 million (2021:
Nil), HK$2.1 million (2021: Nil) and HK$6.3 million (2021: Nil) to
the revenue of the Group, respectively, during the year ended 31
December 2022.

ECOVID-19& B HAR - AR RIIEH -
ELWERNEE2022F12 8318 15
EEEMANE A261.4 B8 8BT (2021 F
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Revenue g

We are an ophthalmic, dental and other medical service provider BAR—RUREERPEANMRER
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Our ophthalmologists/ TR R E M ERRF AR - HMARE
physicians are specialised in the fields of cataract, glaucoma, BE /BEIHAANE - FLR - RBEK
strabismus and refractive surgeries and external eye diseases. Our BRXFMRBERERES KMOHTEER
dentists have expertise and qualifications across a wide range HEEEXERINEFEMER  BET:
of specialty areas, covering general dentistry, orthodontics and TR EEAREER - RMANKERE
implantology. Our revenue is derived from our fees charged to our MEE BF FHEAEMERRERNE
clients on consultation, procedures, surgeries, and other medical PR B A R SHER hE B E m (AR
services, as well as the sales of vision aid products, including SBRER) MEBEREM o TREHIBMIFT
glasses and lens, and medical consumables. The following table TEENREMEAEREB D

sets forth our revenue for the years indicated as a percentage of

total revenue:

Year ended 31 December

BZN2A3MALEE
2022 2021
2022 202146

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET FET FET
Provision of ophthalmic services 2 ERRIRH 1,074,301 62.0 920,049 82.7 154,252 16.8
Sales of medical consumables HEBEREM 298,342 17.2 - - 298342 NIATEF

Provision of dental and other REFRIREGER

medical services AR 198,279 11.5 52,186 4.7 146,093 279.9
Sales of vision aid products HWERNBHER 160,981 93 140,342 126 20,639 147

1,731,903 100.0 1,112,577 100.0 619,326 55.7

16 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERBEEZERERA A
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Our revenue was generated from Hong Kong and Mainland
China. In Hong Kong, our service network mainly included our five
day surgery centres and eight satellite clinics for our ophthalmic
services, six dental clinics, six optometry centres, three general
practice clinics, an oncology centre and a one-stop centre for
medical aesthetics, dental and ophthalmic services located in a
prime location in Tsim Sha Tsui. In Mainland China, our service
network included nine eye hospitals in Shenzhen (Futian and
Baoan), Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Kunming,
Huizhou, Jieyang, our two eye centres in Fuzhou and Nanshan and
our three satellite eye clinics in Shanghai, and a dental hospital
and 12 dental clinics in Shenzhen. The following table sets forth
our revenue according to geographical markets as a percentage of
total revenue:

MM EREFTERTEAN - HMAE
ERENRBA/EIECFIHABFMmH
DR NERERMRBOEED R - <EH
FRZ - NERBREFEL  ZFA2H
P —HEBEMP LR -BZRRDE
BB - UABEEXE  TRERR
RIBHF L - BPEDEABE RGBS
BRI (GEARER) bR L8
BN - 38 B BN BB L ERE
BB AR M K R L A R AR B AR B
IR BB =HRMEFELH  ARLR
RN — TR BB R 2B A2 T
RETIHAFVRIBIZT 5 8 D WU P
milas A O

Year ended 31 December

2022
HKS$000
TER

BZE12A31HLEE
2022

2021
20214

HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET

Hong Kong &b 1,103,998 637 543,909 489 560,089  103.0
Mainland China thE A i 627,905 363 568,668 511 59,37 10.4
1,731,903 1000 1,112,577 1000 619,326 5.7

Our total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2022
recorded a significant increase of 55.7% as compared with our
total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2021. In
addition to the new business segment of the sales of medical
consumables which recorded revenue of HK$298.3 million,
the increase was primarily driven by (i) the increase in the
revenue generated from the provision of ophthalmic services to
HK$1,074.3 million during the year ended 31 December 2022
from HK$920.0 million during the year ended 31 December
2021, representing an increase of 16.8%, which was primarily
attributable to the increase in the number of surgeries performed
by us in Hong Kong and the increase in the average surgery fee
in Hong Kong and (ii) the increase in the revenue generated from
the provision of dental and other medical services to HK$198.3
million during the year ended 31 December 2022 from HK$52.2
million during the year ended 31 December 2021, representing
an increase of 279.9%, which was primarily attributable to the
contribution by our newly acquired business of Shenzhen CKJ
after its integration into our Group.

RPN EE2022F12A31BIEEENE
WHREHE2021F12 8431 BIEFERNE
W35 KIB I8 £ 55.7% Rt E R EREM B
HEB D PBIRB I 2983 B BB TN - 18
EEXZXRAROREBERIREEENZE
mAEZE2021F12 A31HIEEEMH92008H
BT MEEE2022F 12 A31H IEF
E®W1,07438 8B B8 A16.8% ' =
ZAHRKMERBETHFMEE RFH
FMTEZ MR RGVIEH TR R EAME
BERBEENKRBEZE2021F12 A31
AIEFEMS22AEBILIEMNEEF2022
F12A3MHIEFENI1983FE BT #
18 /4279.9% + £ 2 BB RRY
EREEEBEAEAEEME -
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The revenue generated by our business operations in Hong Kong BMEBEBRKEEEEN KRR MBI
accounted for 63.7% of our total revenue. As a percentage of our @=H63.7%  c BANKEGRMBKER
total revenue, revenue from Hong Kong increased from 48.9% BOLREZE2021F12A31HIEFED
for the year ended 31 December 2021 due to the quick growth of 48.9% B FTIE N - R M 2022 F BB KU
our revenue in Hong Kong in 2022 by 103.0%, which grew at a mREIERATE - EIBE 103.0% @ RS
faster pace than that in Mainland China, which grew by 10.4% in AP 2022 £ 10.4% B &= 18 & o
2022.

Provision of ophthalmic services RAR B R

Our revenue generated from the provision of ophthalmic BPRBREBEIRBHRETRE D A
services may be broadly divided into two categories, namely (1) WME- MMz hEMBEREERQ)F
consultation and other medical service fees and (2) surgery fees. fiTg - TRETARFEZEBRZ 28U
The following table sets forth our revenue by category for the @AM IRERBRBAERAKREBE S
years indicated as a percentage of total revenue generated from

the provision of ophthalmic services:

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE
2022 2021 Change

2022 F 20214 =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET &L FET

Consultation and other PeRHEMER

medical service fees REE
- Hong Kong &% 250,254 23.3 181,356 19.7 68,898 38.0
- Mainland China —H BN 97,929 9.1 124,361 135 (26,432) (21.3)
348,183 324 305,717 33.2 42,466 13.9
Surgery fees Firg
— Hong Kong ~&% 449,078 418 307,457 334 141,621 46.1
- Mainland China —HE R 277,040 25.8 306,875 334 (29,835) 9.7)
726,118 67.6 614,332 66.8 111,786 18.2
Total FEES 1,074,301 100.0 920,049 100.0 154,252 16.8

The ophthalmic services provided by us focused on surgeries for BPRHENOBMRBEEFTNEEARE -
the treatment of not only cataract, glaucoma and strabismus, EABRERNENFMARARE  KHER
but also eye diseases including corneal and vitreoretinal diseases. MERRFREER - — KM s - LR
Generally speaking, ophthalmic services provided by us are HEBRERE RN BHEME T ETHPNZ
outpatient or day care procedures, performed under local FAHEERE - Ft - BEMER 2
anaesthesia. Hence, unlike other hospitals, clinics or nursing FrsBEER B R - PP ZIKCLAER S -
homes, we are not constrained by bed capacity and do not focus MIFEERERMAOBRIF L - B2 AT
on providing large inpatient facilities at our eye centres, hospitals RERE TR

or clinics.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERBEEZERERA A
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Our revenue generated from our eye hospitals, eye centres,
eye clinics and optometry centres can be broadly divided into
different categories, namely (1) consultation, examination, laser
procedures and other procedures, (2) refractive surgeries, (3)
cataract surgeries, (4) other surgeries and (5) sales of vision aid
products which included our optometry services, which accounted
for 28.2%, 28.1%, 17.1%, 13.6% and 13.0%, respectively, as a
percentage of the total revenue for the Group derived from our
ophthalmic business during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The following table sets forth the total surgery fees, the total
number of surgeries performed by us and the average fee per
surgery:

For Hong Kong BE
Total surgery fee (in HK$'000) FirELzm (FEr)
Number of surgeries performed by us #1717 H F 1T & B

Average surgery fee (HK$) FHFME BT
For Mainland China Bl Ry it

Total surgery fee (in HK$'000) FirBg&EE(TAT)
Number of surgeries performed by us  F Fi# 775 F 178 B
Average surgery fee (HK$) FHFME (BT)

KAKBERMER BRSO BRZHm
NMERBHE R DB K ELR] 5 B LA TR
BER BN(EE - RE - B aBERE
HOEE QB XFM ) B AEFM (4)
HMFWN: ROEERNHHER (BIF
BRI RE) - REE2022F12 A31
BIEFE  HRlMEAEBRERRRET
BN HEEER282% 281% ~ 17.1% -
13.6% £ 13.0% °

TREHFMEBRRE RMAETHOFME
BREHFMHFHER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

449,078 307,457 46.1
15,969 11,478 39.1
28,122 26,787 5.0

277,040 306,875 9.7)
19,062 23,661 (19.4)
14,534 12,970 12.1

In Hong Kong, the average surgery fee increased by 5.0% due to
the change of the type of surgery mix. Also, the surgery volume
increased during the year ended 31 December 2022 as a result of
the increasing number of our Hong Kong ophthalmologists and
the demand of quality medical services.

In Mainland China, the average surgery fee increased by 12.1%
due to the change of surgery mix during the year ended 31
December 2022. The number of surgeries decreased by 19.4% to
19,062 during the year ended 31 December 2022 mainly due to
the pandemic control measures that were put in place to limit the
spread of COVID-19 in the second half of 2022.

EES BRFINALELNED  F5
FIMBIEIMN5.0% - FFE > & 22022F12
A3MHLEFE BAREERBEALAHK
BEBBEREEREM  WFMEE BT
KB

TERBEAM ARFNEEHES  H=
2022F 12 ANBIEFENFEHSFINTEE
M12.1% - EZE2022F 12 A31 BILFE#
TR FMEBER L 19.4% = 19,0621 » =
ZHR2022F THFEHCOVID-19 & 1E
PEHIHE i
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Sales of medical consumables

The Group has been a distributor of COVID-19 related medical
consumables in Hong Kong since February 2022, and the revenue
from the sales amounted to HK$298.3 million, representing
approximately 17.2% (2021: Nil) of our total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which partly neutralised the adverse
impact to the Group’s medical business arising from the restrictive
pandemic control measures that were put in place to limit the
spread of COVID-19.

Provision of dental and other medical services

We started our dental, oncology, medical aesthetics and
laboratory services in 2021 and our revenue generated from these
services during the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately HK$198.3 million (2021: HK$52.2 million),
representing approximately 11.5% (2021: 4.7%) of our total
revenue.

Sales of vision aid products

We also generate revenue from the sales of vision aid products
including glasses and lens. The sales were conducted by us
through the assessment of patients by optometrists employed by
us in Hong Kong and Mainland China. During the year ended 31
December 2022, our revenue generated from the sales of vision
aid products amounted to HK$161.0 million (2021: HK$140.3
million), representing an increase of 14.7% year over year.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEBEREM

B2022%F2 A& A& E /COVID-194H
BEEMNEEDEDE - REE2022F12
A3MBIEFE HEKEIE2983IFEH
TC o G AURER417.2% (2021 4« 48) - &
D47 48 AP IF COVID-19 /8 45 i ;R 3L K BR
MR E TR A ERERERNTE -

RS R R b B R AR

BMR2021FREFR - ERBR - BE2X
ARBBIRGE  REZ=2022F12A31H
IHFE HZERBEEKRED1983HE
BT (2021 F 5228 &EB L)  HEW =
4911.5% (20214 : 4.7%) °

HER WY ER

BMIMREER N ER (WMRENER)
RERWE KRMBEBRESRPE AL
BRAMRIMOTERAETHEE HE
202F 12 A3V BALEFE - ZIRAHEER
NEBERNKZEA161.0F 88 T (2021
F:1403BEBTT)  RFEILIN14.7% °
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Cost of revenue

The following table sets forth an analysis of our cost of revenue
for the years indicated, both in terms of Hong Kong dollars and as
a percentage of total revenue:

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31ALFE

2022 2021

2022 %

Change
20214 %

% to % to

HK$000 revenue HK$'000 revenue HK$'000

1 Wz iz

BAE Bt

FET

TET TET

Doctors’ consultation fees BEvs 342,978 19.8 204,623 18.4 138,355 67.6
Cost of inventories and FENEHEER

medical consumables sold FEM KR 504,901 29.2 272,259 245 232,642 85.4
Staff salaries and allowance B T %% K& 84 245,696 14.2 140,088 12.6 105,608 75.4
Depreciation of right-of-use i FAEE EITE

assets 84,093 48 60,820 55 23,273 38.3
Depreciation of property, W - BERFK

plant and equipment weE 56,349 3.2 38,226 34 18,123 47.4
Others Eh 50,189 29 38333 3.4 11,856 30.9
Total BET 1,284,206 74.1 754,349 67.8 529,857 70.2

As compared with the year ended 31 December 2021, during
the year ended 31 December 2022, in Mainland China, apart
from the newly acquired Shenzhen CKJ with a dental hospital
and 12 dental clinics in Shenzhen, there were three new service
locations that commenced operations to meet the increased
demand of ophthalmic services, including the eye hospitals in
Guangzhou and Jieyang, and the eye centre in Fuzhou, which
commenced operation in April 2022, August 2022 and December
2021 respectively; they together made primary contributions
to the increase of cost of revenue. In Hong Kong, as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2021, during the year ended
31 December 2022, there were two newly acquired day surgery
centres of Champion Eye, a new satellite clinic for our ophthalmic
services, five optometry centres of OPT, four dental clinics and
two general practice clinics, and they together made primary
contributions to the increase of cost of revenue.
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Accordingly, our cost of revenue increased by 70.2% from Hit - B HEEXARBEZE 2021512 A
HK$754.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 3MHLEFEMNTS43EEBTHERT0.2%
HK$1,284.2 million for the year 31 December 2022, primarily EEZE2022F12A31H L FE#1,284.2
as a result of (i) an increase in cost of inventories and medical BEBL FERAROFERELEE
consumables sold of HK$232.6 million, (i) an increase in doctors’ RN ARG 2326 BEET : ()VBED
consultation fees of HK$138.4 million, and (iii) an increase in staff SEMMI38A4EEB L R(NETH & &

salaries and allowance of HK$105.6 million. EERE 1056 AEB T °

Gross profit and gross profit margin EFRERNE

The following table sets forth our gross profit and gross profit TREINKMRAREERIENSE 5
margin according to geographical markets for the years indicated: B EF R EF =

Year ended 31 December

BE12H31BLLEE

2022 2021 Change
2022 F 20214
Gross Gross
Profit Profit Profit
EH E7 E7
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET E FHEr FHET
HK medical business & & B & %745 187,122 23.2 154,383 284 32,739 212
Sales of medical HEBBEREM
consumables 108,902 36.5 - - 108,902 N/ANEF
Mainland China A1 AR L 26 75
ophthalmic
business 139,457 27.7 203,845 35.8 (64,388) (31.6)
Mainland China A b 7F B} 5 7
dental business 12,216 9.8 - - 12,216 N/ATEF
447,697 25.9 358,228 322 89,469 25.0
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With the expanded scope of our operations, our gross profit
for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to HK$447.7
million, representing an increase of 25.0% from HK$358.2 million
during the year ended 31 December 2021. Our gross profit
margin was 25.9% during the year ended 31 December 2022, as
compared with 32.2% during the year ended 31 December 2021.
The gross profit margin for our business segment of Mainland
China ophthalmic business decreased to 27.7% from 35.8%,
primarily due to the COVID-19 restrictions imposed in certain
Mainland China cities that the Group operated during the year
ended 31 December 2022, and the gross profit margin for our
business segment of HK medical business recorded a decrease
to 23.2% from 28.4% due to the adverse impact of COVID-19.
Our new business segments of sales of medical consumables and
Mainland China dental business recorded a gross profit margin of
36.5% and 9.8%, respectively.

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses remained relatively stable at HK$126.8
million (2021: HK$126.4 million). The amount of selling expenses,
as a percentage of our total revenue, decreased from 11.4% for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to 7.3% for the year ended
31 December 2022. The fees paid to online platforms represented
the major component of our selling expenses.

Administrative expenses

Our total administrative expenses during the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to HK$345.3 million and had an
increase of 47.5% as compared with HK$234.1 million during the
year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in our administrative
expenses during the year was primarily driven by the increase in
our staff salaries and allowances and depreciation of fixed assets
and right-of-use assets as a result of business expansion.

Other income

Our other income during the year ended 31 December 2022
consisted primarily of the management fee income from an
associate and government grants, and increased to HK$28.7
million from HK$10.6 million during the year ended 31 December
2021. The increase was primarily contributed by the increase in
management fee income from an associate.

HREBKSBBIER 822022912 A 31
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Other losses, net

Our other losses, net during the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to HK$40.7 million and mainly consisted of loss on a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss and exchange
losses, net.

Finance costs, net

Our finance costs, net during the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to HK$12.5 million and mainly consisted of interest
expenses on leases netted off by bank interest income.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense during the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to HK$35.0 million, representing an increase
of 228.8% from HK$10.6 million during the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
the profit before tax for the operations in Hong Kong.

(Loss)/profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our loss for the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to HK$46.2 million (2021: profit of
HK$16.2 million), the decrease was primarily due to the adverse
impact of COVID-19 and the losses incurred by the operations in
Mainland China, which was partially offset by profits derived from
the sales of medical consumables in Hong Kong and an increase
in the share of profit from an associate which carries out medical
laboratory services in Hong Kong.

Capital expenditure and commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incurred capital
expenditures of HK$244.8 million, primarily due to addition of
right-of-use assets and purchase of equipment and leasehold
improvements for our hospitals, centres and clinics.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total capital
commitment of approximately HK$47.7 million (2021: HK$312.4
million), mainly comprising the related contracts of capital
expenditure for construction of our headquarters in Pingshan,
Shenzhen and leasehold improvements for our hospitals.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio, which is calculated as
net debt divided by total capital, is not applicable due to net cash
position (2021: same).

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31 December
2022.

Pledge of assets

On 17 February 2022, the Group completed its investment to own
an 61.5% equity interest of Shenzhen CKJ at a total consideration
of RMB430,500,000. Under the relevant equity investment
agreements, the Group shall give security against its payment
obligations under the said agreements, and interests representing
approximately RMB34.6 million, or 55.0%, of Shenzhen CKJ’s
registered capital had been pledged under this arrangement (the
“Shenzhen CKJ Share Pledge”), and such security have been
fully released on 9 March 2023 as all payment obligations by the
Group have been fulfilled.

Further details of the Shenzhen CKJ Share Pledge and the
Shenzhen CKJ investment can be found in the announcements of
the Company dated 3 September 2021, 24 November 2021 and
17 February 2022, respectively.

In addition, the Group had two properties of HK$50.8 million
in Shenzhen, which were our dental clinics in Mainland China
pledged as security for bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022.

Save for the above, the Group had no pledge of assets as at 31
December 2022.
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Financial instruments

Our major financial instruments include trade receivables, other
receivables excluding prepayments, cash and cash equivalents,
bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
trade payables, other payables excluding non-financial liabilities,
amount due to non-controlling interests, bank borrowings and
lease liabilities. Our management manages such exposure to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Foreign exchange risk

Our subsidiaries mainly operate in Hong Kong and Mainland
China with most of the transactions settled in HK$ and RMB,
respectively. Foreign exchange rate risk arises when recognised
financial assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency.

As at 31 December 2022, the financial assets and liabilities of our
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China were primarily
denominated in HK$ and RMB, respectively. Currently, the Group
has not entered into agreements or purchased instruments to
hedge the Group’s foreign exchange rate risks. Any material
fluctuation in the exchange rates of HK$ or RMB may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group. The Group manages
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. We do not
anticipate significant impact resulted from the reasonable possible
change in interest rates.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk mainly arises from lease
liabilities at fixed interest rates.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Credit risk

Our credit risk mainly arises from trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The credit risk of cash and cash equivalents are limited because
the counterparties are state-owned or reputable commercial banks
which are high-credit-quality financial institutions located in Hong
Kong or Mainland China.

We have a highly diversified source of patients, without any
single patient contributing material revenue. Moreover, some
of our revenue is settled by reputable commercial companies
and local government on behalf of patients. We have controls
to closely monitor the patients’ billing and payment status by
communication with commercial companies and local government
to minimise the credit risk.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of
2,115 employees (2021: 1,461). The increase in the number of
employees was mainly due to the increase in the scale of the
Group’s business.

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are
comprehensive and competitive from time to time. When
determining the emolument payable to the Directors (including
the executive Directors), we take into account the experience
of the Directors, their level of responsibility and general market
conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments of
the Directors are linked to the profit performance of the Group
and the individual performance of the Directors. Employees
are remunerated with a fixed monthly income plus annual
performance related bonus. Share options and/or awards are
granted to selected employees to reward their contributions
under the share option scheme and the share award scheme of
the Company, details of which are set forth in the Report of the
Directors on page 51 to 94 of this report. The Group also sponsors
selected employees to attend external training courses that suit
the needs of the Group’s business.

Events after the date of statement of financial
position

There were no significant events affecting the Group which have
occurred after 31 December 2022 and up to date of this report.
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Despite a highly challenging environment in 2022, after the
relaxation of the restrictive COVID-19 preventive measures in
December 2022, the Group experienced a significant rebound
in business in 2023 alongside with the strong rebound in
economic and consumption activities in Mainland China. With the
completion of the acquisition of Shenzhen CKJ, the Group is not
only the largest ophthalmic service provider in Hong Kong but
also one of the largest private medical service groups in Shenzhen.
Our expanded service network and service scope, together
increasing brand influence in Hong Kong and Shenzhen (C-MER
and Shenzhen CKJ have 10 and 27 years of history, respectively)
will expedite our expansion in Hong Kong, Shenzhen and the rest
of the GBA market.

The implementation of the favorable policies to the medical
industry in Mainland China, the development of the GBA and
the increasing urbanisation and living standards of the middle-
class population in Mainland China are expected to stimulate
the demand for high- quality ophthalmic, dental and other
medical services. The Group is prepared to exploit the business
opportunities by implementing the following strategies:

o establish or acquire eye hospitals, eye centres and clinics in
Hong Kong, Shenzhen and selected Mainland China cities
including cities in the GBA,

o establish or acquire dental clinics and other speciality
medical clinics in Hong Kong and Shenzhen;

° continue to improve our operational capacity and service
capability; and

o identify suitable strategic partners for development,

manufacture and distribution of myopia control related
products.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our liquidity requirements are primarily used to satisfy the working
capital needs for our business operations. Our principal sources
of liquidity are cash generated from our business operations,
our bank deposits and our bank borrowings. The Group aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient bank
balances, committed credit lines available and interest bearing
borrowings which enable the Group to continue its business for
the foreseeable future. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
we have completed two share subscriptions and net proceeds of
approximately HK$606.8 million were received by the Company.
As at 31 December 2022, we had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$644.7 million, short-term bank deposits of HK$31.3 million
and bank borrowings of HK$34.3 million, most of which were
denominated in either US dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2022, all of the Group's borrowings of
HK$34.3 million (2021: HK$179.4 million) are repayable on
demand or repayable within one year and the effective interest
rate of borrowings was 5.49% per annum (2021: 2.44%). All
of these borrowings were denominated in either Renminbi or
Hong Kong dollars, and were subject to either fixed interest rates
or floating interest rates, among which approximately HK$11.3
million were subject to fixed interest rate. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not use any financial
instruments, currency borrowings or other hedging instruments
for hedging purposes.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. As at 31 December 2022, the
gearing ratio is not applicable due to net cash position (2021:
same).

The current ratio (calculated as current assets over current
liabilities) was 1.63 times as at 31 December 2022 compared with
1.83 times as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group reported net current assets
of HK$331.8 million, as compared with HK$338.1 million as at 31
December 2021.

Net cash generated from operating activities was HK$164.9
million during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$144.4 million). The increase was mainly attributed to increase
in business scale during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Net cash used in investing activities amounted to HK$195.7
million during the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared to
HK$395.7 million during the year ended 31 December 2021. The
Group invested approximately HK$94.3 million for acquisitions
of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired, and approximately HK$89.0
million for acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, net cash generated
from financing activities amounted to HK$293.7 million, as
compared to net cash generated from financing activities of
HK$85.1 million during the year ended 31 December 2021. The
cash generated from financing activities for the year ended 31
December 2022 was mainly from the net proceeds from issuance
of shares under the two share subscriptions in the aggregate
amount of HK$606.8 million, netted off by repayment of
borrowings of HK$193.2 million and lease payments of HK$132.9
million.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

To explore opportunities for strategic partnerships, alliances and
investment and expand our service offerings into other medical
services and projects including medical laboratory, dental and
optometry services, the Group made the following significant
investments and acquisitions to complement and leverage the
Group’s existing services and enhance the Group’s medical services
as an integrated medical service provider.

On 19 January 2022, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% of the equity interests in Champion Eye, of which the
purchase consideration was settled by allotment and issue of
8,790,000 shares of the Company (their value being approximately
equivalent to HK$50,367,000 based on the published share
price on the agreed date, 20 January 2022), under the sale and
purchase agreements dated 4 January 2022. Champion Eye
contributed revenue of approximately HK$150.7 million and
net profit of approximately HK$3.4 million to the Group since
the completion of its acquisition and up to 31 December 2022.
Further details of the acquisition of Champion Eye can be found in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 January 2022.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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On 19 January 2022, the Group completed the acquisition of
60% of the equity interests in OPT, at a total consideration
of HK$34,500,000 (comprising of an acquisition price of
HK$13,800,000 and a shareholder’s loan of HK$20,700,000
provided to OPT), under an investment agreement dated 10
November 2021. OPT contributed revenue of approximately
HK$22.3 million and net profit of approximately HK$3.5 million
to the Group since the completion of its acquisition and up to 31
December 2022. Further details of the acquisition of OPT can be
found in the announcement of the Company dated 10 November
2021.

On 17 February 2022, the Group completed its investment
to own an 61.5% equity interest of Shenzhen CKJ at a total
consideration of RMB430,500,000 (comprising of a consideration
of RMB380,500,000 and capital contribution of RMB50,000,000
in cash) under an equity investment agreement dated 3
September 2021 (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated 24 November 2021 (collectively, the “Equity Investment
Agreement”)) and an equity transfer agreement dated 24
November 2021. The Group’s 55.0% equity interests in Shenzhen
CKJ were used to provide security for its payment obligations
under the Equity Investment Agreement, and such security have
been fully released on 9 March 2023 as all payment obligations by
the Group have been fulfilled. Shenzhen CKJ contributed revenue
of approximately HK$125.0 million and net loss of approximately
HK$38.6 million to the Group since the completion of its
acquisition and up to 31 December 2022. Further details of the
Shenzhen CKJ investment can be found in the announcements of
the Company dated 3 September 2021, 24 November 2021 and
17 February 2022.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any other
significant investments, acquisitions or disposals for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

B2022F 1198 AEEREBHA
2021 11 10 W% & & 58 ik W iE
BHABEBEARLAN60%IE  BREA
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UPDATES ON THE RESULTS OF REVENUE
GUARANTEES AFTER ACQUISITIONS

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement on 28 August
2020 in relation to acquisition of a satellite clinic (the “Acquired
Practice”) in Central from an ophthalmologist. The Company
prepared the management accounts of the Acquired Practice for
the second twelve months after the closing of the acquisition
(i.e. from September 2021 to August 2022) and the revenue
guarantee of not less than HK$12.0 million for the said period had
been met.

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement on 10
February 2021 in relation to acquisition of 60% of the equity
interests in CAD/CAM Restorative Dental Centre Limited. The
Company prepared the management accounts of the CAD/CAM
Restorative Dental Centre Limited for the first twelve months after
the closing of the acquisition (i.e. from April 2021 to March 2022)
and the revenue guarantee of not less than HK$7.2 million for the
same period had been met.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed (the “Listing”) on the
Stock Exchange since 15 January 2018 (the “Listing Date"”),
and the net proceeds from the global offering (the “Global
Offering”) amounted to HK$609.8 million.

To maximise the flexibility of the Group in capturing potential
acquisition opportunities as and when such opportunities arise,
the Board has resolved and announced on 29 March 2022 to
expand the use of the unutilised net proceeds from the Global
Offering towards possible acquisition(s), and/or establishment of
eye clinic(s), eye centre(s) and eye hospital(s) in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Directors expect that the amount remaining
will be used by the end of 2023.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, net proceeds in the
amount of approximately HK$43.9 million were used, consisting
of (1) HK$8.2 million for establishing the eye clinics in Nanshan
(Shenzhen) and the eye centre in Fuzhou, (2) HK$31.9 million
for establishing the eye hospitals in Jieyang and Foshan, and (3)
HK$3.8 million for enhancing the facilities of the eye clinics in
Hong Kong.

The table below sets out the actual use of unutilised net proceeds
from the Global Offering during the year ended 31 December
2022:

Planned

application

Use of net proceeds of net
from the Global Offering proceeds

FERE

BEH

2RBVEMERETEAR RERE

HK$000

FEL

Possible acquisition(s), and/or IR AT RER BB R AR E 151,121
establishment of eye clinic(s), 15 &/ 3R RS

eye centre(s) and eye DET BRPL KRR
hospital(s) in Hong Kong and B
Mainland China
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8B R 5EA439B8 8570 B1(1)8.2
BEATAREFIEILRIBRIZAH R
ERINESIRRAR L (23198 8B TH
REBS LR BRI &(3)3.8F
BETANNEEEREIZ ARG

TREHNEZ2022F12A31BIEFEN
AEAEREEMSHEFEERRS

Net

proceeds Unutilised Expected
brought Actual net timeline for
forward usage up proceeds utilising the
as at to 31 as at 31 remaining
1January  December  December  unutilised
2022 2022 2022 net proceeds
BRAKT
R2022F B2  Ra2f ABA
1A18H 2022% 12A318# Fr&mE
S£EHRS 1ANEN  XBAMRS R
NERE ERRZ MEFE REREXR

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

FET TR FHET
151,121 43,873 107,248 Bytheend
of 2023
2023 F KT

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —ZE - _F F 3§

33



34

Management Discussion and Analysis

.ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ*ﬁ

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE 2022 FIRST
SUBSCRIPTION

On 13 January 2022, the Company entered into a placing and
subscription agreement with C-MER Group Limited (the “Seller”),
Dr. Lam and UBS AG Hong Kong Branch, as the placing agent,
in respect of the placing of an aggregate amount of 90,000,000
existing ordinary shares of the Company (the “Placing Shares”)
at the price of HK$6.48 per Placing Share to not less than six
independent professional, institutional and/or individual investors
(the “2022 Placing”). The aggregate nominal or par value of
the Placing Shares is HK$9,000,000, and the closing price of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on 12 January 2022, being the last full trading
date prior to the date of the placing and subscription agreement,
was HK$7.18 per Placing Share. The Seller then subscribed (the
“2022 First Subscription”) for 76,500,000 ordinary class of
Shares (the “Subscription Shares”) that were subsequently
issued by the Company at the subscription price of HK$6.48
per Subscription Share (collectively, “the 2022 Placing and the
2022 First Subscription”). The Directors considered that the
2022 Placing and the 2022 First Subscription represented an
opportunity to strengthen the financial position of the Group and
raise capital to provide working capital for the Group, on, among
others, merger and acquisition and/or expansion of our hospital
and service network while broadening its Shareholder and capital
base. The 2022 Placing and the 2022 First Subscription were
completed on 17 January 2022 and 20 January 2022, respectively.
The aggregate nominal or par value of the Subscription Shares
is HK$7,650,000. The net subscription price (after deduction of
the expenses incurred by the Seller in relation to the 2022 Placing

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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and the 2022 First Subscription) of each Subscription Share was
approximately HK$6.41. The net proceeds from the 2022 First
Subscription (after deducting relevant fees and expenses borne or
incurred by the Company) were approximately HK$490.6 million.
The table below sets out the planned applications of the net
proceeds and their actual usage up to 31 December 2022:

Planned
Use of net proceeds applications
from the 2022 of net
First Subscription proceeds

Percentage
of total
net proceeds

&
HERR

FIERE
W2EF-RABREE FEH 3

FERERERS RERZ BAt
HK$000
TET
RARpRENES  BX

For funding merger and 490,600 100%

acquisition; expansion of  H MK B MRS &
our hospital and service & REFAEEN
network; and as general ~ —REEES

working capital for the
Group

During the year ended 31 December 2022, net proceeds from the
2022 First Subscription in the amount of approximately HK$199.8
million were used, consisting of (1) HK$36.6 million for the
working capital to our hospitals in Mainland China at investment
stage and clinics in Hong Kong, (2) a total of HK$40.5 million for
the payment of the acquisition of a dental clinic, a medical clinic,
an oncology centre and a clinical research centre, and establishing
two dental clinics, two optometry centres and a medical clinic
in Hong Kong, and (3) HK$122.7 million for the payment of the
investment in Shenzhen CKJ, which operates a dental business in
Shenzhen.

The net proceeds from the 2022 First Subscription have been
utilised in accordance with the planned applications as announced
in the announcements of the Company dated 13 January 2022
and 20 January 2022 respectively and the Company currently
expects to use the unutilised net proceeds by the end of 2024.

EEENWRDN

F-RXRBEEMNEHIEFE (KMNK
RARFTAEXIBHROBBEAZR A
490.6 B BT o TREIE £2022F 12
A3EMNAEREFEHEARREER
B

Net proceeds Expected
brought Unutilised  timeline for
forward Actual usage netproceeds utilising the

as at up to 31 as at 31 remaining
1 January December December unutilised
2022 2022 2022 net proceeds
BABT
R2022% BE  Runf x8 A
1A188 02F 12A318H FrE™E
GEFMS NANBEN  KDAKE RENES
HERE ERAZ RERE KEX
HK$ 000 HKS$000 HK$'000
FAET 87T TAT
Not applicable 199,818 290,782 By the end
TR of 2024
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM DECEMBER 2022
SUBSCRIPTION

On 2 December 2022, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a strategic investor in respect of the subscription
of an aggregate amount of 30,056,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company at the price of HK$3.87 per share to the strategic
investor (the “December 2022 Subscription”). The aggregate
nominal or par value of the shares was HK$3,056,000, and the
closing price of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on 2 December 2022, being the last
full trading date prior to the date of the subscription agreement,
was HK$4.07 per share. The strategic investor is Ginkgo Capital
Global Fund SPC — Ginkgo Capital Global Fund | SP, a segregated
portfolio of Ginkogo Capital Global Fund SPC, and as at the date
of the subscription, all the participating, redeemable, non-voting
shares in Ginkgo Capital Global Fund SPC attributable to Ginkgo
Capital Global Fund | SP were issued to Wealth Strategy Holding
Limited, which was in turn wholly owned by Mr. Kung Hung Ka
(BEYT 52 5L 4 ). The Directors considered that the subscription
represents an opportunity to introduce a long-term and highly
respected strategic shareholder with strong background in
healthcare industry in Mainland China, and will help accelerate
our network expansion in the Greater Bay Area and our research
and development in relevant medical devices and therapeutics.
The Group may also enter into business cooperation with the
strategic investor when suitable opportunities arise. The December
2022 Subscription was completed on 8 December 2022. The net
subscription price (after deduction of the expenses incurred by

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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the Company in relation to the subscription) of each share was MBEARRFTAESBHRNIERER R
approximately HK$3.86. The net proceeds from the December TIE)HNABI162BEETT  TREAIEZE
2022 Subscription (after deducting relevant fees and expenses 2022F 12 A3 BB R IBFEE T A
borne or incurred by the Company) were approximately HK$116.2 BREERASR

million. The table below sets out the planned applications of the

net proceeds and their actual usage up to 31 December 2022:

Net proceeds Expected
brought Unutilised  timeline for
Planned forward Actual usage netproceeds utilising the
Use of net proceeds from applications  Percentage as at up to 31 asat31 remaining
the December 2022 of net of total 1 January December December unutilised
MILEG proceeds  net proceeds 2022 2022 2022 net proceeds
BABT
wHE  R02fF BE  Runf x8 A
FIERE REEE  1A18R 02F 12A318H FIERE
WNENARESE REN aE GEFMS NANBEN  KDAKE RENES
FERERERZ RERZ BAL RERE BERAR RERR KE%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT FAET FET TAT
For the expansion of our BRAMAKNERORR 116,161 100%  Not applicable - 116,161 By the end
ophthalmic service network ~ BREA4 © A ERHE TEE of 2025
inthe Greater Bay Area;  £%: REEAEEN 205 KA

the funding of mergerand ~ — & &4 %
acquisition; and as general

working capital for the

Group

No net proceeds from the December 2022 Subscription were used HZE2022F 12 A318 1t - #1#E5) 2022
up to 31 December 2022. The Company intends to use the net FNRARBSENMEHIEFE AR F
proceeds from the December 2022 Subscription in accordance B 2025 F F R AT - IRBA QA LRI H
with the intention previously disclosed by the Company in its BA2022F 12 A2 B ASEFEENEM -
announcement dated 2 December 2022 by the end of 2025. FF2022F 12 AREBEIENFTSHRIEFE °
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis /P (M) % & 4 ), aged 63, is the
Chairman of the Board, our Chief Executive Officer and our
executive Director. Dr. Dennis LAM is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Dennis LAM is our founder and
has been leading our business growth for over ten years. Dr.
Dennis LAM obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in November 1984.
Dr. Dennis LAM has become a Fellow of The Royal College of
Surgeons of Edinburgh since 1988, Fellow of The Royal College
of Ophthalmologists since 1990 and a Fellow of The College of
Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong since 1994. Dr. Dennis LAM
obtained the Doctor of Medicine degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2003. Dr. Dennis LAM has been a
registered medical practitioner in Hong Kong since 1984, and a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in the speciality of
ophthalmology since 1998.

Dr. Dennis LAM is the Past President of the Asia-Pacific Academy
of Ophthalmology (APAO) and the Asia-Pacific Vitreo-Retina
Society (APVRS), and the Editor-in-Chief of the Asia-Pacific Journal
of Ophthalmology (APJO). Dr. Dennis LAM is a Chair of the
Academia Ophthalmologica Internationalis (AOI), a member of the
board of trustee of the International Council of Ophthalmology
(ICO), an International Council representative of the International
Society of Refractive Surgery (ISRS) from 2011 to 2019 and
a member of the Board of Governors of World Glaucoma
Association (WGA). Dr. Dennis LAM was the Associate Dean
(External Affairs) of the Faculty of Medicine, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong from 2004 to 2009. Dr. Dennis LAM was also the
Chairman of the Department of Ophthalmology & Visual Sciences,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong for 13 years (from 1998 to
2011). Over the years, a number of awards have been bestowed
to Dr. Dennis LAM, including: “Ten Outstanding Young Persons”
awarded by the Hong Kong Junior Chamber of Commerce in
1994; “Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World” awarded
by the Junior Chamber International in 1995, “Young Leader of
Hong Kong” in 1998, “World Economic Forum’s Hundred Global
Leader for Tomorrow"” in 2000, “Hong Kong Humanity Award”
in 2007, the "Educator Award” of Asia-Pacific Association of
Cataract & Refractive Surgeons in 2005, the prestigious “Golden

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Apple Award” for the Best Clinical Teacher in the Asia-Pacific
region issued by the International Council of Ophthalmology
in 2011,"Jose Rizal Medal” (the highest achievement and
contribution award by APAQO), “De Ocampo Lecture Award” for
excellence in ophthalmology awarded by APAO in 2003, on the
“Top 100 Power List” of The Ophthalmologist in 2014, 2016,
2018, 2020 and 2022, and ranked number 1 in the “Asia-Pacific
Eye 100: 100 Most Influential Ophthalmologists 2022" by The
Asia-Pacific Journal of Ophthalmology (APJO). Dr. Dennis LAM
has been appointed as a “Justice of Peace” in Hong Kong since
2004. Dr. Dennis LAM has been serving as Deputy of the National
People’s Congress of China since 2008. Dr. Lam has been elected
as a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong for the
Election Committee Constituency in December 2021.

Dr. Dennis LAM is the spouse of Ms. LI Xiaoting, an executive
Director and the son-in-law of Mr. LI Chunshan, an executive
Director. Dr. Dennis LAM is also a director of C-MER Group
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Dr. Dennis
LAM has not held any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years.

Ms. LI Xiaoting (Z ¥ & Z 1), aged 44, is our executive Director
since June 2017. Ms. Ll is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Ms. LI is a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. Ms. LI obtained a Bachelor of
Tourism Management from Shenyang University in China in July
2001 and a Postgraduate Diploma in Business and Administration
in Management from Massey University in New Zealand in 2004.
Ms. LI was the project coordinator and executive officer Il at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2007 and from
2007 to 2009, respectively. Ms. LI has been the general manager
of our eye centre in Hong Kong since January 2012 and the
general manager of the Shenzhen C-MER Hospital since March
2013. Ms. LI was elected as a member of the National Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Pingshan,
Shenzhen in November 2021.

Ms. LI is the spouse of Dr. Dennis LAM, an executive Director,
and the daughter of Mr. LI Chunshan, an executive Director.
Ms. Ll is also a director of C-MER Group Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Ms. LI has not held any directorship
in other listed public companies in the last three years.
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Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent (Z{h 8 8 4 ), aged 54, is our
executive Director. Dr. LEE has been practicing for us since
January 2012 and is our Head of Hong Kong Operation. Dr. LEE
obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1993. Dr.
LEE completed the Postgraduate Diploma in Epidemiology and
Biostatistics in 2008 and was awarded a Master of Science degree
in Epidemiology and Biostatistics in 2009 all from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Dr. LEE has been a registered medical
practitioner in Hong Kong since 1994.

Dr. LEE has been a Fellow of Royal College of Surgeons of
Edinburgh since 1998, Fellow of College of Ophthalmologists of
Hong Kong since 1998, a Fellow of College of Surgeons of Hong
Kong since 1998 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of
Medicine in the specialty of ophthalmology since 2002.

Dr. LEE was the President of the Hong Kong Ophthalmological
Society (“HKOS"). Dr. LEE was the Chief Editor of the Newsletter
of the HKOS called Eye Opener. Dr. LEE was elected as the
regional secretary of Hong Kong and has represented Hong Kong
in the Asia-Pacific Academy of Ophthalmology. Dr. LEE holds
two ophthalmic patents as an inventor. He was awarded “Ten
Outstanding Young Person of Hong Kong” in 2009.

Prior to joining us, Dr. LEE was the Honorary Clinical Assistant
Professor (from 2003 to 2007) and later the Honorary Clinical
Associate Professor since March 2011 in the Department of
Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences, Faculty of Medicine, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. LEE was the Assistant
Professor, the Department of Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences,
Faculty of Medicine, The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
the Visiting Professor, Shantou University Medical College and
the Consultant, the Department of Ophthalmology and Visual
Sciences, New Territories East Cluster, Hospital Authority.

Dr. LEE has no relationship with any Directors, senior management
or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LEE does not hold any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.

Dr. LEE has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.
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Mr. LI Chunshan (Z & L % %), aged 71, is our executive
Director since June 2017. Mr. Ll is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LI graduated from the
fundamental course specialty of Liaoning University for party
and governmental cadre in April 1986. In 1998, he obtained
the qualification certificate of land appraiser and first prize for
Progress in Science and Technology in the Information System
of Urban Cadastral Management from Land Administration of
Liaoning Province. In 2008, he was conferred the title of Labour
Model by People’s Government of Shenyang.

Mr. LI served in the Chinese army between 1969 and 1996. Mr.
LI was awarded Lieutenant Colonel in 1988. Since retirement
from the military service in 1993, Mr. LI had worked at different
departments and agencies of the Chinese government, including
Assistant to the Head and Deputy Head of the People’s Armed
Forces of Huanggu District, Shenyang (1993-1996), Deputy
Director of the Construction Committee of Huanggu District,
Shenyang City (1996-2002), Deputy Secretary to the Party
Committee of Lingbei Street, Huanggu District, Shenyang City
(2002-2003), Deputy Director General of Property Bureau of
Huanggu District, Shenyang City (2003-2006) and Secretary of
the Party Committee of Culture, Sports Broadcast, Television
and News Publishing Bureau of Huanggu District, Shenyang City
(2006-2011). He retired from the public services since May 2011
and joined Shenzhen C-MER Hospital in October 2012.

Mr. Ll is the father of Ms. LI Xiaoting, an executive Director, and
the father-in-law of Dr. Dennis LAM, an executive Director, and
the spouse of Ms. CAO Yuerong, one of the grantees of the Pre-
IPO share option scheme adopted by the Company.

Mr. LI has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen GBS JP, (B [5 H# 18 L), aged
70, is our independent non-executive Director since November
2020 and vice chairman since November 2021. He is currently
the chairman and non-executive director of MTR Corporation
Limited (stock code: 0066), an independent non-executive
director of China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
and an advisor to Nippon Life Asia Pacific (Regional HQ) Pte. Ltd
(a company incorporated in Singapore). Dr. AUYEUNG has over
40 years of experience in the insurance industry in Canada and
Hong Kong. Dr. AUYEUNG was Chairman — Asia of the Principal
Financial Group Inc. (“PFG"), a Fortune 500 company, responsible
for PFG’s overall businesses in Asia. During his time with PFG, Dr.
AUYEUNG represented PFG and its member companies across
Asia in building and expanding PFG’s relationship with clients, joint
venture partners and strategic investors, and assisting in business
development across all products lines of PFG. Dr. AUYEUNG also
actively serves the public sector and is currently a member of the
Board of Directors of the Investor and Financial Education Council
under the Securities and Futures Commission, a board member
of Bo Charity Foundation (Food Angel) and a convenor of the
Advisory Committee of the Jockey Club Community eHealth Care
Project. Dr. AUYEUNG was previously the chairman of Hong Kong
Strategy for Financial Literacy Sub-committee on Stakeholder
Coordination and Collaboration, an observer of the Independent
Police Complaints Council Observers Scheme and a member of
the Independent Review Committee on Hong Kong’s Franchised
Bus Service. Dr. AUYEUNG holds a Bachelor of Environmental
Studies (Urban and Regional Planning) Honours Degree from the
University of Waterloo, Canada. He was awarded an Honorary
Fellowship by the City University of Hong Kong in 2013 and
conferred a Doctor of Business Administration, honoris causa, by
Lingnan University in 2020. Dr Auyeung was appointed a Justice
of the Peace in 2018 and was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star
medal in 2022.

Dr. AUYEUNG has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Save as disclosed above, Dr. AUYEUNG does not hold any other
positions with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. AUYEUNG has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last three years.

Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SB8S OSt/ JP (ZBE# B4 ), aged 68,
is our independent non-executive Director since December 2017.
Dr. Ll is a member of the audit and remuneration committees of
the Company. Dr Ll is a specialist in Family Medicine in private
practice in Hong Kong. Dr. LI is the Immediate Past President of
the World Organisation of Family Physicians (WONCA), the Past
President of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. Dr. LI is also
the Censor of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians. Dr
LI graduated with his first Bachelor of Arts degree from Cornell
University, USA, in 1975 followed by his study of medicine and
obtained the Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from
The University of Hong Kong in 1980. Dr. LI is a Fellow of The
Hong Kong College of General Practitioners, Fellow of the Hong
Kong Academy of Medicine, Honorary Fellow of the College of
Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong, Honorary Fellow of the Royal
Australian College of General Practitioners, Honorary Fellow of
the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians, Fellow of the Faculty
of Public Health of the Royal College of Physicians of the United
Kingdom, Honorary Fellow of the Academy of Family Physicians of
Malaysia, Registered Mainland China Medical Practitioner, Fellow
of the American College of Physicians, Honorary Fellow of the
Royal College of Physicians of Thailand, Fellow of the Academy
of Medicine, Singapore, Honorary Fellow of the Royal College
of Physicians of Ireland, Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of
General Practitioners.

Dr. LI served as Member of Council of Cornell University. Dr. LI is
Clinical Professor (Honorary) in Family Medicine in the Jockey Club
School of Public Health and Primary Care of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong; Honorary Professor in the Li Ka Shing Faculty of
Medicine of the University of Hong Kong; Advisor Professor of
Shanghai Medical College, Fudan University, China; Vice Chairman
of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association; Special Advisor
of the Physicians’ Education and Training in General Practice
Committee of the Chinese Medical Physician Association.
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Dr LI is the Director of the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
Association. Dr. LI is Senior Advisor of Jiahui Health, the adviser to
the board of directors of the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare
Council Limited and also adviser to Our Hong Kong Foundation.
Dr. Ll is the Honorary Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club.
Dr. LI is the Adjunct Associate Professor of the Faculty of Health
Science of Macau University of Science and Technology. Dr. LI is
the Honorary Adviser of the Award Scheme of The Hong Kong
Award for Young People. Dr. Ll is also the Chairman of the Action
Committee Against Narcotics of Security Bureau, Chairman of the
Elderly Commission of Labour and Welfare Bureau, a member of
the Steering Committee on Primary Healthcare Development of
Food and Health Bureau.

Dr. LI has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company listed on
Stock Exchange with the stock code: 00722, since 6 November
2015, Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited, a company listed on Stock
Exchange with the stock code: 1177, since 31 December 2020
and New Horizon Health Limited, a company listed on Stock
Exchange with the stock code: 6606, since 5 February 2021.

Dr. LI has no relationship with any Directors, senior management
or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LI does not hold any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. LI is not and has not been a director

of any other listed company in Hong Kong and overseas in the
past three years.
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Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung (5 B ¥ 5t &), aged 81, is our
independent non-executive Director since December 2017. Mr.
MA is the chairperson of the audit committee and a member of
the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. MA holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from The London
School of Economics and Political Science (The University of
London). Mr. MA is the Fellow Member of each of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a full
member of The Hong Kong Management Association.

Mr. MA has over 40 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and finance. Mr. MA is a director of Mayee Management Limited.
He is the founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited
(formerly known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Ltd).

Mr. MA is also an independent non-executive director of Asiaray
Media Group Limited (Stock code: 01993), and S.A.l. Leisure
Group Company Limited (Stock code: 1832) all of which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. MA retired as an
independent non-executive director of Asia Financial Holdings Ltd.
(Stock code: 00662) on 23 May 2019, C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(Stock code: 00043, before withdrawal of its listing on 18 January
2022) on 5 June 2020, Chong Hing Bank Limited (Stock code:
01111, before withdrawal of its listing on 30 September 2021)
on 14 May 2021, and China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited (Stock code: 00836) on 15 September 2021.

Mr. MA has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. MA does not hold any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. MA has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. CHAN Chi Leong (R & = £ &), aged 76, is our
independent non-executive Director since December 2017. Mr.
Chan is the chairperson of the remuneration committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. CHAN obtained a Bachelor in Economics from the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom in 1971, and a MBA degree from the
City University of London in 1973. Mr. CHAN is the founder and
chairman of the group of companies of Primasia (the “Primasia
Group”), which is in the business of, among others, investment,
research and consultancy and securities brokerage. Mr. CHAN had
been the Chairman of Asian Securities Analysts Federation from
1986 to 1988. Mr. CHAN is also the founder of Taiwan Sotheby’s
International Realty Company Limited.

Mr. CHAN Chi Leong was a licensed person under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") permitted to engaged in
type 1 (dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities), type
5 (advising on futures contracts) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities (as defined in the SFO).

Prior to founding the Primasia Group in 1990, Mr. CHAN worked
in Bankers Trust from 1988 to 1990, and he served as general
manager of Kwang Hua Securities Investment Trust in Taipei from
1986 to 1987, executive director in charge of sales and trading
of Hoare Govett Asia Limited from 1980 to 1987 and manager of
investment banking department of Deutsche Bank, Hong Kong
Branch in 1978 to 1980.

Mr. CHAN has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

Mr. CHAN does not hold any other positions with the Company or
other members of the Group.

Mr. CHAN has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.
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Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang (R %€ Z ), aged 74, is our
independent non-executive Director since December 2017.
Ms. BENTLEY is the chairperson of the nomination committee
and a member of the audit committee of the Company. Ms.
BENTLEY Annie Liang is the founder of Bentley Communications
and a pioneer of the branding, corporate and marketing
communications profession in Hong Kong.

Ms. BENTLEY obtained a bachelor of arts degree in English
Literature and Chinese Translation from the University of Hong
Kong in 1971, an advanced certificate in Education from the
University of Oxford in 1976 and a master's degree in Buddhist
Studies from the University of Hong Kong in 2010. Ms. BENTLEY
was made an Honorary Fellow of the University of Hong Kong in
2013.

Ms. BENTLEY began her career in educational publishing for
Oxford University Press working on their ESL books and the Oxford
English Chinese dictionary.

In 1981, she joined the public relations industry working for a
financial services banking and securities group in Hong Kong.
In 1987, she established her consultancy in partnership with
Omnicom, one of the world’s largest public relations and
advertising conglomerate, and grew Bentley Communications
to be one of Hong Kong’s reputable communications agencies
with coverage in Singapore, Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou by
2007.

Ms. BENTLEY is Chairman of Robert Black College, the University
of Hong Kong. She is a trustee of the China Oxford Scholarship
Fund, board member of Action for Epilepsy, Heifer International
(Hong Kong) and committee member of the Boys and Girls Clubs
Association of Hong Kong.

Ms. BENTLEY has been a member of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Prince of Wales Hospital, and has served on the
Executive Committee of Project Vision since the inception of the
charity in 2006.
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Ms. BENTLEY has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. BENTLEY does not hold any other
positions with the Company or other members of the Group.

Ms. BENTLEY has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.

Mr. IP Shu Kwan Stephen GBS JP, (@ B % %) aged 71,
is our independent non-executive Director since November
2020. Mr. IP graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a degree in social sciences in 1973 and completed the Program
for Management Development of the Harvard Business School
in 1986. Mr. IP joined the Hong Kong Government in November
1973 and was promoted to the rank of Director of Bureau in
April 1997. He worked in the Hong Kong Government as a
Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions
held by Mr. IP in the past include Commissioner of Insurance,
Commissioner for Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and
Secretary for Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the position of
Secretary for Economic Development and Labour in July 2002. His
portfolio in respect of economic development covered air and sea
transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal services,
meteorological services, competition and consumer protection. He
was also responsible for labour policies including matters relating
to employment services, labour relations and employees rights.

In his capacity as Secretary for Economic Development and
Labour, Mr. IP was a member of the Hong Kong Airport Authority
Board, the Mandatory Provident Fund Authority Board, the
Hong Kong International Theme Parks Company Board as well
as the Chairman of the Logistics Development Council, Port
Development Board, Maritime Industry Council and Aviation
Development Advisory Committee. Mr. IP retired from the Hong
Kong Government in July 2007. Mr. IP received the Gold Bauhinia
Star award from the Hong Kong Government in 2001, and
is an unofficial Justice of the Peace since 2007. Mr. IP was an
independent non-executive director of Synergis Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2340) from September 2008 to December 2017. Mr.
IP has been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of six other listed companies on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, namely, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(stock code: 1313) since August 2008, Lai Sun Development
Company Limited (stock code: 0488) since December 2009,
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (stock code: 1888) since
May 2011, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (stock code:
0590) since October 2011, Nameson Holdings Limited (stock code:
1982) since April 2018 and Million Cities Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2892) since June 2018.

Mr. IP has no relationship with any Directors, senior management
or substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. IP does not hold any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. IP has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Wa Ping (B # ¥ % %), aged 38, is our Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary. Mr. CHAN joined
us in April 2017 and is responsible for overseeing the finance,
compliance, merger and acquisition, and investor relations of the
Group. Mr. CHAN graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor in Business Administration in 2006 and has
over 10 years of financial and accounting related experience.

Mr. CHAN is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining us, Mr. CHAN worked for
PricewaterhouseCoopers and was involved in a number of
audit and assurance, capital market transactions and advisory
projects advising corporate clients including listed companies and
conglomerates worldwide.
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Ms. SIU Man Yi (B85 &z L), aged 41, is our Chief Operation
Officer in Hong Kong. Ms. SIU joined us in January 2012 and
is responsible for the overall management of clinic services and
daily operations of our eye centre and satellite clinics in Hong
Kong. Ms. SIU also designs and implements standard operating
procedures to maintain a consistent and efficient work flow in the
eye centres and all satellite clinics. Ms. SIU graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Nursing in 2006 and a
Master of Social Sciences in Behavioural Health in 2010.

Ms. SIU is a registered nurse since 2006. Before joining us, Ms.
SIU worked for Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital during
the year between July 2006 and September 2007, the Chinese
University of Hong Kong during the year between September
2007 and January 2008, St Paul’s Eye Centre during the year
between January 2008 to September 2010, and Asia Medical
Specialists Limited in the period between November 2010 and
May 2011.

Each of the senior management members has no relationship with
any Directors, senior management or substantial shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, each of the senior management members
does not hold any other positions with the Company or other
members of the Group.

Each of the senior management members is not or has not been a

director of any other listed company in Hong Kong and overseas
in the past three years.
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Our Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of our Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of our Company is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of ophthalmic,
dental and other medical services, sales of vision aid products and
sales of medical consumables in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

An analysis of our Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on page 123
of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”). The Company endeavours to maintain
sufficient operating capital to develop and operate the Group’s
business, and to provide stable and sustainable returns to its
shareholders.

In deciding whether to recommend dividends and determining the
amount of dividends, the Board will consider the following factors:

o the Group’s financial results and general financial condition;

o liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group;

Report of the Directors
EEaRE

EEEMARERASEEEHE=2022F12 A
BMTHIEFENEFSRE REEZEAY
EHREK °

FEXRK
ARAMEIEXEBREREER  EHBL
AXTEREERPEANMBEHRRE TR
Ko HoAh B 5 A 7% - $HE AR ) B B mn MK
EBEREM -

AEEREETHEADHFRARBEDNHE
SRR B B IS BR M AES

EERDE
AREFEHZE2022F 128318 IEFEMNE
EHNAREGE M EHRKE1238 -

BEEE I EEMEAEZ2022F12A318 1t
FEIRMNRERRE -

IR B BUR

EXECHAERRA—HAREBRR (KRR
BE] - ARFHNEFARELEES N
BREEERAEENER Y AERES
HARE M AT FF B R @ o

ERERGEZBREREMNETRESHE
B EFeHEEATHEE:
o AREMEBEER - RHMBAR

o AKEMRBESMAREARATL

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —ZE - _FF 3}

51



52

Report of the Directors

Vﬁ%@i&%

o the Group’s current and future operations;

o the Group’s business development strategies and future
expansion plans;

. the general market conditions;

o any relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company; and

o any other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The Board will also constantly review the Dividend Policy and
retain the discretion to update, revise, modify and/or cancel the
Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy will not in any
way constitute a legally binding commitment of the Group in
relation to its future dividends and/or will not in any way render
the Company obligated to declare dividends at any time or from
time to time.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
our Company on 30 May 2023 are entitled to attend and vote at
the AGM. The register of members of our Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 24 May 2023 to Tuesday, 30 May 2023, both
days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
AGM, shareholders should ensure that all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 23 May 2023.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of our Group during the year and a
discussion on our Group’s future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 9 and pages 10 to 37 of
this report respectively.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s results and operations are subject to various factors
with the key risks summarised below:

Reputation risk

Our business depends significantly on the soundness of our
reputation. Failure to develop, maintain and enhance our
reputation, or any negative publicity or allegations in the media
against us, may adversely affect the level of market recognition
of, and trust in, our services, and failure to properly manage our
ophthalmologists’, physicians’ or other medical professionals’
clinical activities may expose us to medical disputes, which could
result in a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Our reputation and business
may be harmed accordingly.

Customer risk

As we provide mid- to high-end medical services, our business,
financial condition and results of operations are subject to changes
in patient preference, consumption capacity, consumer confidence
index and general economic conditions in our market.

Regulatory risk

Changes in government policies, relevant regulations and
guidelines established by the regulatory authorities would have
an impact on the business operation of the Group in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties imposed or suspension of
the business operation ordered by the authorities. The Group
has closely monitored changes in relevant government policies,
regulations and guidelines as well as assessing the impact of such
changes.

Price Risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price risk. The
Directors will closely monitor the exposure.
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Talent risk

If we are unable to attract, train and retain a sufficient number
of qualified ophthalmologists, dentists, physicians, optometrists,
management staff and other hospital personnel, our hospital/clinic
operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Key Relationship

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
partners are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with
our employees, enhancing cooperation with our partners and
providing high-quality services to our customers so as to ensure
the Group’s sustainable development.

Staff

Our staff is regarded as the most important resource of the
Group. The Group has been endeavoring to provide our staff
with a competitive compensation packages, attractive promotion
opportunities, comprehensive training courses and a professional
working environment. In order to assist us in attracting, retaining
and motivating our key employees, the Group has adopted a share
award scheme and share option schemes, pursuant to which share
awards and share options may be granted to eligible employees.
The Group provides ongoing training to our employees.

Customers

We uphold the principle of providing high-quality medical services
throughout our operation, which we believe is vital to achieving
customer satisfaction and maintaining our reputation.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Suppliers

We firmly believe that our suppliers are equally important in
providing high-quality medical services. When selecting suppliers,
we consider, among other things, their product offerings, pricing,
reputation, service or product quality and delivery schedule. We
conduct regular review of our suppliers and will remove any
suppliers who do not meet our supply standards or requirements
from our list of approved suppliers. We usually have more than
one supplier for each kind of our medical supplies needed to
ensure we maintain sufficient inventory levels and bargaining
power to deal with price fluctuations. We do not rely on any
single supplier for any of our major pharmaceuticals, medical
consumables or medical devices. We had stable business
relationships with our suppliers in 2022.

Environmental Policies and Performance

We are subject to various Hong Kong and PRC laws, rules and
regulations with regard to environmental matters, including clinic/
hospital sanitation, disease control, disposal of medical waste, and
discharge of wastewater, pollutants and radioactive substances.
We have established systems and procedures in place concerning
environmental protection, such as requiring all our hospitals to
engage qualified service providers to dispose of medical waste
and radioactive substances. In 2022, our businesses were in
compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations with regard
to environmental protection in all material aspects.

As reported by senior management, which is delegated by
the Board to control and monitor the Group’s day-to-day ESG
performances, the Board considers that the Group’s performance
on environmental matters, with respect to the applicable subject
areas and individual aspects that are set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules, has been satisfactory.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China while the Company
is a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Our
establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
the Cayman Islands. In 2022, our businesses were in compliance
with all the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, and the Cayman Islands in all material aspects.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of our Group for the past five years ended 31 December 2022 are
set on page 260 of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of our Company are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of our Group and
our Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2022, the reserves of our Company available
for distribution to the shareholders of our Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,681.1 million (2021: HK$1,100.5 million).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to approximately HK$1.1 million
(2021: HK$0.1 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige our Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Save for the 2022 First Subscription and the December 2022
Subscription, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND POST-IPO
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Our Company approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the resolutions
of the shareholders passed on 28 June 2017. As at 31 December
2022, 44,926,999 share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme has been exercised pursuant to the terms of grant
of the options.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives and rewards to our Directors, employees,
ophthalmologists/physicians, advisers, consultants and business
partners of our Group for their contribution, and to align the
corporate objectives and interests between us and our grantees of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Grantees”). The principal
terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were approved and
adopted pursuant to the resolutions passed by our shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of our Company held on 28
June 2017. On 13 December 2017, our Company has adopted
another share option scheme (the “Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”).

As at 31 December 2022, there were no outstanding options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The Grantees comprise
three Connected Grantees, seven Doctor Grantees, five Consultant
Grantees, two members of our senior management team, our
employees in Hong Kong and our physicians and employees in the
PRC. All the options were granted on or before the Listing Date
and no further options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme after the Listing Date.

The options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to
the Grantees were vested and becoming exercisable on different
dates.
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The terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are the same as
the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme except that:

(i)

(iii)

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

the total number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 46,765,000 Shares, representing 4.68%
of the enlarged issued share capital of our Company
immediately following completion of the Global Offering
(without taking into account any Share which may be issued
upon any exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as defined
in the Prospectus) and the options which have been or may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme) and approximately 3.7% of
total shares in issue as of the date of this report;

save for the options which have been granted to 140
Grantees, no further options will be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme after the Listing Date;

subject to any restriction contained in the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, an option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
terms of grant thereof. All the Pre-IPO Share Options that
are not exercised by them within the exercise period shall
lapse and be deemed as cancelled and void;

the exercise prices for each Share under the Pre-IPO Share
Options are in the range between HK$0.10 and HK$1.0;
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(v)  Interms of rights on death or ceasing employment:

(aa)

(bb)

If the Grantee (being an individual) dies before
exercising the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”)
in full, all unvested Pre-IPO Share Options shall vest
on the date of his death, and the legal personal
representative(s) of such Grantee may exercise all Pre-
IPO Share Options granted to the deceased within
twelve (12) months thereafter;

If the Grantee is an employee, director, consultant
or adviser of our Group at the time of the grant
of the relevant Pre-IPO Share Options and his or
her employment or service to our Company is
terminated on the ground of disability resulting
from an occupational accident, all unvested Pre-IPO
Share Options shall vest on the termination date of
the employment or engagement of such Grantee.
The Grantee may exercise all Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to him or her within twelve (12) months
thereafter; or

If the Grantee is on leave without pay accumulated
for more than one hundred and eighty-three (183)
days in any calendar year after the Listing Date, the
vesting periods for all unvested Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to him or her shall be respectively extended
for twelve (12) months. If any such extension will
result in the vesting period of any unvested options
to cross beyond the date of the 3rd anniversary of 1
April 2017, 1 September 2017, 1 November 2017, 1
December 2017, 1 January 2018 or 1 June 2018 (as
the case maybe), such extension shall be deemed to
be made up to the business day immediately prior
to the date of the 3rd anniversary of 1 April 2017,
1 September 2017, 1 November 2017, 1 December
2017, 1 January 2018 or 1 June 2018 (as the case
maybe).
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v) FEBEHRIEZENENME

(aa)

AR A (REA) RBEEITE
ERANGE: SNk 335 i
BRHmBERE ((BERLMRE
ABIRED A H S BB R
BEE X FEEERER
REGHERRE ZARA
VEIEEEREARRZBH
e+ =2 EARTRE&HE
BT AERERERAMEENE
P HE

HEARAREXREBREXAR
HEMBRER SAEEER
B BRIEHAA BRTHE
HEMELEZBIRIBERAR
AER - AMBEARGBERA
B 2% & A B8 AR HE A5 10 SRR A
RIEXBEIXBERARRE - &
BAR R % BB+ = (12) 1@
ARTTEMBERERAMAE
ERERE X

WEARBAR ETHBREOE
MEFEHFREBRTEB
—BABNT=(183)H  HEK
MATERREBEE X AREESH
BERENEBHRREEELR
+Z(12)EA - WEEBBELER
BRI WAGEBERENSES
HAMREAIB2017F 4 A1H ~ 2017
F9H1H 201711 A1H -
2017412818 201851 A1
Hat2018F6 818 (fRIBERM
E)RFIR=-FEH  BABEL
ERANREE2017F4818
201749 A1H -~ 2017411 A1
H- 2017412 H1H 20184
1A1BE2018F6 818 (1R15
MME) B M =FEEBRHN—
EEZEBEL -
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BUOBRERFAEE RNBREEBH
BRAAHEENBERESSEETARDY
46,765,000 kR E - R B A AREE
AIEEREAEMMEEFER aRAMEE
AIEERE S E T T e R HEZ BRE
F (A58 EBRIWTEA - S MEREE
1% R AERARR A SF1.008 T8
B - RARR LT B ZSHERE
EERERAZIERRI A -

As disclosed in the Prospectus, a total of 46,765,000 share
options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as
at the date of the Prospectus. Due to the nature of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, no further share options may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and therefore “maximum
entitlement” is not applicable. A remittance of HK$1.00 was
payable by the grantee to the Company upon acceptance of the
offer of the options. They were all accepted and paid for by the
grantees prior to the date of Listing of the Company.

HREMBRARBDTAIRBEERAFEES
AR SR E S BARE  BRAM
HEMBRETENG N FHYER -

As no further options could be granted by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after the Listing, the remaining
life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme would not be applicable.

The following table sets forth a summary of the key terms and TEREINEBRAHAEEERENETZHK

60

conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Options:

An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior

management team

-RUTES tEBEARA

Major terms RYBHENRERER
TEARR —4ERERBBAE
Number of grantees 14 Grantees (including Dr. Vincent
AEAHR LEF and Mr. CHAN W Ping, a
member of our senior management
team, and seven Doctor Grantees).
Further information on the Pre-IPO
Share Options s set forth in the
paragraphs under “D. Share Option
Schemes - 1 Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme" in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus.
UEERA (BEFAREER
AR AP-LBRERENKE
RETE ARt EBEREA)
BRORE ERERENE S
EHERARE EWEND.E
REHE-1EROFE EAIB
Tigatal 5 -

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Our employees in Hong Kong
and a member of our senior
management team
REENEER
- 4EREREBAE

28 Grantees (including Ms. SIU
Man Yi, a member of our senior
management team). Further
information on the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted to the member of
our senior management team is set
forth in the paragraphs under “D.
Share Option Schemes - 1 Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme” in Appendix
IV to the Prospectus.

BEERA (BEAMET—%
RRERENHERERLL)
BER FRABRERENKR
MERAR BEMBRENE-
SERERAR Mm%
REHE-1ERAR ¥E5B
RiEtal -5 -

BRI R

An executive Director,

a Connected Grantee and
our physicians and employees
in the PRC
—ZHES  —ZRERRA
ERTENBERES

93 Grantees (including Mr. LI
Chunshan, an executive Director
and Ms. CAQ Yuerong, a
Connected Grantee and the spouse
of Mr. LI Chunshan and the mother
of Ms. LI). Further information on
the Pre-IPO Share Options granted
to our executive Director is set forth
in the paragraphs under "D. Share
Option Schemes - 1 Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to
the Prospectus.
BLARA(BERNESSE
Wk ERZFLEENRBRE
RIHE BERRLL(BER
BN BERFRBHNESY
ERLAREEH ERENE—S
BRERARERN 0D B
REHE-1EROREEN B
Esta-&-

FHENBRZERERLQA

Five Consultant Grantees

EERAARA

Five Consultant Grantees. Further
information on the Pre-PO

Share Options is set forth in the
paragraphs under “D. Share Option
Schemes - 1 Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme" in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus.

TRBRARA - RBERAR
RE NERENE-SEHER
ARE 1 MEMmID. BRE:E-
1ERRRE Sl REstal] -
B




Major terms

TEARR

Pre-IPO Share Options granted
(in terms of number of our
Shares and the shareholding
percentages)
BRENERDRREMNBRE
(RROHARSRADLAE)

Exercise period

k8

An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior
management team
—ZHTES  LEBEREA
RYBHENRERER

-~ SRR EEEMAE
An aggregate of 3.13% of the
number of our Shares in issue
immedfiately following completion
of the Global Offering, the
Capitalisation Issue and the full
exercise of the Over-allotment
Option, representing 32,276,000
Shares.
EEHERINTERARE
xRl TRERREEEH
RERNEEARAUES
3.13% + 132,276,000 Rk 17 «

36-month period commencing
from the third anniversary of the
latter of (a) the expiry of the First
Six-Month Period and (b) the first
anniversary of 1 April 2017 or
1 December 2017. All unexercised
Pre-IPO Share Options will lapse.
BRESEARFERRD)
W17E4R1852017F 1281
BER-£2E(anERE)
ﬁ“ﬂﬁ FEARRM0ERS
5 ERETROERARE
%w%k%%%ﬂ

o

36-month period commencing
from the latter of (3) the expiry of
the First Six-Month Period and (b)
the first anniversary of 1 January
2018. All unexercised Pre-IPO Share
Options will apse.
BRENEABIERRD)
01851 ATEER-EE8 (U
SBERE)RRR6EARE
FERETRNERAREEN
BRERLR

Our employees in Hong Kong
and a member of our senior
management team
REBNEER
-ERBEEEMAHE
An aggregate of 0.45% of the
number of our Shares in issue
immediately following completion
of the Global Offering, the
Capitalisation Issue and the full
exercise of the Over-allotment
Option, representing 4,666,000
Shares.
ELEERANTERARE
xRl TRERREEEY
RERNEEARAUES
045% 514,666,000 &R (7 -

36-month period commencing
from the third anniversary of 1
April 2017. All unexercised Pre-IPO
Share Options will lapse.
B17E4RIRER=FER
Riat36EAER - EREN
EHERDREENBREN X
i
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An executive Director,

a Connected Grantee and
our physicians and employees
in the PRC
—ZHTES  —ZREARA
RRTENBERES

An aggregate of 0.71% of the
total number of our Shares in
issue immediately following
completion of the Global Offering,
the Capitalisation Issue and the
full evercise of the Over-allotment
Option, representing 7,323,000
Shares.
EEEERANTERAME
xRl TRERREEEY
RERNEEARAUES
0.71% * 17,323,000 %13 «

36-month period commencing
from the third anniversary of 1 April
2017 or 1 September 2017. Al
unexercised Pre- [PO Share Options
will lapse.
B17E4R1RZTFIA
RER=EZRARRN306EAS
B MERETRNERAFE
ERBRERAN

o

36-month period commencing
from the third anniversary of

1 April 2017 for 60.0%.
B17E4RIBER=FEE
Fiad36(8A B8 : 60.0%

60-month period commencing
from the fifth anniversary of

1 April 2017 for 40.0%.
B017F4R1ARREFER
R e 6018 A ER : 40.0%

Al unexercised Pre-IPO Share
Options will apse.

FERETRNERDREER
BRERAN -

Five Consultant Grantees

EERAARA

An aggregate of 0.24% of the
total number of our Shares in
isse immediately following
completion of the Global Offering,
the Capitalisation Issue and the
full exercise of the Over-allotment
Option, representing 2,500,000
Shares.
AREZRAREERAALE
TRRTERERREERS
EERRE ARG SN
0.24% * £12,500,000 {3 «

36-month period commencing
from the third anniversary of the
[atter of (a) the expiry of the First
Six-Month Period and (b) the first
anniversary of 1 November 2017,
1 January 2018 or 1 June 2018.
B@E~EABEERR®)
WITENR1H 201851 A1
AR2018F6A1RER-FE
ABREBE) TRz 5E
ARRA6EARE -
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An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior
management team
-ZHIES LEREARA
RIEHENEERLR

—4ERERBBAE
In three equal tranches for each of
the 12-month period commencing
from the date of commencement
of the exercise period for a period
of 36-month.
A=BEREAR - HRIN306EA
EERESEE ki
AR«

o

Major terms
TEARR

Exercise percentages
gAY

One tranche.

_,qu"

HK$0.1 for each Share to be
allotted and issued.

BRRREREIRAB0BL

Exercise price (Note)

RERHZ)

No performance target for the
physicians practising in the PRC
and the member of our senior
management team.
RPESZNEERSRERE
HREEXERR:

Performance target

S E

The exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options by our Hong Kong
Ophthalmologists s subject to
agreed performance target in
terms of revenue generated in
each of the 12-month period. If
the performance target cannot

be satisfied, the Pre- IPO Share
Options exercisable during the
relevant 12-month period would be
exercisable on a pro-rata basis with
the target amount of revenue.
EARNBENEENORE
HEREEZEEZ 1207 Hﬁfﬁ
FEERANDESEERRR «
REERREN REE12E
REETFARNERLALE
HERERRERBRESER
ST -

Our employees in Hong Kong
and a member of our senior
management team
REENEER
—ZEREREHAE
One tranche.

_/qua

HKS$ 1.0 for each Share to be
allotted and issued.

BRAREREIRA1.0ETL

No performance target.

EXERE-

Note: The exercise price in respect of each Pre-IPO Share Option is in

An executive Director,

a Connected Grantee and
our physicians and employees
in the PRC
—ZHTES  —ZREARA
RRTENBERES

One tranche.

_/Hﬁ o
o

Two tranches.

L

HK$1.0 for each Share to be
allotted and issued.

BRAREREIRA1.0BT

The exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options by 5 physicians in the
PRC s subject to the agreed
performance targets in terms of
revenue generated during the first
36-month and then 24-month
period immediately after 1 April
2017. If the performance target
cannot be satisfied, the Pre-IPO
Share Options exercisable during
the relevant 12-month period
would be exercisable on a pro-rata
basis with reference to the target
amount of revenue.

ReEN R RBETRERDR
LENRRERS %%2017&4

A1BEE6EASERMER M

BASRAELRANDERE
AEAR - WEBRRAEM

MEAENERRRT FkNE

NARRENERESR2ZEE
BB BRI -

Five Consultant Grantees

EERAARA

In three equal tranches for each of
the 12-month period commencing
from the date of commencement

of the exercise period for a period
of 36 months.

AZBEER HRIR36EA
BENETRERARAHR
AR

HK$0.1 for each Share to be
allotted and issued.

BRARERBEIRA0IBL

No performance target.

EXEEE-

The exercise of the Pre-PO
Share Options s subject to the
completion of services for a period
of 12 months.
IRERDREENBERERR
TR 12 AR BRRRAR «

MiEE B RBR AR A - 8 BR AR E

EABRENITEEN FERR7D0.1E
TEERBRM1.0BT2E FREERE -

the range between HK$0.1 per Share and HK$1.0 per Share for
different tranches of Grantees, as a nominal consideration.
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Major terms

TERH

Cessation of cooperation or
employment

RERtAER

Lock-up period following the
exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options
ERDRBENBRETRAN
]

An executive Director,
seven Doctor Grantees, selected
physicians practising in the PRC

and a member of our senior
management team
-ZHIES LEREARA
RIEHENEERLR

—4ERERBBAE
Pro-rata in terms of revenue
generated in each of the 12-month
period with the target amount of
revenue for those grantees subject
to performance target.

Pro-rata on the number of months
of employment in each of the
12-month period for those grantees
not subject to the performance
target.
HRREARARNARADE -
EEEERUALENZ 121A
BRELUALERH - TR
SEARARNARANE &
RNERBRERAREILY -

Not applicable.
R

Our employees in Hong Kong
and a member of our senior
management team
REERNEER
—4ERERBBAE

No pro rata adjustment and the
unexercised Pre-IPO Share Options
will lapse upon cessation of

employment for whatever reasons.

FRENRRAHERR - fE
BUPRRRAEOENERD
REEHRBERRA

Not applicable.
TR -

Report of the Directors

An executive Director,

a Connected Grantee and
our physicians and employees
in the PRC
-2917E% -EREARA
ERAEHBERES

No pro rata adjustment and the
unexercised Pre-PO Share Options
will lapse upon cessation of
employment for whatever reasons.
AREFRRLERE &
RubIARRAEAENERD
REEHBRER KN

Not applicable.
TR -
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Five Consultant Grantees

EERAARA

Pro-rata on the number of

months of service engagement

in the 36-month contract period
commencing from 1 November

in each year. Cessation of
engagement before November will
continue to be subject to the grant
of the Pre-IPO Share Options in the
forthcoming November.
REE1A18RBEARNS
ARERBA DR - FR N
BB IER - FTEBRRNE
BERe 11 RERERDRES
HBRERR «

Not applicable.
TR -

v
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BEEBXAFAEEMEREASANSE
B ARAERITHABRETERESK
LEENBEA: REMESSLEE -
TR EE KRG HER (Z2HEAR
B % H R B IS R i R 1T R (D A
202212 A3 AWEBHT ¢

Details of the shares outstanding on which options are granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to (i) each of the
Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the
Company, or their respective associates, and (i) other employee
participants, related entity participants and service providers by
category, as at 31 December 2022, are as follows:

Number of options
ERRHE
Weighted
average
Closing price
ofthe shares
immediately
hefore the
date on
Which the
Lopsed ~ Lapsed options
Hedat ~ Granted  (expired)  (cancelled)  Exercsed  Heldat  Evercise were
Thanary  duing  dwing  duing  during 31 December prce  exercised Vesting Brerdsable  Exerdsable
0 theyer  theyear  theyear  theyear m HKS HKS  Grantdate period from un
i
EREER
[ERHAH
g R kg
1818 REm  RER  RER 0AMR GEE THNRE DA iz
fi KAGIE) &S it fisE A7 A7 AEGE  ATHE
i EEER
providers
DocorGrantees BEARA 518000 - (1800 - - - 01 NA - 3hi200 Vestitveetanchesitinapeiod 162018 31Mach 03
g (T TEB WFLEIR o deshepdpowrioned  018% ]
DlffYar  ZfREE) Soeopiosganted e 33%  TAGE  ABE
Wing Vincent of he share ptions granted 3R318
Sl vest o the Tt sy )

ofthegant e, 31 December
2018);33.3% ofthe share
optons ranted shalveston the
Ind anniversary of e grant e
31 December 2019 and e
remaining 33 3% shalheston te
3 amiverar of the grant
(12,31 December 2020)
MIEBRA=HERERRRY
B HRLEREN R
BRRGER 128 (H0e
ENAYIAIEE BUIE
RHERERR AR 5E
BE9ENANER B
TRILARRLRRIEER
([anEnA31858)

BEE : btk B BE R TR R A K 8 — RRIEBI T 8
BREHITENSRAR MEADK
Y 518,000 1 i % 4 8§ 1A {2 1 2022 4 A1
AT ROHER ©

Note: This date refers to the latest date on which the options under this
general category consisting of different tranches may be exercised,
whilst 518,000 options lapsed during the year were within the
tranch(es) that would only be exercisable up to 2022.
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Numberof options

ERRHE

Weighted

average

Closing price

ofthe shares

immediately

hefore the

date on

Which the

Lopsed ~ Lapsed options

Hedat ~ Granted  (expired)  (cancelled)  Bxercsed  Heldat  Evercise were
Ty during  dwing  during  during 31 December price  exercised Vesting Brerdsable  Exerdsable
0 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear m HKS HKS  Grantdate ~period from un

R Rt
1818 RER RER NBNE fEE i BT fTkz
fis S () g fEE o ; : #EAE WTEE

Snie  FELER

providers
(st BN f - ] - - - 0 NA - 1Setenber 207 Vestionetancheon31Nay2021 1 lure021 31y 2004
(rantee Mot
TEE WUE9RIE MUMESAYNA-HEEE  NNEGAIE AME
SAYIE
()
Employee
partipants
topogss B2 216000 - - B0 (7300 - 10 450 1A 2017 Vestin one tranche on the 3rd Thprd200 31 March 2003
anniversar of he gant
(1231 March 2000)
WIELRIE  RRRAR-FER(TONE  A0FRIE ABE
30318)-a5E 3EYE
topogss B2 578,000 - - - (578000) - 10 45 1A 2017 Vestin one tranche on the 5th o202 31 March 2007
anniversary of he gant
(1231 March 2002)
WTELRIE  RRRARDEER(TNE  ANFRIE ADE
3R318)-185R 3EYE
topoge B2 121000 - - - (1000 - 10 45 160cober 207 Vestinone tanche on 10ecember 30 November
30 Noverber 2018 018 0B
WIEIAIGE R0BFNANE-HEEE  w8% BE
418 114308
Totl it 1433001 - (b0 @00 @700 -

Note: This date refers to the latest date on which the options under this B 5E c 0t B ERFE RN R LR AR B — AREE R T 1)

general category consisting of different tranches may be exercised, BEREATHTENRELR  mFRNBEX
whilst 1 option lapsed during the year was within the tranche that R 1 1 i PR R B R 1E 2022 R A AT 1T
would only be exercisable up to 2022. EEBEIR -
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Due to the nature of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, no
further share options may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, and therefore there is no participant with options
granted or to be granted in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 1%
of the Shares in issue, or any related entity participant or service
provider with options granted or to be granted in any 12-month
period exceeding 0.1% of the Shares in issue.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$4.52
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of our Company approved and adopted the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to enable our Company to grant
options to eligible participants as incentives and rewards for their
contribution to our Group. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
took effect on the Listing Date.

As at 31 December 2022, 7,880,000 post-IPO share options
were granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. As at 31
December 2022, 1,882,000 post-IPO share options granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have been exercised pursuant
to the terms of grant of the share options.

As at 31 December 2022, options granted to the Grantees to
subscribe for an aggregate of 4,195,000 shares (representing
approximately 0.33% of the issued share capital of our Company
as of 31 December 2022) were outstanding under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

MR ERAFE S BRI SR L (E
R-BRAHABREMBREASBETTE
BEHEZERE AUMESRERESE
BHAH (8% B) 0128 A HRCEX
TRHERTHBEREATEBEBHITR
1% » AEMIAREE 82 B E R IR
FERIMEARI 1218 A BARE B & T i %
THEREBBS ETRNN0.1% °

REE2022F 12831 BIEFE  BEE
A 7T {F B HRRT A AR 15 D4 F W T B
BE4527TT e

BRARABERBRESE
ARARRRAERRKABERAHAEERRE
RS NSARARAERZEEY
AEEFHMERAKR SR HBREER
RBREF - BRAHABRERBRESS
METHEERS -

2022412 A31H - 7,880,00010 & XA
FRERBRECREEAAABERE
REREGT 2R - R 2022F 128318
BREEBRAAREEEREREFIREN
1,882,000 B X AR B EZEBRIEDIRE
P RS RR A MR R E T -

R2022F 128318 BIBE&E X QR
ERBEREFERTEARATRES L
4,195,000 B f% 17 (15 22 8174 2022 12 A
31THMBEITHRAL0.33%) A BB AR E 5 R
11fF -
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme:

(@) Who may participate

Our Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to
subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the
terms set forth in the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

any executive director of, manager of, or other
employee holding an executive, managerial,
supervisory or similar position in any member of our
Group (the "Executive”), any full-time or part-time
employee, or a person for the time being seconded
to work full-time or part-time for any member of our
Group (the “Employee”);

a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member
of our Group;

a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of our
Group;

a supplier of goods or services to any member of our
Group;

a customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group;

a person or entity that provides design, research,
development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of our Group; and

an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (i) to (iii) above.

(the persons referred above are the “Eligible Persons”)

IUTABRAFRESEBRERTS EZK
T E -
() ABEAL

EEgU2ENBREARHEE
BB BIFTE MG A T AL
TE2 A REA R A r R M REARE |

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(AL RIEEERAL]

REBEFIKE QA EMAH
TEF KB $EETHR '
2 EEREURMA AR
B ([THAERD  EA2Rk
RBEE HEBHRAETAE
BEMKE AR ETEBEE
BTENAL(RE]D

REBEFAKERANESERK
REEE (BRBLFNTE
EK

AEBETFAKERAINEEX
AR

AASETRKREARHES
A S AR TS 0 R RE 7

AEEBTAKERARNER
BE - EHRE BB BT
REm - ARE - REHREK:

mAEEERKE R FRMER
BT RS EAM SR SIE
2 - - BEKEAMRS
MEAER &

b 32 G) = (i) B B AR ] A £ B9
BEA -
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(b)

(9]

(d)

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options maybe granted

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme and any options granted under any
other share option scheme must not in aggregate exceed
100,000,000 Shares (being 10% of the Shares in issue as
of the Listing Date) unless our Company obtains a fresh
approval.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

Unless approved by the shareholders of our Company in
the general meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted to each Eligible Person under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of our
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not at the time of
grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Eligible Person concerned for a period of
28 days from the offer date provided that no such grant of
an option may be accepted after the expiry of the effective
period of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. An option
shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate
offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of our Company of HK$1.0 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by our Company on or
before the date upon which an offer of an option must be
accepted by the relevant Eligible Person, being a date not
later than 30 days after the offer date. Such remittance shall
in no circumstances be refundable.

(b)

(9]

(d)
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular
option shall be such price as our Board may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but the exercise price shall not be
less than whichever is the highest of: (i) the nominal value of
a share; (i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and
(iii) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business
days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately preceding
the date of grant.

Time for exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the year
which is notified by our Board at the offer date when
making an offer to an Eligible Person but such period not to
exceed the period of 10 years from the offer date of such
option. There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Duration of Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
Listing Date, until 14 January 2028, with remaining life less
than 5 years from the date of this report, after which period
no further options will be granted but the provisions of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto which are at that time
or become thereafter capable of exercise under the rules
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, or otherwise to the
extent as may be required in accordance with the provisions
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(e)

()

(9)
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Details of the shares options outstanding on which options are BEEBRXAFAEEAMERESSRAOSE
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to (i) each of E-ARAAGESTBRAEREEZRRLE
the Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the EXENBEA RMHEMEE2EE
Company, or their respective associates, and (i) other employee HEZE2EERREHER (R2EAR
participants, related entity participants and service providers by B BB EREY R B ARITERS R
category, as at 31 December 2022, under the scheme are as 202212 A31 HMEBIT ¢

follows:
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Service providers mean non-employee consultants of the Group.

Among these 3,202,000 share options, (i) 2,967,000 share options
granted by the Company on 18 July 2019 shall vest in three
tranches within a period of 3 years in proportions of 20%, 30%
and 50% of the share options granted, i.e. 20% of the share
options granted shall vest on the 1st anniversary of the grant (i.e.
18 July 2020), another 30% shall vest on the 2nd anniversary of
the grant (i.e. 18 July 2021), and the remaining 50% shall vest on
the 3rd anniversary of the grant (i.e. 18 July 2022); (ii) 200,000
share options granted by the Company on 18 July 2019 shall vest in
one tranche in a period of 3 years, i.e. 100% of the share options
granted shall vest on the 3rd anniversary of the grant (i.e. 18 July
2022); (iii) 35,000 share options granted by the Company on 18
July 2019 shall vest in three tranches within a period of 3 years in
proportions of 7%, 35% and 58% of the share options granted, i.e.
7% of the share options granted shall vest on the 1st anniversary
of the grant (i.e. 18 July 2020), another 35% shall vest on the 2nd
anniversary of the grant (i.e. 18 July 2021), and the remaining 58%
shall vest on the 3rd anniversary of the grant (i.e. 18 July 2022).

Since there was no exercise of options during the year ended 31
December 2022, therefore this report is not required to disclose the
weighted average closing prices of the Shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised during the year.

Since no option was granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022, there is no
participant with options granted or to be granted in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant representing
in aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue, or any related entity
participant or service provider with options granted or to be granted
in any 12-month period exceeding 0.1% of the Shares in issue.

On 18 July 2019, a total of 6,040,000 Share Options were granted
in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
to 39 non-employee consultants (the “Consultants”) who are
not Directors, as incentives and rewards for their contribution
to the Group and to align their interests with our corporate
objectives. Among them, (a) six were consultants who entered into
consultancy agreements with the Group and operate in insurance,
investment or other industries who have either provided strategic
advice and assistance in the Group’s development of its eye
hospitals, eye centres and clinics in Hong Kong and the Mainland
China, or assisted in identifying and liaising with suitable partners
for collaboration within their industries, which are two of the key
strategies of the Company, and the grants to these Consultants
were in recognition in their contribution to the Group’s strategic
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development, (b) 20 were members of the International Advisory
Council, whereby the International Advisory Council provides
us and our ophthalmologists/physicians with insights and high-
level industry-related advices on the development of the business
of provision of ophthalmic services and with updates on the
latest development of new medical and surgical techniques in
ophthalmology, and the grant to these Consultants were in
recognition of the contribution of their expertise and advices to
the Group and our ophthalmologists/physicians, and (c) 13 were
ophthalmologists in Hong Kong, who were under cooperative
or partnership agreements with the Group with revenue or fees
target, and they provide medical services under the Group’s service
network and who generate revenue and fees for the Group, and
the granting of Share Options to them was aimed to incentivise
them for them to provide continued service to our Group.

In consideration of the above, the Company considered the
Consultants to be valuable resources and their contributions in
their respective roles served the purpose of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, and grants of Share Options to them were in the
interests of the Company and Shareholders as a whole.

As no option was granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022, therefore this
report is not required to disclose the fair value of options as at the
date of grant and accounting standard and policy adopted is not
applicable for this report.

The total value of options granted to each class of grantees,
being our Directors, and service providers of the Group, were
HK$3,785,000 and HK$9,501,000, respectively as at 31 December
2022.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme as of the effective date of the scheme
was 100,000,000, representing 7.90% of the issued share capital
of 1,266,558,870 Shares as at the date of this report. As at 1
January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the number of options
available for grant under the currently in-place scheme mandate
for the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was 92,120,000 options
and 92,120,000 options, respectively, representing approximately
7.27% and 7.27%, respectively of the total issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the total number
of securities available for issue (less those exercised, cancelled and
lapsed) under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was 96,912,000
and 96,315,000, representing 7.65% and 7.27%, respectively of
the issued share capital of 1,266,558,870 Shares as at the date of
this report respectively.
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THE 2022 SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 7 November 2022 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
has adopted the C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited Share Award
(Existing Shares) Scheme (the “2022 Share Award Scheme”),
pursuant to which the Board may from time to time cause to
be paid a contributed amount to the trust by way of settlement
to the trust, which shall constitute part of the trust fund for the
purchase of Shares and other purposes set out in the relevant
scheme rules and the trust deed.

The purpose of the 2022 Share Award Scheme is to (i) to
recognise the contributions by eligible participants selected by the
Board and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them
for the continual operation and development of the Group; (ii) to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group;
and/or (jii) to further align the interests of the eligible participants
directly to the shareholders of the Company through participation
in the 2022 Share Award Scheme. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 7 November 2022.

The eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) of the 2022
Share Award Scheme include any individual being (i) directors
and employees of the Company or its subsidiaries (including
persons who are granted hares or options under the scheme as
an inducement to enter into employment contracts with these
companies), but shall include (for the avoidance of doubt), both
full time and part time employees (an “Employee Participant”),
(ii) directors and employees of the holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company (an “Related
Entity Participant”); and (iii) persons who provide services to
the Company and/or its subsidiaries on a continuing or recurring
basis in its ordinary and usual course of business which are in
the interests of the long-term growth of the Company and/or its
associated companies, and would include (for the avoidance of
doubt) doctors and dentists in Hong Kong who have entered into
partnership agreements with the Group (a “Service Provider”),
at any time during the trust period. For the avoidance of doubt,
Service Provider may not include placing agents or financial
advisers providing advisory services for fundraising, mergers or
acquisitions, as well as professional service providers such as
auditors or valuers who provide assurance, or are required to
perform their services with impartiality and objectivity.
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The consideration payable, if any, in respect of any grant of
awards shall be determined at the sole and absolute discretion
of the Board taking into consideration matters that may include
the selected participant’s position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group and the market price
of the Shares. For the avoidance of doubt, “nil” is an acceptable
consideration payable for the purpose of the 2022 Share Award
Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further grant of awards under the
2022 Share Award Scheme such that the total number of Shares
granted under the 2022 Share Award Scheme (the “Award"”)
will exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares as of the
Adoption Date. On the basis that the total number of issued
Shares as of the Adoption Date was 1,236,502,870 Shares, the
aforesaid 10% limit represents a total of 123,650,287 Shares.

The maximum number of options or awards to a selected
participant under the 2022 Share Award Scheme and any other
share option schemes and share award schemes of the Company,
which would result in the Shares issued and to be issued in respect
of all options and awards (inclusive of the Awards) granted to such
person (excluding any options and awards lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the respective scheme(s)), shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company in any twelve-month
period.

Unless early terminated by the Board, the 2022 Share Award
Scheme shall terminate on the tenth anniversary date of the
Adoption Date (being 7 November 2032), provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected
participant under the 2022 Share Award Scheme.

Since the Adoption Date and up to 31 December 2022 (the
“Relevant Period”), (i) no Award has been granted, and as a
result there was no unvested Award as at the Adoption Date and
up to 31 December 2022, (ii) no Award was vested, cancelled, or
lapsed. As at 31 December 2022, no new Shares may be issued
in respect of the Awards that may be granted under 2022 Share
Award Scheme, and 123,650,287 Shares (being the scheme limit
of the 2022 Share Award Scheme) remains available for future
grants of the Awards, representing approximately 9.8% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.
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According to information provided by the trustee of the 2022
Share Award Scheme, the trustee held 7,174,000 Shares under
the 2022 Share Award Scheme as at the date of this annual
report, representing approximately 0.6% of the total issued share
capital of the Company on the same date.

As no Award was granted since the Adoption Date up to 31
December 2022, therefore the fair value of Awards granted
during the financial year is not applicable.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of options
and awards granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and the 2022 Share Award
Scheme during year ended 31 December 2022 divided by the
weighted average number of Shares in issue for the year ended
31 December 2022 is not applicable since there was no grant of
options or awards during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Our Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set
out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
of the Group in Hong Kong is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the relevant rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions.

Employees of the Group in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government (the
"PRC Scheme”). The Group were required to contribute a certain
percentage of the payroll of our employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits under the PRC Scheme. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the PRC Scheme is to make the
required contributions.

Except for voluntary contribution under the MPF Scheme, no
forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme or the PRC Scheme
is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2022 are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, our five largest clients
accounted for 14.0% of our total revenue, of which 7.5% of our
total revenue was generated from our largest client, which was a
customer from the sales of medical consumables segment.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, our five largest
suppliers accounted for 59.3% of our total purchases. These five
largest suppliers include suppliers of pharmaceuticals, medical
consumables and intraocular lenses. For the same period, our
largest supplier accounted for 37.8% of our total purchases.

None of our Directors or any of their respective close associates
or any shareholder which to the best knowledge of our Directors,
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any interest in any of our Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS

Our Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP (#K I8 #128 4 )
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. LI Xiaoting (F H IE % 1)

Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent (/R4 E 4 )

Mr. LI Chunshan (Z& L% &)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen GBS JP (B f5 1A 1)
(Vice Chairman)
Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS OStJ JP (Z= 15k 28 A+ )

Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung ( 55 BRFE 52 4E)
Mr. CHAN Chi Leong (BRE 52 5t )

Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang (2% i %z +)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan Stephen GBS JP ((£5& 25 5 )
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At the AGM, Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang, Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald
SBS OStJ JP, Mr. CHAN Chi Leong and Mr. LI Chunshan will
retire as Directors in accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of
Association of our Company (“Articles of Association”) and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S AND
COMPANY SECRETARY’S PROFILE

Profile details of our Directors, the senior management and
company secretary of our Group are set out on pages 38 to 50 of
this report.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
INFORMATION

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP, our Chairman of the Board, our
Chief Executive Officer and our executive Director, was listed
on the “Top 100 Power List” of The Ophthalmologist in 2022,
and ranked number 1 in the “Asia-Pacific Eye 100: 100 Most
Influential Ophthalmologists 2022" by The Asia-Pacific Journal of
Ophthalmology (APJO).

Dr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen GBS JP, our independent non-
executive Director and Vice Chairman, was awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star medal in 2022, and ceased to be an observer of the
Independent Police Complaints Council Observers Scheme on 1
April 2022.

Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS OStJ JP, our independent non-
executive Director, ceased to be the Director of Bauhinia
Foundation Research Centre and member of the Chief Executive’s
Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development
of the Hong Kong Government in March 2022 and June 2022,
respectively. He stepped down as the Chairman and became the
adviser to the board of directors of the Hong Kong Sheng Kung
Hui Welfare Council Limited since August 2022.

He was appointed as the advisor to Our Hong Kong Foundation
since January 2023 and the Chairman of the Elderly Commission
of Labour and Welfare Bureau since July 2022.
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Save for the foregoing, there has been no change in other
directors’ and chief executive’s information which required to be
disclosed under LR13.51B during the year ended 31 December
2022.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company and our Company has issued letters of
appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors.
The principal particulars of these service contracts and letters of
appointment are (a) for a term of 3 years and (b) are subject to
termination in accordance with their respective terms. The term
of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
Listing Rules.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by our Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Our Group remunerates its employees, including our Directors,
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
Our employees are subject to regular job performance reviews
which determine their promotion prospects and compensation.
Subject to our Group’s profitability, our Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to our Group. Our Company has adopted the share
option schemes and the share award scheme as incentives to our
Directors and eligible employees.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of our Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2022.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of assets of our Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for the directors of the Group.

INFORMATION RELATING TO DEED OF
NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders of the Company, namely C-MER
Group Limited (“C-MER Group”), Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms.
LI Xiaoting, confirm that during the year ended 31 December
2022, none of them carried on, participated or was interested
or engaged in or held any other business which is or may be in
competition with the business of any member of the Group from
time to time. Relying on this confirmation and the fact that all
executive Directors (some of them are controlling shareholders
of the Company) have devoted their time and resources in
different business activities/medical practice of the Group, the
independent non-executive Directors are satisfied that the Deed
of Non-Competition was fully complied with by the controlling
shareholders of the Company and the executive Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’" AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” below and the related party transactions
as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director and/or any of his/her connected entity or any
controlling shareholders had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of our Group to which our Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

()  Maida Medical Software Development (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (BB B (52 OXYI) BR A7) (“Shenzhen
Maida”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of D&S International
Holding Limited which is wholly-owned by Dr. Dennis LAM,
and it is therefore a connected person of our Company.
Shenzhen Maida is therefore a connected person of our
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

Shenzhen C-MER Hospital entered into a new lease
agreement with Shenzhen Maida dated 22 May 2020 (the
“Lease Agreement”) in relation to the lease to Shenzhen
C-MER Hospital of a property located at No. 101 Sheng
Tang Building, Tairanjiu Lu, Futian, Shenzhen, the PRC (the
“Shenzhen Property”), which constitutes continuing
connected transactions for our Company.

The Lease Agreement was for a term from 1 June 2020 to
31 May 2023 (both days inclusive). The Shenzhen Property is
currently used by Shenzhen C-MER Hospital as the premises
for our eye hospital in Shenzhen.

The transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement
also constitute related party transaction of our Company
under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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(ii)

Under the Lease Agreement, the Group has recognised the
lease as a right-of-use asset. From 1 June 2020 to 31 May
2021, the rent per sg.m. per month is RMB197.32 and total
monthly rent is RMB687,000.00. From 1 June 2021 to 31
May 2022: the rent per sq.m. per month is RMB206.79 and
total monthly rent is RMB720,000.00. From 1 June 2022 to
31 May 2023: the rent per sq.m. per month is RMB215.41
and total monthly rent is RMB750,000.00.

The amount of the monthly rental has been determined
after arm’s length negotiations between Shenzhen Maida
and Shenzhen C-MER Hospital with reference to the
prevailing market conditions and the rental level of similar
properties in the vicinity of the leased property.

The actual rent paid by us in respect of the Shenzhen
Property for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
HK$10.1 million (For the year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$10.2 million).

For further details, please refer to the announcement dated
22 May 2020.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28
August 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to
acquire 80% equity interest of Kunming Eye Hospital.
Following completion of the acquisition of the Kunming
Eye Hospital (2R EREHEPT), the vendors of the Kunming
Eye Hospital shall own 20% of the Kunming Eye Hospital
and be substantial shareholders (as such term is defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Kunming Eye Hospital (which
will be a 80%-owned subsidiary of the Company). As
such, the vendors shall be treated as connected persons
at the subsidiary level of the Company and the transaction
contemplated under the lease agreement to be entered
into between the Kunming Eye Hospital and the Landlord
(as defined below) in relation to the hospital premises (the
“Hospital Premises”), which is located at 44 Yunrui West
Road, Wuhua District, Kunming, currently used by the
Kunming Eye Hospital and will be disposed to the vendors
pursuant to the acquisition agreement before completion
(as disclosed below), shall constitute a continuing connected
transaction with connected persons at the subsidiary level
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
but does not constitute a related party transaction under the
applicable accounting standards.

(ii)
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As one of the conditions precedent to completion of the
acquisition of Kunming Eye Hospital, the Kunming Eye
Hospital will dispose of the Hospital Premises to the Landlord
and that the Landlord will lease the Hospital Premises back
to the Kunming Eye Hospital. The Board considers that the
operation of the Kunming Eye Hospital will not require the
ownership of the Hospital Premises so long as the Kunming
Eye Hospital has the right to continue to use the Hospital
Premises upon normal commercial terms. In this connection,
a lease agreement (the "Kunming Lease Agreement”)
was entered into between the Landlord and the Kunming
Eye Hospital prior to the date of completion on the following
terms:

Date: 28 March 2019 (the date on which completion takes
place)

Parties:

1. Kunming Shirong Industrial Company Limited (2317
BE AR A A) (the “Landlord”) as the landlord,
all equity interest of which is held by the vendors

2. Kunming Eye Hospital (as the tenant)

Duration: Three years from the date on which completion
takes place, which can be renewed for further terms of
three years at the option of the Kunming Eye Hospital with
the annual rental cannot be increased by more than 4.0%.

Annual rental: RMB2,917,000 (for the first year),
RMB3,500,000 (for the second year) and RMB3,500,000 (for
the third year). These amounts of rental are determined with
reference to market transactions of comparable commercial
buildings, including offices and medical use premises. The
rental under the lease agreement shall be payable in cash
quarterly one month before the end of the relevant quarter.

Subject matter: The Kunming Eye Hospital shall continue
to use the Hospital Premises as an eye hospital free from all
encumbrances and third parties’ interest and has exclusive
possession of the Hospital Premises during the term of the
lease agreement.
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Governing law: Laws of the PRC

For further details, please refer to the announcement dated
28 August 2018.

The actual rental paid by us under the Kunming Lease
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
HK$0.2 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a new lease
agreement was entered into between the Landlord and
the Kunming Eye Hospital, the transaction of which is fully
exempt under Listing Rule 14A.76(1)(b).

Save as disclosed above, amounts due from C-MER
RainsOptics Limited (the transaction of which is fully
exempt under Listing Rule 14A.89), loans from Huizhou
City Changjiu Investment Co., Ltd (EM TR AKX E R
f2 72 &) and loans from individual shareholder(s) of OPT
(both transaction of which are fully exempt under Listing
Rule 14A.90), all the related party transactions of our
Group under HKFRS (with details set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements) do not constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
non-exempt continuing connected transactions, namely, the
Lease Agreement with Shenzhen Maida and the Kunming Lease
Agreement in relation to the Hospital Premises in Kunming, and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(a)

(b)

(d)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of our Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to our Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the shareholders of our Company as a whole; and

such continuing connected transactions did not exceed their
respective annual caps for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to perform certain procedures in respect of
the continuing connected transactions set out above in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions to the Board and a copy
of the letter has been submitted to the Stock Exchange.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in respect of the above connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions. The Company also confirms that during
the year under review it has followed the terms of the relevant
agreements as described above in determining the pricing and the
terms of the continuing connected transactions.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
our Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company has
complied with the applicable requirements under the Listing
Rules for those related party transactions which constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the paragraph
headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 80 to 83.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As of 31 December 2022, none of our Directors is interested in
any business, apart from our Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of our Group.
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SHARES ISSUED AND RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
THE COMPANY'’S SECURITIES, ISSUE FOR CASH
OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

Our Company has share option schemes and share award scheme,
the details of which are set out in the section headed “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme” and
“The 2022 Share Award Scheme” in the Report of the Directors,
under which 872,000 ordinary class of shares have been issued
upon exercise under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at the
exercise price of HK$1.0 each during the year.

To increase the Group’s market share, expand the medical team
and further solidify the leadership position of the Group in
the ophthalmology sector in Hong Kong, on 4 January 2022,
the Group entered into sale and purchase agreements with
independent third parties to acquire 100% of the equity interests
in Champion Eye Centre Limited, a company that operates
ophthalmic clinics in Hong Kong. The consideration was paid
by allotment and issue of 8,790,000 shares of the Company
(the "Consideration Shares”, their value being approximately
equivalent to HK$50,367,000 based on the published share
price on the agreed date, 20 January 2022). The Consideration
Shares shall be issued at the date of closing under the general
mandate credited as fully paid. Unless waived by the Company in
writing, completion was subject to, among others, (a) satisfactory
due diligence on Champion Eye including but not limited to
confirmatory financial due diligence and legal due diligence, (b)
amendment of shareholders’ agreement among all the existing
shareholders of Champion Eye and constitutional documents of
Champion Eye to allow the Company to become its shareholder
and to enjoy the benefits as its shareholder, (c) the listing of, and
permission to deal in the Consideration Shares being granted by
the Stock Exchange and such permission not subsequently being
revoked, (d) other necessary amendments to the shareholders’
agreement and constitutional documents of Champion Eye to
reflect further its governance structure after the completion, and
(e) the parties having agreed on matters relating to the settlement
of outstanding liabilities of Champion Eye, its working capital
requirements and any retained profits that may be distributed to
the sellers. The completion took place on 19 January 2022. For
details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 4 January 2022.
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On 13 January 2022, the Company entered into a placing and
subscription agreement with C-MER Group Limited (the “Seller”),
Dr. Lam and UBS AG Hong Kong Branch, as the placing agent,
in respect of the placing of an aggregate amount of 90,000,000
existing ordinary shares of the Company (the “Placing Shares”)
at the price of HK$6.48 per Placing Share to not less than six
independent professional, institutional and/or individual investors
(the “2022 Placing”). The aggregate nominal or par value of
the Placing Shares is HK$9,000,000, and the closing price of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on 12 January 2022, being the last full trading
date prior to the date of the placing and subscription agreement,
was HK$7.18 per Placing Share. The Seller then subscribed (the
“2022 First Subscription”) for 76,500,000 ordinary class of
Shares (the “Subscription Shares”) that were subsequently
issued by the Company at the subscription price of HK$6.48 per
Subscription Share (collectively, “the 2022 Placing and the 2022
First Subscription”), as a private arrangement. The Directors
considered that the 2022 Placing and the 2022 First Subscription
represented an opportunity to strengthen the financial position
of the Group and raise capital to provide working capital for
the Group, on, among others, merger and acquisition and/or
expansion of our hospital and service network while broadening
its Shareholder and capital base. The 2022 First Subscription was
conditional upon, (a) the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting listing of and permission to deal in the Subscription
Shares and such listing and permission not subsequently revoked
prior to the delivery of definitive share certificate(s) representing
the Subscription Shares in accordance with the placing and
subscription agreement, and (b) closing of the 2022 Placing
having occurred pursuant to the terms thereunder. The 2022
Placing and the 2022 First Subscription were completed on 17
January 2022 and 20 January 2022, respectively. The aggregate
nominal or par value of the Subscription Shares is HK$7,650,000,
and the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on 12 January
2022, being the last full trading day prior to the date of the
placing and subscription agreement, was HK$7.18 per Share. The
net subscription price (after deduction of the expenses incurred
by the Seller in relation to the 2022 Placing and the 2022 First
Subscription) of each Subscription Share was approximately
HK$6.41. The consideration and net proceeds from the 2022 First
Subscription (after deducting relevant fees and expenses borne or
incurred by the Company) were approximately HK$495.7 million
and HK$490.6 million, respectively. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 13
January 2022 and 20 January 2022.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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On 2 December 2022, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a strategic investor in respect of the subscription
of an aggregate amount of 30,056,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company at the price of HK$3.87 per share by the strategic
investor (the "December 2022 Subscription”), as a private
arrangement. The aggregate nominal or par value of the shares
issued under this subscription was HK$3,005,600, and the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on 2 December 2022, being
the date on which the subscription agreement was entered into,
was HK$4.07 per share. The strategic investor is Ginkgo Capital
Global Fund SPC — Ginkgo Capital Global Fund | SP, a segregated
portfolio of Ginkogo Capital Global Fund SPC, and as at the date
of the subscription, all the participating, redeemable, non-voting
shares in Ginkgo Capital Global Fund SPC attributable to Ginkgo
Capital Global Fund | SP were issued to Wealth Strategy Holding
Limited, which was in turn wholly owned by Mr. Kung Hung
Ka (EE4T 32 5£ 4 ). The Directors considered that the December
2022 Subscription represents an opportunity to introduce a long-
term and highly respected strategic shareholder with strong
background in healthcare industry in the Mainland China, and will
help accelerate our network expansion in the Greater Bay Area
and our research and development in relevant medical devices and
therapeutics. The Group may also enter into business cooperation
with the strategic investor when suitable opportunities arise.
The December 2022 Subscription was conditional upon, (a) the
Company having obtained all necessary consents and approvals
for the transactions contemplated under the subscription
agreement, and (b) the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the subscription
shares. The subscription was completed on 8 December 2022. The
net subscription price (after deduction of the fees and expenses
borne or incurred by the Company in relation to the subscription)
of each subscription share was approximately HK$3.86. The
consideration and net proceeds from the subscription (after
deducting relevant fees and expenses borne or incurred by the
Company) were approximately HK$116.3 million and HK$116.2
million, respectively. For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 2 December 2022 and
8 December 2022.

Save as the aforesaid, no other equity-linked agreement was
entered into or existed and there had not been any issue for cash
of equity securities during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF OUR COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As of 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of our Directors and chief executive of our Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of our Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to our Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or () as otherwise notified to our Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”)
were as follows:

(A) Long and short position in Shares of our
Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest

EEnA Rty
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Interest of controlled
Dennis JP corporation

MIEEE £ (K F#L)

RELE R

Beneficial owner

BEalia A

Interest of spouse
[

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

EERBSTHRAERAQARE
AEBEZENRS - HERORE
EETREANESRAR

R2022F12A31H EERARIES
TTBRABRARAR S EAREEE (T& AE
FREBEEFIEXVED) B R% (5 - B RD
MEEFTHREEQBEES LBE K
EXVELET7 8D M e AR A KB P
MR LA (BREREESF KB EGGIHA
IR EFES B ABEENRIRAR)
2k (b) FE BN IR IE B H K HAE 5 1 58 352 f§
BAHFEMNZLMANES AR HOR
BEMBTAESETERRINZEST
B (TP A |) BME AQ A KR AT
mMABIT

(A) REDFRBHFARKE

Approximate
percentage of
issued voting

shares in
Number of our Company (%)
ordinary class RAEAF
of shares ERITRERSG
ZEERRGEE BHE D (%)
680,194,553 53.7%
(long position) (Note 1)
680,194,553 %
(5rE) (Bt 1)
8,920,000 0.7%
(long position)
8,920,000 i%
(478
1,140,000 0.1%
(long position) (Note 2)
1,140,000 f%
(5FE) (BiF2)
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Name of Director

EEHR

Ms. LI Xiaoting
FHERL

Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent

FHEEE

Mr. CHAN Chi Leong

RE=EE

Mr. LI Chunshan
THILSEE

Dr. Rex AUYEUNG
Pak-kuen GBS JP

BRR5 atEtE £
(REHEE -
K- Fat)

Nature of Interest

EEME

Interest of controlled

corporation

RELE R

Interest of spouse
[

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Beneficial owner

EmlEAA

Interest of spouse

L

Beneficial owner

BEmlEAA

Interest of spouse
e S 4 2

Interest of spouse
[

Beneficial owner

BExmEAA
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Number of
ordinary class
of shares

EEERRDEE

680,194,553

(long position) (Note 1)
680,194,553 %
(F&) (1)

8,920,000

(long position) (Note 3)
8,920,000 %

(452) (Hfet3)

1,140,000

(long position) (Note 2)
1,140,000 f%
(FR)(Hi72)

13,453,000

(long position) (Note 4)
13,453,000 i%

(5F') (Hit4)

3,008,000
(long position)
3,008,000 i%
(7 E)

777,000

(long position)
777,000 i%
(7 &)

259,000

(long position)
259,000 i%
(iFE)

300,000

(long position)
300,000 %
(FR)

200,000

(long position) (Note 5)
200,000 f%

(&) (H775)
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Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
shares in

our Company (%)
RAERQH
ERTRERSG
BAE 2 L (%)
53.7%

0.7%

0.1%

1.1 %

0.2%

0.1%

0.02%

0.02%

0.02%

v
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Notes:

680,194,553 Shares are beneficially owned by C-MER Group
Limited (“C-MER Group”). C-MER Group is owned as to 70% by
Dr. Dennis LAM and 30% by Ms. LI Xiaoting. Ms. LI is the spouse
of Dr. Dennis LAM, and both of them have been managing and
operating our business collectively and reaching consensus before
making major decisions in respect of our business. Both Dr. Dennis
LAM and Ms. LI, as directors of C-MER Group, will continue to act
jointly so far as the exercise of the voting rights attached with our
Shares (through C-MER Group) is concerned.

Ms. LI Xiaoting, the spouse of Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis, was
granted 1,140,000 share options under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executives' interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of our Company or any
associated corporation — (B) Long position in underlying Shares of
our Company — physically settled unlisted equity derivatives” in this
report.

Ms. LI Xiaoting, the spouse of Dr. Lam Shun Chiu Dennis, is deemed
to be interested in the 8,920,000 Shares held by Dr. Dennis Lam.

Among these 13,453,000 shares, 250,000 shares represent the
underlying shares in respect of the share options granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. For details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
our Company or any associated corporation — (B) Long position
in underlying Shares of our Company — physically settled unlisted
equity derivatives” in this report.

Dr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen held 200,000 share options under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. For details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
our Company or any associated corporation — (B) Long position
in underlying Shares of our Company — physically settled unlisted
equity derivatives” in this report.

By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. Li Xiaoting are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by C-MER Group.

C-ME

R EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

CER

680,194,553k i {5 fa & I = E A IR 2 A
((#BEE)EZHE A BEEDRIHA
MNERAEE = K 2 2 2 i H 70% & 30%
Wi - T T AMIEHEENEME B
MAY—EHAREEREERMNERY
EE B R M8 T B £ ZRRATER
—BER - MEBBERFTLZL(WEAR
WEEER)YE% (BRFHERE) 1T
DI E LR TE) -

FTHEZT (ARIEHEENERE) BRIEE
RN B 18 B AR R 5T 21 £ 121,140,000
MERE - FEFL2HARE EE k&
BITEA B A A 5] ok () B % B A9 A%
17~ MR, REEERES N ER KK
BE-BRARAREEROKTE —EWE
HIEFTBRATETA] B -

THELZT (ANIBEHEENERS) BRA
AW JIE %R B8 A BT $5 5 8,920,000 % % 15
WA -

£%13,453,000 % # + 250,000 % 2 B & &
IRARBEERBRETTRME THERED
HERGD - FEFL2HARE(EER&
BITEA B A A 5] ok () B % B A9 A%
17~ MR, REEERES R KK
BE-BRARABEERODKTE -—EWE
HIEFTBRATETA] B -

B aEE T IRE S R AR S AR
a1 245 5 200,000 FE AL #E - F1FFE 2 H
REEEERERTHRABRARA A K
ERARECEE MG - AR REEE
PR R RO R — BV R AR AR
DR - BMEEIE LR ASTET A

—Be

RIEBEZSRBEMGRD - HIEHEERFH
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(B) RALAFHBARGNWEFE-—EY
BEFLTRATETAR

(B) Long position in underlying Shares of our
Company - physically settled unlisted equity

derivatives

the share options shares in

granted (Note) our Company (%)

FEREBEREN RAAF

Name of Director Nature of Interest HRZEER ERTRERH

EENA EEME RGEB (FE) BAE 2 (%)

Ms. LI Xiaoting Beneficial owner 1,140,000 0.1%
FHEBELZT BmEAA (long position) (Note)
1,140,000 %
(5FB) (K1)

Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent Beneficial owner 250,000 0.02%
THERAE E=lA A (long position) (Note)
250,000 %
(W 8) (H1iE)

Dr. Rex AUYEUNG Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
Pak-kuen GBS JP BEREA A (long position) (Note)
BiS R+ 200,000 fi%
(REHEZE - (578) (Bi7)

A Fat)
Note: Details of the above share options granted by our Company MzE: BEELMAQRELOBREST

are set out in the section headed "“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme” in this report.

Number of
underlying ordinary
class of shares

in respect of

Approximate
percentage of
issued voting

BERAREERAFEENE
BREFERERAMEEREBR

RERTEI ) —#p
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(C) Long position in shares of associated corporation (O RHEBEBRONEFRE-FHE
— C-MER Group

Approximate

Number of percentage of

ordinary class the issued

of shares voting shares (%)

Name of Director Nature of Interest ZiEE R REBRTRERS

EEN®R ERME R ER B E 2 L (%)

Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Beneficial owner 1,400 (long position) 70.0%
Dennis JP ExlEAA 1,400 8% (47 &)

MIEREE & (X FH#L)

Ms. LI Xiaoting Beneficial owner 600 (long position) 30.0%
THEBEZ L BEx#EE A 600 % (47 &)

Br ESCRT#: 58 & S 1320224 12 A
318 BEFES AR ZEITHRAER
i B AR ARSTHRAER

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2022, so far as
is known to our Directors or chief executive of our Company,
none of our Directors or chief executive of our Company

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of our Company or its associated
corporations which (a) were required to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange.

FHENBRZERERLQA

A B sk EAREE B R AR - AR
MREEFPEEEEQBEE
MEAEEGIEXVERE 7 R85 E /A AN

GARRAIREBZMONERIORE (B
ERE RS RS GO EE G E
E R BEENERRARE) » 2(b)
RAEE %5 K B E &P 5 352 7B 2 8%
RZGFEEZMARNERIAE
() IR IZXESF BIIZE A& AN 5] K B
R IOAE °
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FERRRAQTRG R AEBEKRG
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND NEZRRE

UNDERLYING SHARES OF OUR COMPANY

As of 31 December 2022, so far as was known to any Director or R2022F12A31H  EEMNESH AR
chief executive of our Company, the following persons (other than AEREITHRABRA  TIAL(EERA
our Directors and chief executive of our Company) had interests NAElE=mITHA BBRIN) IR () AR R IR 19
and/or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which THBERBESFRBERIEXVBE2R
would fall to be disclosed to our Company pursuant to Divisions 2 3P EARMARTRELCDEN AR EIRE
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required FBERBEKYEIBKRAETENETLM

to be kept by our Company under section 336 of the SFO. RE RS R HIKR -

Approximate
percentage of
issued voting

shares in

Number of our Company (%)

Name of substantial ordinary class RZAA F]

Shareholder Nature of Interest of shares ERITRERSG

TERRER EmtE TEEARGEE BEA " 2 L (%)

C-MER Group Limited Beneficial owner 680,194,553 53.7%
(“C-MER Group”) EnEAA (long position) (Note)
HHEEARRQA] 680,194,553 i
(#B%EE]) (5F&) (K1)

Note: C-MER Group is owned as to 70% by Dr. Dennis LAM and 30% by Mz : A EEENERBERTEEL LS

Ms. LI Xiaoting. Ms. LI is the spouse of Dr. Dennis LAM, and both of BIEEB H70% M30% M ER - T A
them have been managing and operating our business collectively MIEFE EMIE  BEMAE—BERRAE
and reaching consensus before making major decisions in respect of B RSB B P 2 I AR B B AN
our business. Both Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI will continue to act EBMERREAEX —HER - WIEH
jointly so far as the exercise of the voting rights attached with our BEERFLTHER (ERBFHEE) 1T
Shares (through C-MER Group) is concerned. ERMHIREREEELRITE o

By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. Li Xiaoting are RIBEEEMBEIED - RIERELERZTY
deemed to be interested in the shares held by C-MER Group. BZTHERPRBEFBEEFANKRHSP
AR -
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Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2022, our Directors
were not aware that there is any other persons (being a Director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of our Company or
otherwise) who had an interest or short positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares of our Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to our Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be

kept by our Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to our Company and
to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
as at the date of this annual report, our Company has always
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by our Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on
pages 95 to 112 of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There were no significant events affecting the Group which have
occurred after the end of the reporting period.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of our Company. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the independent auditor of our
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of our Board
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis /P
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
applied the principles as set forth in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
which are applicable to the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules and also to enhance its corporate
governance practices, the Company has also adopted a number
of corporate governance policies, including but not limited the
board diversity policy, the shareholders’ communication policy, the
director nomination policy, the inside information policy and the
dividend policy.

In the opinion of the Board, during the year ended 31 December
2022, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions as set forth in the CG Code, save and except for code
provision C.2.1, which states that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP is both our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and is responsible for the
overall management of the Group and directing the strategic
development and business plans of the Group.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same individual would enable
the Company to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and
effectiveness when formulating business strategies and executing
business plans. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprises experienced
and high-calibre individuals. The Board currently comprises four
executive Directors (including Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP) and
six independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition. The Board will
nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board
from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set forth in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions of the Directors. Employees of the Group
(the “Relevant Employees”) who, because of their office or
employment, are likely to possess inside information in relation to
the Company or its securities are also subject to compliance with
the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all directors,
each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022. No incident
of non-compliance of the Model Code by the Relevant Employees
was noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022 and on 17 February 2023, the
Company was notified about dealing by his spouse of Mr. CHAN
Chi Leong, one of the independent non-executive directors. As
informed by the director, the trade was conducted through an
online brokerage platform that was operated by his spouse of Mr.
CHAN, and involved 8,000 shares of the Company at a total sale
price of approximately HK$38,240. The Company notes that such
dealing was done during the “blackout period” without the prior
knowledge or approval from Mr. CHAN, but such dealing was not
in compliance with the Model Code.

The Company will continue with its practice of (i) reminding the
directors of their obligations to not deal in the securities of the
Company going forward, including dealings by the directors’
spouse, or by or on behalf of any minor child and any other
dealings in which for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO he is
or is to be treated as interested, and (ii) organizing trainings to
directors of the Company to understand their obligations under
the Listing Rules as well as their obligations under the Model
Code. In addition, in light of the said incident, it has arranged for
trainings to be delivered to all directors again on the Model Code
restrictions. Mr. CHAN has also confirmed that he has reminded
his spouse that he is subject to dealing restrictions under the
Model Code and he will: (1) remind his spouse about the periods
where dealing in shareholdings by him under the Model Code will
be restricted, and (2) require his spouse to place a moratorium in
her respective investment accounts on all trading activities relating
to the Company’s securities during the until the end of the
“blackout period”.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises ten members as follows:

Executive Directors:
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. LI Xiaoting
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent
Mr. LI Chunshan

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen GBS JP (Vice Chairman)

Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS OSt/ JP

Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung
Mr. CHAN Chi Leong

Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang

Mr. IP Shu Kwan Stephen GBS JP

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and
Company Secretary” on pages 38 to 50 of this annual report. Save
as disclosed in the section headed “Profile of Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary” in this annual report,
the Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other as at 31 December
2022.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are served by Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP and have
not been segregated as required under code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code. The Board is of the view that such arrangement
provided the Group with strong and consistent leadership to the
Company and allowed for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions as well as execution of long term business
strategies.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

With their different experiences and expertises, the independent
non-executive Directors supervise and provide independent
judgement to the Board on strategic and significant matters. The
Board seeks to develop an effective working environment for
the executive and independent non-executive Directors so as to
improve the quality of the decisions made by the Board without
constraining the independent views of the independent non-
executive Directors. Regular Board meetings were held during
the year with open discussions between the executive Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors to enhance
communication and effective working relationship. The Board had
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s mechanism to ensure
independent views and inputs being available to the Board for the
year ended 31 December 2022, and considered it effective.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code requires that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of
the executive Directors is appointed under a service contract for a
term of three years from 13 December 2020 which is terminable
by either party by giving three months’ written notice to the
other party. Each of the independent non-executive Directors is
appointed under a letter of appointment for a term of three years
which is terminable by either party by giving three months” written
notice to the other party.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following
annual general meeting after his/her appointment and they will be
subject to re-election at such meeting.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board, led by the Chairman, Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis,
determines and monitors the overall strategy and policies, annual
budgets and business plans, evaluates the performance of the
Group, and supervises the management of the Company.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among
other things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review
of the corporate and financial policies, review and assessment
of the Company’s financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems and the oversight of the management of
the Group’s business and affairs.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company as well as the services and advice from the senior
management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to
the Company.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to the
management of the Group, who possesses extensive operating
experience and industry knowledge, and also instructs the
management to implement the Board’s decisions and resolutions.

The Board reserves its powers over decision of all major matters
which include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of substantial shareholder(s)
or Director(s)), financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board had
reviewed the rules of the 2022 Share Award Scheme, including its
aim, the eligible participants under the scheme and the terms of
grant of Awards, the details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “The 2022 Share Award Scheme” in the Report of the
Directors.
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Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
selection criteria and nomination procedures adopted to guide the
nomination committee of the Company to select and recommend
candidates for directorship so as to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
nomination committee of the Company in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate:

o reputation for integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

° (in case of independent non-executive Directors) requirement
for the Board to have independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

o any potential contributions that the candidate can bring to
the Board;

o commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest; and

o any other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business operation and environment as well as
the industry in which the Company operates.

The nomination committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such
as referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from the
shareholders of the Company with due consideration given to the
criteria which include but are limited to the above-mentioned.
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The nomination committee or the company secretary of
the Company shall convene a meeting upon receipt of any
nominations of candidates to evaluate such candidates based on
the selection criteria mentioned above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship. The nomination committee
should then recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate for directorship. For any person that is nominated by
a shareholder of the Company for election as a Director at the
general meeting, the nomination committee and/or the Board
should make recommendation to the shareholders in respect of
the proposed election of Director at the general meeting. The
Board should have the final decision on all matters relating to
its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any
general meeting.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

All Directors have provided to the Company with their training
records and such records have been maintained by the Company
for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
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Summary of training received by the Dire

ended 31 December 2022 according to the records as provided by

the Directors is as follows:

BERERRENLE  ESREZE2022F
NRANBUEFEMEZHFINREZOT -

ctors during the year

Training on regulatory
updates, corporate
governance, inside

information or other

relevant topics

EHEEE -
TEER - REHEES
Name of Directors H i A5 B8 E A A 3 F
Executive Directors BITES
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP MIBEFREE & (K FigL) 4
Ms. LI Xiaoting FHEZL v
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent THEE v
Mr. LI Chunshan ZHIEE 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors B I TEE
Dr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen GBS JP R REE L (2EHEZE K FHL) v
Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald SBS OSt/ JP TEREE(REHNEE  BHHECE v
17~ X FA+)
Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung BRELEE 4
Mr. CHAN Chi Leong PR A v
Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang R+ v
Mr. IP Shu Kwan Stephen GBS JP BEBEE (2 EHEE K FHL) 4
BOARD COMMITTEES ExeZ8g

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website
(www.cmereye.com) and the HKEx's website (www.hkexnews.hk)
and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out in the Corporate
Information on page 2 of this annual report.
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Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review,
supervise, and assist the Board in providing an independent view
of, our financial reporting processes, and internal control and risk
management systems, as well as to oversee the audit process,
review our annual and interim financial statements, provide advice
and comments to the Board on matters related to corporate
governance, develop, implement and review a policy on engaging
external auditors to supply non-audit services, approve the scopes
and fees for non-audit assignments, and reporting to our board
and perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the
Board from time to time. PricewaterhouseCoopers will confirm
its independence before accepting the engagement of non-audit
services.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings to review the interim and annual financial results
and reports and significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls, the risk management and
internal control systems and the effectiveness of the internal audit
function, appointment of external auditors and relevant scope of
work.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
had 2 meetings with the external auditors of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
(i) develop and review the policies and the structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; (ii)
evaluate the performance of, and make recommendations on the
remuneration packages and long-term incentive compensation
or equity plans for, the Directors and senior management; and
(iii) evaluate and make recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements.

The Board has adopted new terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in relation to the review and approval of
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules with effect from 1 January 2023, incorporating amendments
to the Listing Rules which took effect on the same date.

The Remuneration Committee had not recommended any grant
of share options or share awards during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting to review and make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, and the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management and other related matters. Major work
completed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
included: (i) determined the policy for the remuneration of
executive directors and (ii) assessed performance of executive
directors. Details of the Director’ remuneration are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of other members of the senior management by
bands for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

REZE2022F12A31BHILEE  H#E
BeCRT-XREF UBRITEAQFOEH
BB R REE EShaREBEENT I
FBULMEGHBEEY R AESFEIR
HEZ FTHZETRFATHKNEET
TEBIE « () BENTTE B M3 BN EE T BOR X (i)
FERITEENRE - EE2HIFBIERN
A PIEIRRMFED » I RIBLEEAR
SPRIEISTFANMESCFEEN 516 - BLE 2022412
A3BLEFE =SREEEEMKBES
ERBDNFEFHFNET DT -

Number of

individual

Remuneration band (in HKD) HFMER (GBT) AE

2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001 £ 2,500,000 2
Nomination Committee REEZE®

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment and
removal of Directors and senior management, and on matters of
succession planning.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to professional
qualifications, regional and industry experience, educational and
cultural background, skills, industry knowledge, reputation and
gender. The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee held 1 meeting to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and review of re-
appointment of retiring Directors.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and the guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) as required by the Listing Rules which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Board
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. The Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity when selecting candidates from a
number of perspectives based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Board has reviewed the appropriateness of an express
diversity quota or measurable objective in achieving board
diversity, and noted that currently the Board has members of
both genders. In light of the above, the Board has concluded that
selection of Board members should continue to be based on the
above said diversity perspectives instead of setting an express
quota or objective. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness as appropriate.

As at 31 December 2022, 80% of Directors, 50% of our
senior management members and 29% of our total workforce
were male. The Board has reviewed the appropriateness of a
measurable objective in achieving gender diversity in our senior
management member and total workforce, and noted that
currently the we attain a gender ratio of 50% or more for female
employees at senior management level and general workforce.
In light of the above, the Board has concluded that selection of
senior management members and general employees should
continue to be based on the above said diversity perspectives
instead of setting an express quota or objective. The Board will
monitor the gender ratio in our workforce from time to time.
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TEEERRE
ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EERZEENENHERR
COMMITTEE MEMBERS
The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, ZEEREE2022F12A31HILFESE
Board committee meetings and the annual general meeting of the THARRRIESESHE EF8LEETT

Company held during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set BUARBREBFRENHELRHAT
out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

R/ Ry

Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit  Annual General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Exps Exg REZEE FMzSe ERZEEE RREAFKE
Executive Directors
HITEF
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis JP 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1n
MBS & (- F#1) &R @R @R
Ms. LI Xiaoting 4/5 N/A n N/A 01
FERLL @A TEA
Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent 3/5 N/A N/A N/A 01
FHEBE iR NiER ki
Mr. LI Chunshan 3/5 N/A N/A N/A 01
FRIL%EE NiEH NiEA TEH
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Dr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen GBS JP 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 17
BERERL (2LHER X F#T) TEM TEm TR
Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald $BS OS¢/ JP 4/5 N/A n 212 1n
FEREE TEA

(REAEE - BHBE LD
AF#HL)

Mr. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung 5/5 " N/A 2/2 171
BRELE NiEA
Mr. CHAN Chi Leong 5/5 n n N/A 1n
REREE TiEHA
Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang 5/5 " N/A 2/2 01
Rkt Nk
Mr. IP Shu Kwan Stephen GBS JP 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1n
ENREE (REHEE A T#HL) TEM TEm TER
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 113 to 122 of
this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration that should be paid to the
external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for
the audit of the year ended 31 December 2022 and non-audit
services is set out below:

Services rendered

Friz R AR %

Corporate Governance Report
EEERBME

EETRYBBRNEE

EEABRFEEETREARAIEZE2022
F12AMBIEFENMBRE -

ERUARANBHARAFELLRIBEK
EARMNEHXBERBEMNEATHEENE

RARBY ZBMEREHTBRERS
EEMERHNAFREIIZEZEI22E
I8 L A% SRR R R o

BB &

FRELE2022F 12 A3 B IEFENET R
FEFE AT AR T 1 A AN 2 5] #Y 40 36 4% B AT 28
BiokE e Al BAT S SR E & 2 T 5
R

Fees Paid/Payable
Bt ENER

HK$000
FET

Audit service Eit iR 2,280
Non-audit Services FERET R 75
— tax compliance service —HBERRS 136

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company’s assets and the interests of shareholders. The systems
of risk management and internal control of the Group are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve corporate objectives and only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company on 22 March 2023, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting function. The Board also conducted a review of
those relating to the ESG performance and reporting.

[ B B B I A SR 4
EECEEABFERNEREE R REHE
FIRGARERRRNEE KR AER -
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The main features of the Group’s risk management and internal
control structure are as follows:

- Well-defined organisational structure with appropriate
segregation of duties, limit of authority, reporting lines and
responsibilities to minimise risk of errors and abuse;

- Clear and written policies and procedures have been
established and regularly reviewed for major functions and
operations;

- Important business functions or activities are managed by
experienced, qualified and suitably trained staff;

- Continuous monitoring of the key operating data and
performance indicators, timely and up-to-date business and
financial reporting, immediate corrective actions are taken
where necessary; and

- Internal audit function to perform independent appraisal of
major operations on an ongoing basis.

A risk-based approach is adopted to ensure that a methodical
coverage of the Group’s operations and resources are focused on
high risk areas. The internal audit team takes the lead to evaluate
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group by
reviewing the major operations of the Group on a rotational basis
every year with review period covering the full financial year. The
review covers all material controls including financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management. Review results and
recommendations in the form of written reports are submitted to
the Audit Committee for discussion and review. Follow up actions
will be taken up by the internal audit team to ensure that findings
previously identified have been properly resolved. The Board had
discussed with the external auditor and, based on the written
reports of internal audit review results and recommendations,
the findings on follow up actions and recommendation by the
Audit Committee, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2022, and considered them effective and adequate.
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The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. With a view to
identifying, handling and disseminating inside information, various
procedures including pre-clearance on dealing in the securities
of the Company by designated members of management,
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions to relevant directors and employees, restrictions on
access to financial records and dissemination of information on
a need-to-know basis, along with the enhanced measures taken
subsequent to the dealing by the spouse of Mr. CHAN Chi Leong,
as set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 96 of
this report, have also been implemented by the Group to guard
against possible mishandling of inside information within the
Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Wa Ping, who is the Company secretary of the
Company, reports directly to the Board and is responsible
for, inter alia, providing updated and timely information to all
Directors from time to time. Mr. Chan is a full time employee of
the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Chan has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures
to enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and communicates efficiently with
the Company. Under the Articles of Association and the relevant
policies and procedures of the Company, the shareholders enjoy,
among others, the following rights:
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Convene an extraordinary general meeting/put
forward proposals:

Any one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held with two months after
the deposit of such requisition at the Company’s Hong
Kong office at Suite 1535, Central Building, 1-3 Pedder
Street, Central, Hong Kong. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements in accordance with the
requirements under Article 58 of the Articles of Association
once a valid requisition is received.

propose a person for election as a Director:

As regards to the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to “Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as director”
under the section headed “Corporate Governance” of the
Company’s website at www.cmereye.com.

put forth enquiries to the Company:

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board'’s
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary
at the Company’s Hong Kong office at Suite 1535, Central
Building, 1-3 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong.

1.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to enable shareholders to engage actively
with the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders
in an informed manner. The Board will review Shareholders’
Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other extraordinary general meetings,
financial reports and other publications and communications of
the Company. At the annual general meetings, Directors (or their
delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

The Company’s website (www.cmereye.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of
the company to the shareholders, other stakeholders and
investors, including the Company’s financial reports (interim
and annual reports), annual general meetings and other general
meetings notices, announcements and circulars, its corporate
communications and other corporate publications. The Company
will also update the website information from time to time to
inform the shareholders and investors of the latest development
of the Company.

The contact details of the company secretary and its registrar
are set out in the Company’s website in order to enable the
Shareholders to make any query that they may have with respect
to the Company. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Shareholders
may at any time make a request for the Company’s information
to the extent such information is publicly available and the
Company shall make a reasonable effort in addressing those
requests. In addition, shareholders are, at any time, welcome to
raise questions to the Board and management by writing to the
company secretary.

Upon reviewing the Group’s communication strategies with
shareholders and the various channels for shareholders to express
their views to the Company, the Board is of the view that the
shareholders’ communication policy is implemented properly and
effectively.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2022. A
resolution will be proposed in the upcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to amend the articles of association of
the Company to, among other things, (i) bring the existing articles
of association in alignment with the Core Shareholder Protection
Standards set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules, and (i) make
other housekeeping amendments. Further details will be set out
in the shareholders’ circular for the upcoming annual general
meeting to be despatched to the shareholders in due course.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group values the concept of sustainability and we have
been actively fulfilling our corporate social responsibilities.
The Board is dedicated to improving and developing the ESG
strategy, which is in the best interests of our stakeholders. The
ESG Working Group is responsible for supporting the Board in
implementing ESG-related strategies and targets, and promoting
the implementation of measures in relation to the ESG issues
identified. The Group have identified the following ESG issues
as being “vital”, and they include health and safety of services,
clients’ privacy and data protection, anti-corruption practices,
hazardous waste management, safe working environment and
labour standard. Among those areas that were identified as “vital”,
we have adopted numerous specific policies and goals that would
enable us to build a more sustainable business and bring greater
benefits for the society as a whole. Further information on the
Group's performance and achievements can be found in our
Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S
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To the Shareholders of C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of C-MER Eye Care Holdings
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 123 to 259, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R S ETE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

AREEEE B

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as B EES PR N ERETTEERENT

follows:

e Purchase price allocation for the acquisition of Shenzhen o WERYITEREEMEBRKRN AR

Aikangjian Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries

o Impairment assessment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter

HEETEE

REANEMBARMNBEEB DA
o EEREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNEFNMEEFERENSR

Purchase price allocation for the acquisition
of Shenzhen Aikangjian Group Co., Ltd and its
subsidiaries
KEFRNTEERENEERGER AR R K
BARMNBEESER

Refer to Note 4 (Critical accounting estimates and
judgments), Note 16 (Intangible assets) and Note 36
(Business combination) to the consolidated financial
statements.
LERAVBIRERW T4 (EESFHEE R HED -
Mix1e(BRERE) RME36 (EBEH) -

On 17 February 2022, the Group completed the
acquisition of 61.5% equity interest in Shenzhen
C-MER Aikangjian Dental Group Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Shenzhen Aikangjian Group Co., Ltd)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Shenzhen CKJ
Group”), a group of entities principally engaged
in the provision of dental services in PRC (the
“Acquisition”). Management has engaged an
independent qualified valuer to assist them in
identifying intangible assets and to perform the
valuations of the identified assets and liabilities of
the acquired companies at the acquisition date,
based on which management performed a purchase
price allocation exercise for the Acquisition,
which resulted in recognition of intangible assets
of approximately HK$289,990,000, mainly
representing brand name.

20222 B17H » AEBEERUKERINTHIG
EREOEEEERLAA AIMAINTERES
MEBEROER DR REKE AR (G R
FREEEE|) RPBEEI2UXFRE|THRBEN
EREE) M615%kE((WEBSE]) - EEE
EREBIAERGLEMRHEREERNETLE
ENHEERHMEBARNEERNEERERE
EITHE URERN EEECHKESEE
TTREED K SRR ET & E# 289,990,000
BT (XERmEETE) -

Our procedures in relation to the accounting for the
Acquisition included the following:

BPSEBEERZ S BRERT NIIEERF

o We obtained an understanding of the management's
internal control on the preparation of cash flow
projection and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud,

o BZMEREAAR @ RETEN NI EZERSG
B WEREEMFATHREENEELEMESR
R EZKF (NEMEE THREE BLEE
ERERLIRFZENGRE) @ FFEEBRER
PRt ) (& 5 LB

° We assessed the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external valuer engaged by
management;

o HMAMEEEMBEBMNEGERMZBEIREE &
HIEEREIEE

° We obtained the valuation report in relation to the
purchase price allocation for the Acquisition, and
engaged our in-house valuation experts to assess
the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
adopted by management and the reasonableness of
discount rates used;

e HMERSAMMUBEFEBREES K2 HERS
WEFAANRGEEZERTHERBARAGEET X
EERE MARNBEERREEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

REEITEE

Purchase price allocation for the acquisition

of Shenzhen Aikangjian Group Co., Ltd and its
subsidiaries (Continued)
WERITEERERNSEEROGER D =R EHKH
BRARANBEESE(E)

Goodwill of HK$290,286,000, being the excess
of considerations transferred over the fair value of
identified net assets acquired was recognised.

%% 290,286,000 /& 7T -+ BNEE 3 1) (X (B R 38 P U
EHFEENRTENBS D HER -

Significant judgments and estimates were involved in
the fair value assessment of the identified intangible
assets arising from the Acquisition. These significant
judgments and estimates include the adoption of
appropriate valuation methodologies and the use
of key assumptions in the valuation (mainly annual
revenue growth rate and discount rates), which are
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty.
WHREREMELZE#AELEEZ AT E A
N EAHIE KA - R FEAHE R AR
REERAEEGEEREABARBR(EER
FEBAEBRERFAX) AR E M T HE
EM e

We focused on the purchase price allocation for the
Acquisition because the estimation of fair value is
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty,
and of the significant of the amounts involved.
The inherent risk in relation to the assessment is
considered significant due to significant judgments
involved in assumptions used in the valuation model.
BPEINMUBEECBEESE  ARMAF
ARPEXSELATREERM S ENERE
e FEAFENEERRREA/SELN - THR
HEEPT AR S R EARFE -

ARENEE B

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFNMEEFERESN SR

We challenged and assessed the reasonableness of
the key assumptions in determining the fair value
of identified intangible assets including various
scenarios of achievement of net profit targets, based
on historical performance and approved budget, with
the involvement of our inhouse valuation experts;
EABEEZERZLET  RIRBBERSE LK
EHMBRER  BRUNGETECIEDNEVEEZR
FENFABRRRECEERE BEEZFEMNE
B2 ZEBE

We evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of reasonable
changes in assumptions on the identified intangible
assets;
BAFEEREERARBRERMETZIBREDN
ZEBREE  THREANEBILEEZBRR2EBE
s -7

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the fair value of the identified
intangible assets; and
BMEZEERREREEA T E 2 EX AR
54

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related
to the Acquisition in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.

B EENBERERORERERMBRSE
ERMEEERRE °

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
the estimation of fair value of intangible assets identified
in relation to the Acquisition was supported by available
evidence.

ERFBTNERF RAARRRERBEEEEZE &
PIBLEERNTEMEL ZEETBEATK -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

REEITEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill
EERERR

Refer to note 4 (Critical accounting estimates and
judgments) and note 16 (Intangible assets) to the
consolidated financial statements.

LR EMBREM T4 (EESFHEET RHE)
R 16 (BMEEE) -

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had goodwill
of approximately HK$540,684,000, representing
19% of the Group’s total assets.
R2022%F12A31H ESENEENR
540,684,000/ 7T - 1 EEREBEEN19% °

Goodwill is subject to impairment assessment at
least annually or when there is an indication of
impairment.

HEEVEBFRNERRETREETREE -

Management performed goodwill impairment
assessment on each cash-generating units in
Mainland China and Hong Kong and assessed their
recoverable amounts based on the value-in-use
calculations. This assessment involved significant
judgements in adopting the underlying assumptions
for the calculations.
EREHPELEARRELEMETEHER
BFE  WARBEAEEAEMEETKESRE -
b AR RN ET B B MR R AR R 5 M B K A

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculations include among others, compound
revenue growth rates, terminal revenue growth rate
and discount rate.
AEEREEREANERERERE (HT 1K)
BEWABREE  SERPABRERIBEE -

The recoverable amounts of these cash-generating
units estimated by management exceeded their
carrying values and the directors were of the
opinion that no impairment was necessary as at 31
December 2022.
ZERCEXBUHEREGEN KL SR
HEREE REERR/N2022F12A310H
BRE -

Independent Auditor’s Report
R S ETE S

ARENEE B

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFNMEEFERESN SR

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill included the following:

BMREERERENENREFEEATEE

o We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment of goodwill and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud,;

o HMEMEIRER MEERERN RIS KT
B WiEBE B M TREENEEREMES
Bl A ZHKF (EFMNE  TEE Z2PHLIE
BERLIBMFOZERE) TEEAERR AN E
AR

° We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment
of impairment of goodwill to assess the effectiveness
of management'’s estimation process; and

o EMEBEREHBRENGIELFE - AL
EREMETBRENKY : &

o We evaluated management’s impairment assessment
including cash flow forecast, and the process by
which they were drawn up, and tested the underlying
calculations.

e HMUEBENRENH (BERSMIEN) RE
ERBRELTE  WARBMEAE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

REEITEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)
BERENR ()

We focused on this area due to the high degree of
estimation uncertainty involved in the estimation of
recoverable amount being subject to. The inherent
risk in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill is considered significant due to subjectivity
of assumptions used including estimated growth
rates and discount rate which are subject to change
of economic environment in the future.
BMETRBERE - DEREFAINEEEES
BRESMET Y - BRFAEANRSR (B
SIS RERERE) HEBREIRRLEHEREN
Bl E ABEEEERETHOESRRE
WEBEKX o

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ARENEE B

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFNMEEFERESN SR

Specific work we performed over the impairment
assessment included:

BAEREMSETHABTIFRE -

o Comparing management'’s forecasted revenue and
profit margins with historical performance;

o RKEEEMNFRAMSRMNEREBERRELE:

o Comparing the management’s key assumptions for
discount rate in the forecast with industry data; and

e HEBEMEAFRMRENFTEBRRUEITEER
fELLE : &

o Obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis over the
key assumptions of the cash flow forecast to analyse
the potential impact of a range of possible outcomes.

e EREBREYRSARTAUNEEZRROGRESN -
AT E BRI pe i REVEEZE -

We also considered whether the judgements made in
selecting the growth rates and discount rate would give rise
to indicators of possible management bias.
BAMZRERFERILERERAENHEB TSI
EREARFARELNIR -

Based on the above, we considered that management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the impairment
assessment of goodwill were supportable by the evidence
obtained and procedures performed.

RIBELA Pt - HMIR R - BIEE R B R EN G ER
BT R R R G R PTESE R KA RITEF X -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
R S ETE S

Hib&#
ERARESFAHHEBENAE -HMEH
BRFHEANMEER  BETREZAY
BaR LRI ZBE RS -

BB GAMBRRNERL TRERM
BR RIS HRFEMENEREIN
FAMEEER

AEMEREMBHRROESAMS - RMA
METEHELBER FilBiEd - Z
BEMENEZGEGEMBHRR AT FE
BABRETATHRHNBERFEEREER
FUFHFEERBERBANBER

ERBASATHOIE WRMIREM
ERFEERERRL  HMBTEREZ
EE-EENHE HMLEBEFREEERE
WE -

EERERZEERGESUBERR
ARENEME

ERAEEARERBEERGHMAER
M E BB REERRER R AGODH
BEATHEBEEMTENEEMHRE
THERSRESSMBHREROEETT
£ i 70 KR SR AR T 28 B0 B KB R R
PR NBEHI B R -

REGEMBHRRE EFREME &
SEFELENRE N TEBRBRLTH
BEREKLEEHNER URERFE
REFETER BIREFAEH AR
BERIFIULLE  SFEEMEROR
BHR-

EZZBERAERE

BEXEENMBHRS
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

BRBMRES RS M B RRAREN
B

BHWER RYUYRAMBHRABERSD
THFHEERREFRBRM BB ERER
RAEBMBAERE THARREMAER
MEZBE RS - HPIER BT (ERERE)
BERMWER Rtz RHmEFIEE
1t B #) - AT 2B AF R AT FE
HMALTB FSAETMET A ERE
ERAKFHRE  ETERERRELR
RHEAETHE  ERX - BAHERBRM
TF B AR BE 35 3R o $R AR IR 7T BE B BRRF =X
HREIE  MRAEEHAECMEBIELR
MIRF LR B iR A M IS MR E R & KEL
BB WKL RERE - AIAR
BRERIRE AR EE X ©

ERBEB BB EAETETAERES
B ERE XA  URFEXIBEREE -
HAPIIR -

o R REFAE B ERFE S R AR 1T B ERAR
é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ikﬁ&ﬁkmﬂk
FEF RBITEE AR S LA
ARERTERFEE BT RE  E
ARFEROER - ARERFEA LS
REBH BE - ERER ERRM -
SOEBRAIES 2 £ Bt Ree
I R BRFF 1 B B /0 BB K AR PR i A R
BEmRAEEREERMEBNEKX

SRR PR LAY R LB o

o THRERHHEBEM AT
rEERER ﬁ‘l’iﬁ“ﬁ’]%uﬁif 1BH
B IR &SR A ERE B R A U
BRER -

o HEEEMRASABENREMER
tEH G FHEFTMERBREN SN -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

Independent Auditor’s Report
R S ETE S

BRBMRES RS M B RRAREN
B (%)

e HEERAKELKZSHTERNGE
MR AR - RIBFTERMEARE
BERRFEEEARNBERABNE
ATHEEG Mgy &%
BOFELERNEEEAEE -
REMABA/FEERTHEEN  BIA
VEEGZHHRSTRBEREIR
RAEMBHRRTOEBEE -WEE
BRI ETR  ARFEERRIEE
REER - HAINERITERZHED
WE B IEFRESNERIIRE - A -
AREEBELFERATELEH EFET

b 4 43 g A
REIFEEE -

o HESRAVBHRRNEEIETA
BEERAT BREREEER  URER
EUMBRERELTAERRABRIS R
ESER

e 3 ERERNEBERBAXBEHNUE
BRERRR EENETRE A
BHGAMBHRRERER - HMA
BiEE EBERMTEESEA TE-

BREMER RMEEZZ B SBBA
FMETHE  RERH BEXBRABRSE
BIERAFIETET T B H A BB S 8 E R
ERBRRE -

BHTREZZESRIERH  SHARM
ENAERBLMNHEBEXERER
WEFEEBBEALEEBEMERSETE
BB ENMERERREMER UK
EEAOBAT  BBREBE D RRMNTT
B ERPHIEE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF REE BT RSB HRRAEN

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1E(#E)
(CONTINUED)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, MEEZEZESBRNEERF  RPEE

we determine those matters that were of most significance in ML EBHRNRALE ST BRENETRR
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current EZ AMEKERETEIE  RMATZ
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these MM ER R ZEEE  RIFEEER
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes TAFLAHABRBZESEE JEBHER
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare MERT MREEFEHERMBREHE
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be BEFHEEKNEHZRRBBEELENRAR
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences Mz BPVAETEEREF B BEZEIE -
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HEABYIZBMBRENETEEERA

auditor’s report is Kong Ling Yin, Raymond. BIISE °
PricewaterhouseCoopers BEERKESTMEBHAHR
Certified Public Accountants HEEEE

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023 & 2023F3H31H
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AMEXEREK

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31B8LEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET FET
Revenue Wz 5 1,731,903 1,112,577
Cost of revenue HERA 8 (1,284,206) (754,349)
Gross profit EF 447,697 358,228
Other income H AU A 6 28,654 10,580
Selling expenses HEMY 8 (126,774) (126,442)
Administrative expenses THAX 8 (345,347) (234,115)
Other (losses)/gains, net Hip (F518) Wzt 58 7 (40,712) 16,492
_Operating (loss)/profit ME®E/ ™8 (36482 24743
Finance income IR TN 7,112 4,475
Finance costs B IS AR (19,656) (12,995)
_financecosts,net o MEBAOAEE 0 (12544)  (8520)
_Shareof profitofassociates . ZEBERENE 39 37799 . 10,652
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEH A (B1E)
F 8 (11,227) 26,875
Income tax expense FTiS i X 11 (34,998) (10,645)
_(Loss)/profit for theyear = FAUEE/M® 46225 16,230
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: U T & FEEER
(B8], /78
— Equity holders of the Company —RREEREAA (21,875) 21,861
— Non-controlling interests —IFfEfiE s (24,350) (5,631)
(46,225) 16,230
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Ht2m (FE) WA
Item that will not be reclassified to profit TE2EHN D EZ B
or loss HH
Change in fair value of financial assets BATEF AR MEERK
at fair value through other AR CREENATE
comprehensive income ZE) 13,762 -
Currency translation difference I E E T (3,534) -
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to ~ A # B & EH 7 E 157
profit or loss #E
Currency translation differences NI IR R (86,492) 19,069
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ERHMZE(EER)
for the year WA (76,264) 19,069
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Vﬁé‘%ﬁl&éi

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31B8LEE

2022
2022 F
HK$000
FET

2021
20214
HK$°000
FHET

Total comprehensive (loss)/income ERE2E(ER),/
for the year ONE (122,489) 35,299
Total comprehensive (loss)/income forthe T &FELEER2E (&
year attributable to: B) A
— Equity holders of the Company —ARAERFTAA (94,605) 40,286
— Non-controlling interests — RS (27,884) (4,987)
(122,489) 35,299
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit HFRAKRQFTEZRIFEAE
attributable to equity holders of the 1 (B8) /FENER
Company during the year (expressed in (E#8) &7
HK cents per share) (AZRBWIIR)
- Basic —HAK 12 (1.77) 1.90
- Diluted —#% 12 (1.77) 1.90
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income A48 mREEREEEM i — 0 RE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMEARRE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILLEE

2022 AOYA
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B RFE 13 392,333 301,961
Investment property KEME 15 13,038 -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 665,308 599,325
Intangible assets mEAE 6 821,393 203,961
Interest in associates REE R B E RS 39 41,962 24,814
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEGFAEMER
other comprehensive income AR EE E 22 74,167 52,575
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTHEE 28 6,937 10,971
Deposits and prepayments Re RIENRIE 20 29,992 15,881
2,045,130 1,209,488
Current assets REEE
Inventories ra 17 51,378 33,444
Trade receivables B 5 MW FE 19 47,133 17,980
Deposits, prepayments and Be  BNREREM
other receivables JEUR FRIR 20 52,795 240,489
Amounts due from associates FE B & R R SRIE 35 6,739 12,113
Financial asset at fair value through BATEFAEBRENE
profit or loss mhEE 23 22,484 55,704
Short-term deposits RETFER 21 31,330
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEEY 21 644,698 386,659
856,557 746,389
Total assets WmEE 2,901,687 1,955,877
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to equity holders A F#EFFHE AEL
of the Company fEm
Share capital LN 24 126,656 115,034
Reserves fE 1,739,405 1,216,196
1,866,061 1,331,230
Non-controlling interests AR A 38 132,178 6,013
Total equity RS 1,998,239 1,337,243
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILLEE

2022 AYA
2022 & 2021 £
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Other payables H i FE < 5K IE 30 2,968 3,657
Loans from non-controlling interests JEIER R B R 35 21,215 7,595
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 281,937 198,616
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEAMEHRARE 28 72,530 518
e 378,650 210,386
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables Z S ENFKIE 29 45,306 39,866
Accruals and other payables FEETE R K EAM
JE T RIB 30 117,112 79,643
Contract liabilities EHAE 5 39,490 10,728
Borrowings BN 37 34,257 179,406
Amounts due to non-controlling interests & < JE42 AR 4 25 7R T8 35 154,704 3,961
Amount due to a related party JE 1~ — 44 B B 5 RKOE 35 - 33
Current income tax liabilities BIERFT ISR A E 18,851 8,537
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 115,078 86,074
U 524,798 408,248
Total liabilities HaE 903,448 618,634
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 2,901,687 1,955,877
The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 259 were FI123BEF29ENBEMBHREER

approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and were

signed on its behalf.

LAM Shun Chiu Dennis
R JIE
Executive Director

HITEE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Share
capital

(Note 24(a))

Share
premium

Kt

Attrbutable to owners of the Company

Statutory
surplus Share-based
resene  Exchange  payment
Note 25) eserve Teserve

EREh

Ll
()
H

Treasury
shares

L1y
HS 0

REERBER

Non-
controling

Subtotal interests

Asat 1 January 2021 RUNE1518 475 107,69 - 11,746 20,548 2,6% 5912 1294325 296 129731
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Proftfor the year iR - - - - - - Nl 21,861 (5631 16230
Other comprehensive oss 4]
Curtency trangton dfferences erEzE - - - - 1B - R 154 64 19069
Transactions with eqity holders ERERAANRS
Didend paid (Note 27 EfiRe (Hz2) - - - - - - % R S
Issance of shares T 114 5970 - - - - - 6,084 - 6,084
Isuance of shars upon exercis of pre-PO )EAE/” HEENEREENRR
share optons Note 26) %Hﬂ (1526) 1 - - - - - - 1 - 1
Isuance of shares upon exercse of post-PO RERDPRELEREENFR
share optons Note 26) BB s 78 9,053 - - - - %] - 9231
Shre-based payments (Note 26) WA BEROH (R 20) - - - - - 455 - Y3
Transactons with non-controling ineress ERERERNRS
- Capital injection -1 - - - - - - - - 8120 8120
~ Acquision ofsubsidres -UEHERT - - - - - - - - 1w 1562
~Disposel of subsidary -HERERT - - - - - - - - (158
Transfer to tatutry resrve HRTETRE - - - 1330 - -1 - - -
As at 31 December 2021 RUNENR3MA 15,034 1,086,722 - 13,076 8973 26950 50475 1331230 6013 1337243
Attributable to owners of the Company
LOEL LN
Statutory
Share Treasury — surplus Share-hased Non-
capital Share shares  reseve  Exchange  payment Other  Retained controlling
(Note 24(@))  premium  (Note24(b))  (Note25) reserve reserve reserve  eamings  Subtotal interests Total
HERS DU ]
it EHRf L) FER
(Wawe)  REEE (WEub) (WEs) HERE  AREE  HeRE  REEA it R 4B
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSUOD  HKSUO0  HKSUDD  HKSUOD  HKSURD  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSUDD  HKSUOOO
fér TR L T FEn FER & 4 fE TR FE
Asat 1 January 2022 RUnE1518 115,034 1,086,722 - 13,076 ELXE] 26950 - 50475 1331230 6013 1337283
Comprehensive loss 2ERE
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - -8 ) (4350 (d6.25)
Other comprehensive loss A2 AEE
Change in fai value offnancilasets at fair -~ RA A3 AR 2ENE
value through other comprehensve ncome  F9EBEEATER
(Note 22 (1) - - - - - - B - BR - 1R
Curency transaton cifferences NEREEE - - - - (8649 - - - (8649 (5 (9000)
Transactions with equity holders ﬂﬁﬁﬁ ABZ
Isuance of shares Bkt 1535 645603 - - - - - - 65188 - 61188
Isuance o shares upon exercise of PO RERAERERER %ﬁ
share options (Note 26) e OIGRY) Lij 785 - - - - - - in - 8n
Purchase of own shares BEO7RN - - (va) - - - - - () - ()
Share-hased payments Note 26) RAREENE
(Fi3k20) - - - - - 133 - - 133 - 133
Transactons with non-controling interests ~~ EEERERNRNG
- Capitalinjection -i& - - - - - - - - - 3458 3458
- Acquistion of subsdres (Note 36) R CHENGIES - - - - - - - - - e 579
- Diidend peid BffE - - - - - - - - N 1) I (W]
Transertostautory resenve ERTHRRR - - - 208 - - - = = =
As at 31 December 2022 RUNENF3NA 126,65 1,733,130 (29,927) 1514 (47519) 2828 13762 26,552 1,866,061 13178 1998239

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

A bsrE RS 2B K B E T — G5
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
V,w\ = EE% )ILEQ‘%

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEE
2022 2021
2022 20216
HK$'000 HKS 000
FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHERERE
Cash generated from operations TEMERE 32(a) 189,802 158,116
Income tax paid BRAEH (24,938) (13,715)
Net cash generated from operating activities REREMERLTE 164,864 144,401
Cash flows from investing activities RETHMERENE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  WERLE (89,006) (118,144)
Payments for acquisition of land use right Wi 1 s AR AR - (7,538)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVERE 16 (2,221) (3,548)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HENE  BEREERG
equipment E o] 32) 1,256 9
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEEI BN BB RE £ (94,327) (45,864)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEAF - (2,431)
Interest received EYF 8 7,112 4,475
Increase in bank deposits with original maturity FRE|EE B =/ A mR1T
over three months FREm \ (31,330) -
Payment for financial assets at fair value through ROTEF ARG EREE
profit or loss ARE S = (38,993)
Payment for financial assets at fair value through A FEF ARt 2 ERAK
other comprehensive income PREEZNR (7,830) -
Advances from associates NI - (1,008)
Capital injection by non-controlling interests to 3H¢"H§$§E MEAREE
subsidiaries - 8,120
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary Y-l B AR MBARE - (190,808)
Dividend received from an associate Bl - A FRE 20,651 -
Net cash used in investing activities REFDFMARETHE (195,695) (395,730)
Cash flows from financing activities METHAERERE
Principal elements of lease payments HENTMASEHD 32(d) (114,446) (76,097)
Interest paid on leases BTFE ) 32(d) (18,470) (12,533)
Interest paid on loan from a non-controlling interest 37 { IFH2 R 25 B SR A0 A B - (270)
Interest paid on bank loans IARITETRNHE (769) (192)
Proceeds from exercise of pre-IPO share options IFEERRHEENERE
PG E 872 17
Proceeds from exercise of post-IPO share options IFEERRHEERERE
FrigsR - 9,231
Proceeds from issuance of shares BIIRMATEFR 606,792 -
Proceeds from borrowings EGie 32() 31,260 175,113
Repayment to borrowings BEET 32(d) (193,241) (663)
Advances from a director LT 32() = 6,000
Loan advances from non-controlling interests FEREROBNER 32() 13,800 7,485
Repayment to non-controlling interests MR B B R FR (992) -
Payments for share repurchase B 17 B8 [ B9 £ 3% (29,927) -
Dividend paid to a non-controlling interest ERFERERNRS (1,200) -
Dividend paid SN 27 - (22,968)
_Net cash generated from financing activities ____ BEEBMERSERE . 2936719 85123
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRASSEMEM
equivalents D) B 262,848 (166,206)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ F15H & KR & FEY) 386,659 553,934
Currency translation differences INEMEZE (4,809) (1,069)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ERBEeREEEED 21 644,698 386,659

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

NEEARERE

FHENBRZERERLQA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRMEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 February 2016
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The address of the
Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
provision of ophthalmic services, provision of dental and
other medical services, sales of vision aid products and sales
of medical consumables in Hong Kong (“HK") and Mainland
China. The Company has been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 January
2018.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollar (“HK$") and all values are rounded to nearest
thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

— &R
FIHEBRRBEERBRAA (XA
Al R2016F 2R 1ARERSHS
EBIE 228 R ENE (1961 F £ 358 %
Bl iR a ki) ER SRS M
R BERRBRAF o AR M
#%¥E pE b ik & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

ARBB—BEREERAR BB
NE(GBIAEE]) TZXEREE
(B8] MPEANRERE - RH
FRIREMEERD - HER I
EmRIEEEEREM - 82018F 18
1SHIE  ARBEEESHER I
BRARERET °

BRBRERAN  SEMBRRUET
((Br)) 27 MAEEENEER
B TR (TET) °

TESEEBE

NG A B I
MEREEE -BREBEEBIN &
EBRRNIB2IFEERER -

21 REEE

AEEMNRETHERREERR
BEEMBREER ([BEBHEK
WEER ) REE22ER/ENFA
BHRRTERE -2 A W B W
REESRARRE LB
RAFEFAEMEZEEAN
TRMEENMEAFEFAERR
MNeMmEE BEQAFEIE B
EEMIELRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vﬁé‘ﬁ?f R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEBEE@m

BREAVHRE LR ERS
EUMBBRRBAERAETERS
At -EEEEERASE
RS IR B (F L HI B - 8
R = A2 T2 EY A T o A T RO

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or ISR J R EHERE MBS
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates BEBEATENGERERER
are significant to the consolidated financial statements MizE4 o
are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) FEERAHFaTRE
(a) New and amended standards adopted by 15T 2E B
the Group

130

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group has adopted the following new and
amended standards which are relevant to the
Group's operations and are mandatory for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2022:

AEBDERM T EARE
BrEE B NMR2022F
1RV BB IREER
BT BT 5T R AS S BT 2%

Al :

Annual Annual Improvements FESEEE BEUBR
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 HEA
Project (amendments) 2018-2020

FMEEY
# (BETA)

Amendments to  Narrow-scope amendments BERBBHRERE KRB

HKFRS 3, HKAS BIE3% &

16 and HKAS 37 BEER
F16HRE
BEERE
37H BT

Amendmentsto  COVID-19-Related Rent ERUBREE 201 FNEZ
HKFRS 16 Concessions beyond 8151652 COVID-194/

2021 EH) BEeER

Accounting Revised Accounting S ESIE5T  LEBIIgHE
Guideline 5 Guideline 5 Merger (48123]) 3|E 5% £
(Revised) Accounting for Common [EhellEok

Control Combinations frex

The adoption of the above new and amended
standards did not have any significant financial
impact on these consolidated financial
statements.

FHENBRZERERLQA

BRam Lol R R AEERT £
AV AR & B 75 % 0 AT
MEAXMBEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements \/

RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETHEHSE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEBEE@m
(b) New standards and amendments to (b) [HRRABIFTET R A&
standards not yet adopted HE-S/)

AT TR REREET
EREHAETEREE
2022F 12 A3MHILEFE
RHI AR AEEITER
BEM - ZEEAEHEAR
SHEBRE R RAKR
EHHETARKNR S
ERREATE -

There are certain new standards and
amendments to standards that are published but
not mandatory for the year ended 31 December
2022 and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards are not expected to
have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after
RT3 A5
AL L)
BHHEEN

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

ERSHENE 1 FRERUBRE
EHEBRAER 272185

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SHBRRR 2023%F1818

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BRETRAFHE 2B ERCREE: 2023%1 718
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a 1 January 2023
Single Transaction
BREHEAE 2% 2ER] BE-QHELNEEREBRBNELRE 20231418
HKFRS 17 and amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BREMBREENE1THR REREL 2023F1A1H
BRMBREENENTHR 2B
HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 — Comparative 1 January 2023

Information

BREMBREENE TR

BAERBERMBREENE T RREBNHREER
B -LEAH

2023F1A1H

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BRERAF 1K BT BaBENERARDAEREY 202461718
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BEGHENE 1R 2ER MERENERDEE 20241718
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BERMBREENE 165 2185T EREANEERRE 2024%51A1H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

yﬁé‘,ﬁw R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted (Continued)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the

FTESHBREME @)

RBEXE (%)

(b) [ RIRAAHIH 5T R A1
FTER) (8)

2.1

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after
RT3 A5
AL L)
BHHEEN

1 January 2024

Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause
ERARREST (L)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
ERMBRERAEI10RREE
SHERE 285 2B

The Group will apply the above new standard
and amendments to standards when they
become effective. No new standard and
amendments to standards is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FHENBRZERERLQA

2IHBRR-ERAHBERERERRFNEHE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

REEEEBENALAE

2024F1R1H

To be determined

N

DERNEELEIRA FHETE

B LT R R AR 2
& 5T £ 2B - AN &2 [ 5 e
PR Z AR R BB 2 1ERT o
I 8 37RT R R A 2 &
REHEHAKRENGS
MBREBEATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements \/

RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETHEHSE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 GBEARRAIRESSTE
accounting i3
(a) Subsidiaries (a) BEARA

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances, and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI") in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

MEBAREASEERE
HIESEER (BREA
BEER) - EXAKERA
SHEBREMEELERE
SrIZEH - BehiEd
HTEEREHNRIT
EZEFOHK - AAREERE
HZER-MBARBEE
HEEREASEE QL
Mz HEaAR X8
B AR L B R AR AR
BAK-

AEBERAKE G AR
XA AR (GE2HHK
F£2.3) °

SEARARZENKS
BB R X ZNARBR YW
BT AEE - BRIFZER
SRR EBREENRE
EiE - BRIKRERERIT
TAE - B R A &5
BN B EHZE -
JA B O B2 7 6% [ 3R 40 B IR
R—%-

FAETPIRE S (T3
MR ]) MM B AR R4
BN RREAZERER
RERBEHRNEEE
BARRKAEFLY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

V%? & IS SRAR L

2

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(b) Associates

(9]

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see (c) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investment is initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s interests in associates include goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition. Goodwill represents the
excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired associates at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill arising on acquisitions of
associates is included in interests in associates
and are tested for impairment as part of overall
balance.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss,
and the Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

2

FHENBRZERERLQA

FESHBEME @)

2.2

REARRANESSE
b E )

(b)

(0

A¥-7l
BENRIEASEBEHAE
kE%ﬂEIT%ﬁ¢M
S HFEESEOREE
BB-AEEREF20% &
S50% B R AEES
So BN E ZIRE LA

I>

BE:

AN 1T S TR A
EEEFEAAR (F2H
T FE() °

EEFE
RIBEEZSHE KEY

BEKAER - A EER
BEARNERBEKE
38 B R BB CER 1
RETREREE) -BmEE
U B A AN B H AR SR B R MR
BHHOHERKEBRER
Al Al BB EFEMRE
B - WBBERTDELD
BB AR S QAR
W EREBBESRN —
BRI TIRE R A, ©

AEBEEEKRIKE T KB
BRABREBEBRALNE M2
[E QNN L R g5
BRERDEMBEZEE AN E
B DU B U E R A
MR ERRREREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Equity method (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

2

FESHBREME @)

2.2

REARRARESZSTE
ENE))

(9]

(d)

it (1)
e 7S 5 [ B A A 2 A BR IR
ENEBERSFRHBBERN
ZERNED (BREEIM
H il 4 1 R B R U
H) AIREETEER
E—TEE BRIFERRK
—ERAEAEMEREL
5K e

5&

AREBBEBERRZMHE
RPHARER BB IRAE
BRZEERNED TN
HiH - REREBEETET
AEH - BRIFRR BB
EEZEEERENE
BEARKRETNER
BERER U ER{EHES
PATE (R 27K £2 8] P $% 49 IR
R—%-

HERERZE

REE TG H LK
R IFE R 5 RAF
EAEEEDHEB AN
5 BEEESEHEN
TR IR s R E (B
B 8B - A SRR R B S
AR H B - JFIERR
m A EREE T
B R EZ B ERE
BRAREHE NEILE
PRV B AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

V%? & IS SRAR L

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 GEARRAIRESSTE
accounting (Continued) B (&)

(d) HEREREZLZE (E)

(d) Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

136

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified or permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

FHENBRZERERLQA

=N SR etk v

HEESEIERTZE D
ﬁﬁ{’—ﬂ:i‘?é)\ﬁﬁj$ﬁ¢*ﬁ
ABE—HEER RESB
HAMREBERENE
ZEEQTFE mE@DESZ
BRIERAER gt HE&
ARVIEEE AR - &8
PERTHMEEMNRDEE
=ME ZAFEAEVR
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thEmEBRARZERBER
B E1R] & RE 1R a0 AR 52 B
EEELEBHEELB
BEHAAAR - EBRE
SRR E 2R A ER
MEeBETHEREEL
EREEEAR YRS
AERIFTE RS EF AT A 55 —
B RIA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESTBEBME@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Business combination 23 ¥EKEH
The Group applies the acquisition method to account RNEBFERKEEEMA XD
for all business combinations, regardless of whether afAR - THwed o WEE
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The mITASNEMEE - BHE—K
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a MEQRMEENRERRE -

subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred; o  FEEEEMAFE:

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the e WWEEBAHEARE
acquired business; EWAE:

e equity interests issued by the Group; o AKREBEFAEITHRE:

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a o HAREBLHMESNE
contingent consideration arrangement; and MEEXABEHRAFE:

P53

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in e RWEBRAFRMNEMERS
the subsidiary. ERENATE -

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and REBS O P IES ] @5 &

contingent liabilities assumed in a business ERFRENBERIABE

combination are, with limited exceptions, measured (RERBBIINMG R T) BHH

initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The RERKEERNATEE -

Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the REBRZFIEWEEERRT

acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis AR R B I RS

either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s ZEwm IR AT EIIEIEER

proportionate share of the acquired entity's net Ao RN IEERET

identifiable assets. BRIEEFERE -
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Vﬁé‘ﬁ?f R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combination (Continued)

FESHBREME @)

23 ¥BE/®E

138

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
. consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity;

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets
of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently re-measured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquired entity is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwvill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"), who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors who make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.
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2.6
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Vﬁé‘ﬁ?f R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.6 INEBE(E)
(i) XBRAEZE

(ii) Transactions and balances

140
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Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance cost. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a net
basis within “other (lossers)/gains, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

FESHBREME @)

2.6 INEBE(E)
(i) EFRF

(iij) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group's entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy), that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of

HRMEEEE AR ER
BN AEEETIHAE
BMESERRLCER
WE)  HEh \&Bﬁ‘%
MRRIRIN T T NIRE K 2
HRE

@ BHMBRKRAZS

financial position presented are translated BENEGERMBAR
at the closing rate at the date of that SR B HAUT BE 24

statement of financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each statement

(b) BEmEUEERHKA

of comprehensive income are translated &5 1R 8 R ik
at average exchange rates (unless this B (BrRIEL PR X
average is not a reasonable approximation TRUAE B E R
of the cumulative effect of the rates AR 5 B HmTTE

prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

() all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Vﬁé‘ﬁj R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESTBEBME@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.6 IEBRE @)
(iiij) Group companies (Continued) (i) FE 2 (&)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on WEEINEBETmE
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated AT EABEREZEIN
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity ERMEERBE KK
and translated at the closing rate. Currency MEXHE EANER
translation differences arising are recognised in BREZEREM2ERA
other comprehensive income. R o
(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial (iv) HESHIEBRDH
disposal E
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that R E — IR N T (B
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in HEREBR—IHEIINE
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving BHhOWEE#ER H—18A
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a B REEBEBINERE
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of M AR HIERN L E
joint control over a joint venture that includes —EFREAEBEBINE
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving BHE & DR R ZEH
loss of significant influence over an associate BHHE B RXK
that includes a foreign operation), all of the FHBEEINEBNEHE
currency translation differences accumulated in NRAMEATE IO
equity in respect of that operation attributable B) ARAAmE AE
to the owners of the Company are reclassified HZEBREBLEERA
to consolidated statement of comprehensive 2FMBELER &
income. BMOEEEATEWE
x o
In the case of a partial disposal that does WD HETEEMAE
not result in the Group losing control over a BEREEHBEBINEBD
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the BB A BRI M - Rt
proportionate share of accumulated currency PloE Rt EBREZE
translation differences are re-attributed to non- TENBNIEERER
controlling interests and are not recognised in il TR Bz N RERR o Bt AT
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that BEMIH»EE (BIIEF
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest BERAEEREERATE
in associates or joint ventures that do not result 77 sk Hh R 2 il R ) AR &
in the Group losing significant influence or REERRIHAEETER
joint control), the proportionate share of the HEREDRD)ME 1%
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified LBl D RETE R EZRE T
to consolidated statement of comprehensive EfoBEgRAEENE
income. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Land use rights and property, plant and 27 tHFERAEEYE BER

equipment
Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the right to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for a period from 13 to 40 years. Amortisation
of land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis
over the period of leases.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20-40 years
Medical equipment 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining

lease term or
estimated useful life
Office furniture and fixtures 3 years

Computer equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
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2

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Land use rights and property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within “other (losses)/gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents buildings under
construction and machineries and equipment under
installation, which is stated at historical cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on construction-in-progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are ready for use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated
in accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.7
above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental
yields, and that are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying
amount of the asset only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Investment properties are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.
They are depreciated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives or over the unexpired
periods of the leases, whichever is shorter.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.
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V%? & IS SRAR L

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESTBEBME@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Intangible assets 210 B EE
(i)  Goodwill (i) BE
Goodwill is measured as described in Note BB LM 16 FTilE = o
16. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries WK B AR EERT A
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is mIZEE BB THEE
not amortised but it is tested for impairment MG FETRENR %
annually, or more frequently if events or changes EBEHHRAIBERRE
in circumstances indicate that it might be BRI RER  F
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated ﬁ FAABORE - WIRAK A
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the BREHR BB B
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount EEBHR=LBERRE
of goodwill relating to the entity sold. B EERBEENNE
BRMEE -

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units HRAEAAMS ®mED
for the purpose of impairment testing. The EREELESU-FH
allocation is made to those cash-generating SERSEHBRBEES
units or groups of cash-generating units that ENEBEITPERNIE
are expected to benefit from the business SCELFBNXACELS
combination in which the goodwill arose. The LA RIVEHE - 5% F B 15k
units or groups of units are identified at the BRARNTIBANEEIEE
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored HMREREENRKEE
for internal management purposes, being the KR (B & D ED) -

operating segments.

(i) Brand name (i) @EERE

Brand name acquired in a business combination REEEHPESHmE
are recognised separately from goodwill and EHEFESRER V)
are initially recognised at their fair value at the FAEWE AR ATF
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). BRERFERABEKAR) -

Subsequent to initial recognition, brand name MAPERL1E ELEE
acquired in a business combination with PR BENERFET®
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any TE ) 0 hE 4 T R A 2SR 2
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. E&ERHREEIER

AT o
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RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (Continued) 210 B EE (5)

(ii) Brand name (Continued)

Brand name is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising
from derecognition of a brand name, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

(iiij) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly comprise acquired
computer software. Acquired computer
software licenses are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring the
specific software into usage. These costs are
amortised using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years. Cost
associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (CGUs).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership. Receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial asset carried at FVPL are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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Vﬁé,ﬂ?f R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets 2N REREMERMEE (&)

(Continued)
(i) F1E (&)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (E
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments BB LANEBESSHUR
depends on the Group’s business model REEBEERZEENE

for managing the asset and the cash flow BEAUNRZEENRS
characteristics of the asset. There are three MERH AEBEHEE
measurement categories into which the Group BIESBEAR=E=2

classifies its debt instruments: Al

150

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Amortised cost: Assets that are held

B - BEEE

for collection of contractual cash flows WEEREMFE
where those cash flows represent solely BREREEAIN
payments of principal and interest are e kFENEER
measured at amortised cost. Interest B AT E - ZF
income from these financial assets is TREEMTEHRA
included in finance income using the RERFERFTAY

effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised

TEUA © 8 I FERR
AR AR R S E 1R

directly in profit or loss and presented in HERERNER
other (losses)/gains together with foreign W H A (B1B)
exchange gains and losses. Impairment Wi 25 388 [R] 91 BE L 2 Kz

losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(iif) Measurement (Continued)

Debt

instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other (losses)/gains, net. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other (losses)/
gains, net and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented in other (losses)/gains, net in the
period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vﬁé‘ﬁ?f R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESTBEBME@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets 2N RERHMBEBEE (80)

(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued) Giii) F1E (&)
Equity instruments EmIA
The Group subsequently measures all equity REBEBMBRAKERER
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s ERAFEFE - WAEE
management has elected to present fair value ERBEEEBREAKRE
gains and losses on equity investments in other BN TFENEREBRE
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent thEEBAZS) - A4 E
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to BREERE HMERES
profit or loss following the derecognition of the FoBEAFEREMEE
investment. Dividends from such investments R o AEEKEA R
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as MEFELR  BERE
other income when the Group’s right to receive RIR BEEN B NER
payments is established. REMA o
Changes in the fair value of financial asset at BEAFEFABENS R
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses), net BEATEEZHINGE
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 2E WS RPEAM WS
income as applicable. Impairment losses (B#E) #FET @R (naE
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity ) B AFEFFAHEME
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported HRAG 28R AR ER
separately from other changes in fair value. BEEE (RREEERZD)

TeHEMAFEZESD
S

(iv) Impairment (iv) HE
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis 7R 8 [ A B CE 9 B B AR
the expected credit losses associated with its MEAFEFARMEE
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and WASIBENEBLIARHA
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied KITEEAE B R E L AT RE
depends on whether there has been a significant MEE L o FTER AR E 7
increase in credit risk. BAREEERBRESE

ZIEh0 o

For trade receivables, the Group applies the HRESERFIE &
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, ERAA BT BmEER
which requires expected lifetime losses to EIE AR R T
be recognised from initial recognition of the 78 B ) e 58 e M SR IE R
receivables, see Note 3 for further details. MREH2HELX %

FHIERMES -
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RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

213 EEEMT A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position when the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first out (“FIFO") method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from clients,
commercial companies and local government for
services rendered and goods sold in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair values and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment.

BAREE BB R KOR % B
TTRRENMBIERHEC RS -
BEREREFBRFELEELR
REREENEERER 8
MemEERAEN EEKE
WHAREMBEHRRARZHBELFE

214 78

FEEKRARAZEE FEME
FERBEESR - RATIRE T
HESEHOAEE - JE#RFERA
BEBBRETOGEHEEER
BRI FBHERAE -

215 E5 R HMEWR

HEZRYKBERH A EER
BREFREHORELEENE
mEREF BEQR R
B RIE - BN —F 8,
MHIR (IR EFXEHEERS
A (iR —F)) WEIH E 5 K
His EUGRIBD B RRBEE -
BRAIZIRIFRBEE

B REMBKFTBIHER
FEBRR EREMABRMNEX
EIRBIHK AR R BB E -
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Vﬁé‘ﬁ?f R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Cash and cash equivalents 216 RERBLSZEEY

RREGEAHEERERMNS -
RekBReEBYEEERFR
T REEENTER  HMRE
HerngtrE (RAMAR=
BEAKNATRAEREERSE
HeEMNRcAMAZEESE
B RBITEXRBAK) < RIT
BXESEAMBARKNRE
BETERAMER-

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

2.17 Share capital 217 BR7&

154

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of

tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a
share buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to the owners of the
Company as treasury shares until the shares are
cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in

equity attributable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Company’s Employee Share Trust
are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from

equity.

FHENBRZERERLQA

ERRBESERS -

BT BEREENIEENA
PO HE 25 A 514 BT 5 SRR B0 HOR
H(BHH) -

EEMEE QR (PIanEBRD =
B AR A BB SRET B
BE)BEARRNED T AR
PRt RE (BRIMERE
ERIBERA (FIRFAEH)) 1
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RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Trade and other payables 218 ES R HtENIE

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

BEHRNFETDBEXKBE
TEREHRERERIRBEOHNT
REAME - R —FRBEHRE (K
REBERBLERHAN (WHEB
—F)) HMNE S R EMmERN
RENERRBAE T2

JIRFERBAME -

B REMBNRBINHER
FERR HREMABRMNEX

using the effective interest method. EIRE ARG E o
2.19 Borrowings and borrowing costs CEVSEEEN2

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the year in which they are incurred.

AR RN FEHRAES
HIZ 5 PR TER o (B R E 1R IZ
B AR - BT F0R (0B
RHHA) BB D EE 2 BT
] Z B E A B RN AR E R
HRAESS RS R AR -

BRIEAEEAEERTBRE
HEAMECEEREHREE
P1R2EA BRABRDESR
BaE-

REREBRWE &t
EREREEN—REFTERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vﬁé,ﬂ?f R M

2

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Group’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty.

2
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RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.20 VA RIEL RSB (48)
(i) EEZFFEH

(ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and

EEFBHRERAEER
BERBERNHERRE
BMBHRRTOEREREZ
RIRE R =R - A
HELEHEREREEDN
VIZHERMES  RIET
MEBETSHER - ik
EFEHERS (%A
PERIN FRF R BEEREA
BRI HERBMEL - M
RPHAIZEGT RE
AR EE - ARERFH
IR & AR - BT PTSH

laws) that have been enacted or substantially KA RAERBHAE
enacted by the date of statement of financial EHEE LERHHR
position and are expected to apply when the K (RER)ETE  BHZ
related deferred income tax asset is realised or ERE(RAER)EBBE
the deferred income tax liability is settled. EAMEHAEAEZRIET

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

FEHARAERER -

ERRRR AT BEA AR TR
AR AE % FE
EZRNMEBEBENBRAT 7
SHRBRLEMSRHEE

e 75 2 7) B 422 1) 98¢ (0 B By
ERNERLZFEER
AIRE TSR] RAS R -
AT EBINEBIRER
EEEREZENGEZ
HERRECHEARBERE
o
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V%? & IS SRAR L

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(iij) Offsetting

2.20 BV KRR EE PGB ()
(iii) 753

158

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

B BIKTE Al o8 il B 1T HE R
MR AEERAER
8 BEIETRIA A SRR
— MR AR
EETRIAE ER A EEE
EERAETEARBIMT
RERMAK S BB BIRFHE
AEFEARNKEREE
MBERAER - AR EH
HEEEBARREKH -

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit BNER MR FETR H N B A
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to R fﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ(‘ﬁﬁtiﬁ
items recognised in other comprehensive income WA EERERER
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also HEBRINFEILERT -
recognised in other comprehensive income or %%IEJT/\EJJ‘E’\‘E@%EW
directly in equity, respectively. A EHERERFER

2.21 Employee benefits

221 EER®A

(i)  Short-term obligations () EHEMF
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including EEEZWMEHRNRS
non-monetary benefits that are expected to BERRAIEALRFAG (R
be settled wholly within 12 months after the EE AT (B B 1= L AE AR
end of the period in which the employees THEIE R & 128 A W&
render the related service are recognised in HEENIIFEEEREN) I
respect of employees’ services up to the end of REEEBEBENTERS

the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as
accruals and other payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

FESHBREME @)

221 EERA (&)
RIKELEMF

(iij) Pension obligations (i)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the

EREFFEEAEER
83 H B ST B E KA
BAREFE -HAERES
VTEEHEERNMBES
SATRDEAEE E HI R Y (8
BRGEA  AKEIE
EEHME R E IR
#E — R - AR AT
B RRAE R8I IEERE

GEGE

REBESFFEMmMS - A
SEZBRHIE - GH%A
FRIR Rl A 1 & sl Rl 2 I
B R R & 1R B At AR
—HEBNHK AKE
AERAHEMEREE-
HHRREPEERRES
&M B SZ o A B
1538 & R R H R AR KM

extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the HGERREE -
future payments is available.
(i) Bonus entitlements (i) TEALREF
The Group recognises a liability and an expense AEERBE ZELIED

for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

ETHBEENADBRR
FEAE FIE B~ SRR TEAL
MEELRAX AEER
BEANEEHBBEMN
AL BUHEE R ENIRE
BB -
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V%? & IS SRAR L

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESTBEBME@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Share-based payments 2.22 LB HREBRB AR
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment (@) UBmRZEURGHBE

transactions BEHTHZS

The Group operates equity-settled, share- $’El*“ —IEARE A

based compensation plans, under which H AR B AT B R

the entity receives services from grantees as 2B BEREEARA

consideration for equity instruments (options) of BIERBEAREE#EZ

the Group. The fair value of the services received TH (BRRE RE--&%

in exchange for the grant of the options is i P& R T AR FE 2 15 1 AR

recognised as an expense. The total amount to BRFERRRBFRX 3

be expensed is determined by reference to the BRXMNBEDZEMRR

fair value of the options granted: HERENRTEETE -

g2

e including any market performance s  BEMEMTHERBERK
conditions (for example, an entity’s share " (Bl E s R H
price); B

e excluding the impact of any service o TEIEFEMRFBMIE
and non-market performance vesting 5 %N & B &G
conditions (for example, profitability, (Bl an & ) ge 7 - 88
sales growth targets and remaining an BEERAERNETE
employee of the entity over a specified H\,ﬁﬁaﬁﬁmﬁ‘g BEEiE
time period); and B)WEE

e including the impact of any non-vesting e  BEEHERM (HI
conditions (for example, the requirement MESEE AREETE
for grantees to save or holding shares for EAEI AR B S BB Ik
a specified period of time). DI E -

160 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ZERMEBEZERERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the senior management,
ophthalmologists, physicians, employees and
consultants of subsidiary undertakings in the
Group is treated as a capital contribution.
The fair value of services received, measured
by reference to the grant date fair value, is
recognised over the vesting period as an increase
to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.

2
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162

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESTBEBME@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Provisions 2.23 &
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a ERAEEREBESEHMAER
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of R OA € Sk 7 & £ A BT B

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.24 Provision for reinstatement cost

Provision for reinstatement cost is included in other
payables and represents the present value of the
estimated cost for the restoration work of the Group’s
leased premises agreed to be carried out upon the

SIMERMENBEEE B
FRcHCESEHER R
BRABE - BIRBEREER
IBRERBE -

ﬁﬂﬁylﬁ}fﬁﬂlﬁﬁ EITEME
RARHERNAIEEDEE
EREBETENEETE - BIE
BEA—BEEEAMEEHNEM
—EAEBEEmMS  BRELAA
BEMEEN - DEREREBE -

BEDERBABANXIZEESRE
BEEFAFERIMHRET =
ZRMAINERMRTISERFEE
EEEEENTERERZETH
5 7E B B o BRI R R O A4 1 28 0
BEERARNEMX

224 EERARBE

BEER AR BT A E &R
TR ThE R R B B AT A
REHERBEBOERE
BAKEHERNMERETEE

expiry of the relevant leases using a risk-free pre- IENKANRE ZESBE
tax interest rate. The provision has been determined H & E M mE T #E% - 18
by the directors based on their best estimates. The EBKAERV P ERERTT A
related reinstatement costs, upon initial recognition, REEEMBRARANEEY
have been included as leasehold improvements in the ¥R (fsx27) -

consolidated statement of financial position (Note 2.7).
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RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBERBE®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 (Loss)/Earnings per share 2.25 R (E]) B
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a) EREX(FHE) BF
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by GREX (B18) /BFliZ:
dividing:
the (loss)/profit attributable to owners o AXRNAEEAH AR
of the company, excluding any costs of (B8 7B (e
servicing equity other than ordinary shares; FE XA E AR A SME
and mEERBKA) - &
by the weighted average number of o BRUBKRFEANC
ordinary shares outstanding during the TE AR INE T
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements HEtE  WRFERE
in ordinary shares issued during the year BTERR (TBE
and excluding treasury shares. B 17 B 1) HY AL R 4B
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) FEREBEEHE) BF

SR (BB B
EEFESRER(BR)
BMEERANETF - G

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of basic (loss)/
earnings per share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares; and

the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

N

o  HEAEEITMARA
R REMmEE
XA KRR FT 1S TR 18 57
2. &

. BRWRNAEER
FEBWE - D
TSN BRI
FHHE -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition 2.26 WA

164
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Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contracts and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods and
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time.

Control of the goods or services is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple elements, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment
approach, depending on availability of observable
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.26 Wz TR (8)

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the entity’s performance and the customer’s
payment.

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from
providing medical services and sales of vision aid
products and medical consumables.

(a) Provision of ophthalmic services

The Group provides a range of ophthalmic
care, diagnostic, medical and surgical treatment
services at the eye centres, clinics and hospitals.
Revenue from ophthalmic services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the related
services are rendered and is recognised at a
point in time.

(b) Sales of vision aid products and medical

EANNEIRA-—FSTEEN &
SERNGAMBRRNETEL
I RABWEEREGHNEE
BIEBNBEOBRETF N
R EERBAEME

AEE AR EGENBERK
BREREE R £ZRE
AT AT - AR (B B A A
ERLE—BREB BEGEMS -

AEEm S EZRAEHER
RRF AR HER N8B E M
KB ERER

(a) FEBRRBRHE
AEBEBRBEIAL - ZA
RERIRESERRRE -
Zl - Y RERFIMNE
B R o BR BRI 89 Y &=
IR AR AR 75 ) = 5T HR
MR RN — R E R

R o

(b) HERLHHERLKE

consumables BN

Revenue from sales of vision aid products and HERNBHERRER
medical consumables is recognised when control FEM Y U2 P BE o 125 I 4
of the products has transferred, being when the R (ERXNTTEP

products are despatched to the client and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
client’s acceptance of the products.

) B EARAEBITEES
FEEPEMERZKE

N
27
D?JL‘,\ °
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESTBEBME@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.26 WEES (8)
(c) Provision of dental and other medical (0 EHTFRRAMEER
services &
The Group provides a range of medical services AEFBEERBEDD 2T
(dentistry, oncology, family medicine and TR IR 2 B R E RS
medical aesthetic), diagnostic, surgical treatment (FR - EBER  xpERe
services at the medical centres, clinics and EEEZEAY) L B . SR
hospitals. Revenue from medical services is SAERTS - BB RS U
recognised in the accounting period in which the NiZH BRI et
related services are rendered and is recognised RS RE 22 R A B — B B B
at a point in time. 2 o
(d) Management fee income (d) EEZBKA
Revenue from management fee services is IR B RS W AR AR
recognised in the accounting period in which RS e IR -

the related services are rendered.

2.27 Interest income 2.27 R B WA
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective FMEWAL S EENERE
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a ERBTEAMNESEEY -

financial asset.

2.28 Leases 228 HE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a HENBEEEAHAEE (D
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased HE AR AEAESERIE
asset is available for use by the Group. FEEE -

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease AT SHEERIEREMR
components. The Group allocates the consideration in BRE S o AEEIRBBEERIE
the contract to the lease and non-lease components TBEAR IS EEL BB
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, A g B AT SR E K 3EAE
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a SRS o A - A EEE
lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non- AEMANBEHMERERS -
lease components and instead accounts for these as a REBEDIRRTEASHEIER
single lease component. EERTHOE HEZ=Y

DHERE—THEAKE D AR -

166 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ZERMEBEZERERA A




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued) 228 FHE (&)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that

option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,

BHEELNEERABVS
REEHE-HERBEBEET
SR E N A FHRE -

. BENR(BREEEEE
7300 8k A fr] B U AR £ 1B
=,

o EREERFELREE
F B S R S ) 23
SHARBENR

o FHEEERTHOAEE
TEHARE 3R

e BEEERNTEME (H
AEBESEBETELE
B &

«  IHRIEBEQTR (M

if the lease term reflects the Group exercising THEAR R AR H 1T {0 %8
that option. ) o

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

REAEBEEARERED
MBENKITFABRBNETE -

HENRKAESEME SR
KT ARRR o W BOXEE &M
R(REENHE-RBILES
W) BIUME A AGE AL & B RA
o BME R AE A FERULHE
RIEP B LR - B R &
HEARSEEREEEEE
BUMBEMRESLAXN
ORI
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHREBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued) 228 FHE (&)

168

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.qg.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to
the lease, then the group entities use that rate as a
starting point to determine the incremental borrowing
rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability
is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

FHENBRZERERLQA
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RE M EmARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBREHSE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Leases (Continued) 228 FHE (&)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising FREEEZKAGTE  BF
the following: A& :

pstEHERENSR:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the o  THBBELZAELD
commencement date less any lease incentives FAENFREAE K
received; HEEE

e anyinitial direct costs; and o  FAVBEEKL: &

e restoration costs. o (BIEMKA -

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the FRAREE—MEESERI

shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on BEMEAFHASAR (RS

a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain ERE)FTEWNE - MHAEES

to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset BHRTITERBERZE B

is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. AEEEREBEEENAEA

While the Group revalues its land and buildings that FHATAFE - REEHH

are presented within property, plant and equipment, it TAME  BEREZHEH LU

has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings NEFHITENME HDE
held by the Group. BIAHAEERANEAER
FHET ©

Payments associated with short-term leases of HRHERAECHAEEREED

equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value NEEMBEEEBEEEMEN

assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an BHEZERERANER AN (I

expense in profit or loss without a purchases option. EEERE) NOMERMEER

Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of NREASUATHHEE - KEE

12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT EEBIEEMBRRE RN

equipment and small items of office furniture. WRNERFL o
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Vﬁé‘ﬁ?f R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.30 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance
department under the supervision of the board of
directors. The board provides principles for overall risk
management.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERBEEZERERA A

FESHBREME @)

2.29 RE DK
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P B BRI R AR & B R R AR P
RRBafE-

2.30 BLfF @B &
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RE M EmARMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

0]

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
value of a financial instrument fluctuates
because of the changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The subsidiaries of the Group mainly
operate in HK and Mainland China with
most of the transactions settled in HK$
and Renminbi (“RMB") respectively.
Foreign exchange rate risk arises when
recognised financial assets and liabilities
are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

As at 31 December 2022, the financial
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries of
the Group in HK and Mainland China are
primarily denominated in HK$ and RMB,
their respective functional currency (2021:
same).

As at 31 December 2022, the result
of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated cash and
cash equivalents of subsidiaries with RMB
as their functional currency is immaterial
(2021: same).

The Group will constantly review the
economic situation and its foreign
exchange risk profile, and will consider
appropriate hedging measures in the
future, as may be necessary.
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3

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
refer to the changes in cash flows or fair
value of a financial instrument as a result
of fluctuations in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to interest rate
risk through the impact of rate changes
on interest bearing assets and liabilities.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
In the opinion of directors, the expected
change in fair values as a results of
change in market interest rates will not be
significant, thus no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk.

The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. Management monitors
interest rate fluctuations to ensure that
exposure to interest rate risk is within an
acceptable level and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arises.

3
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RE M EmARMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (Continued)

The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents and borrowings at floating
interest rates. As at 31 December 2022,
if interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year would have been approximately
HK$856,000 lower/higher (2021: post-
tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$498,000 higher/
lower), mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate bank balances and borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

0]

Risk management

In respect of cash and cash equivalents
and bank deposits with original maturity
over three months, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties
are reputable banks, with credit ratings
from AA3 to BAA3. The existing
counterparties do not have defaults in the
past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate
of cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits with original maturity over three
months are assessed to be insignificant
and no provision was made as of 31
December 2022.
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3

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

0]

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group, being a provider of medical
services to patients, has a highly diversified
client base, without any single client
contributing material revenue. Moreover,
some of the Group’s revenue is settled
by reputable commercial companies and
local government on behalf of patients.
The Group has controls to closely monitor
the patients’ billing and payment status
by communication with commercial
companies and local government to
minimise the credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

3
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RE M EmARMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 48 months before 31 December 2022
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the gross domestic product and
inflation rate of the countries in which it
sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

The expected credit loss rates for trade
receivables are considered as immaterial
and loss allowance provision recognised
for these balances for the year is less than
1%.

Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEREREE@)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HEEBEER@)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEE (&)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) EREENREGE)

(Continued)

For other financial assets at amortised BIRE AT E Y

cost, including deposits and other EtmemEE (81

receivables, management considers that its e & H b FE U R

credit risk has not increased significantly F)OME BEELK

since initial recognition with reference to 2ERGHFHRESL

the counterparty historical default rate EAEKB AT

and current financial position. The Group RRE  RREGE

measures credit risk using Probability [2.Be B ¥ 25 FEFR LA K

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

of Default (“PD"), Exposure at Default
("EAD") and Loss Given Default ("LGD").
The Group’s deposits and other receivables
are not credit-impaired and are classified
in “Stage 1"”. The impairment provision
is determined based on the 12-month
expected credit losses and no provision
was made as of 31 December 2022.

Impairment losses on other financial
assets at amortised cost are presented as
net impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
the same line item.
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RE M EmARMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(9]

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances,
the availability of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities from
leading banks and the ability to close out market
position.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of short-
term financial assets, receivables and certain
assets that the Group considers appropriate
and long term financing including long-term
borrowings are also considered by the Group
in its capital structuring. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient bank balances, committed credit lines
available and interest bearing borrowings which
enable the Group to continue its business for
the foreseeable future.

3 HXERKRERE®
3.1 BI¥EMEZE(®)

(9]

B 1) B

FEENRDUERRERES
REEARREEMRITAE
B ERRITESTMS
MAEGREEREAERH
REE RRMEFEDN

ab
BE ©

AEBBEB—FIHTA (B2
ERASERBEENS
ATEFEREHEME
= BRFIEARETEE)
HERBED  TREZ
EREHRE (BEEY
B MARBEREBNA -
AEEEEEBRITTRE
RITHERR ~ A B A AGR
FEBRELFEER 4
FESWEEME  UHEX
SERA R RBELE
E

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 —ZE - _FF 3}

177




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vﬁé‘ﬁﬂ e e
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HHEREE®@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBERKEEH®)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEMEE (&)
The table below analyses the financial liabilities TR M ARNEBRIR B
of the Group into relevant maturity groupings BRREXBHESLER
based on the remaining period at the date of Boe T~EHE D AHEE
statement of financial position to the contractual FERANNSRARE -
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the TP BRBENESEARIR
table were the contractual undiscounted cash BHRERERAKEEA
flows and the earliest date the Group can be BEEERNRNKEH
required to pay. Balance within 12 months equal HollmRTEZEL T
their carrying balances as impact at discounting BABMTZBARME
is not significant. ERERNEBRMEAS R

Between Between Total
Within 1 1and2 2and5 Over  contractual Carrying
On demand years years Syears  cash flows amount

aHRERE

-ERE il
f f HES

Asat31December202  W2022%12831H

Trade payables BAEME - 45,306 - - - 45,306 45,306
Accualsand other payables R E R REGERZE - 69,800 - - - 69,800 69,800
Amounts due fonon-contollng AR ERZE

interests 3820 150,884 - - - 154,704 154,704
loansfromnon-contollng~~ FERERER

Interests - - 4319 18119 - 043 125
Borowings i3 B0 11,260 - - - 3500 34257
Lease libiliies figek - 130,765 89,49 170243 58,231 448735 397,015

27,580 408,015 93,815 188,362 38,231 776,003 .21

As at 31 December 2021 RNE12A318

Trade payables BAEHE - 39,866 - - - 30866 39866
Accualsand other payables R BB REGIERZUE - 4790 1475 - . 193% 1939
Amount due toa reeted party  [EF—E BB A 3 - - - - 3 3
Amounts due fonon-<ontollng AR ERTE

Interests 39%! - - - - 391 3%
loan fomanoncontroling.~— FEREZER

Interest - - - 8618 - 8618 75%
Borowings i3t 181,939 - - - - 181,939 179406
Lease abltes HERE - 97,081 75840 109831 38004 30776 284690

185933 184,867 71315 118449 38,024 604,588 504 946
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RE M EmARMEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXERKRERE®
3.2 EXEMER

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash
and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt, where applicable.

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio is not
applicable due to net cash position (2021: same).

AEENEAERBBRARE
AEBEFEQKLHNEN M
AR B Al H ) B E 3R
LM RSERZEERS
BUAPREEARRA

REBARBEREE K&
B g HBEXNTFRENERE
R MRFREER  BITH
P2k th & B B DARL D BT o

IMEMRAZEE - ARERE
EERBHLRERER - ZHE
TIRESF R E A EREETHE
B FRIDEERBERAS
RRITREBRETE - EXBETS
BB IR R PR A [ #E2R]
MERFR (ER) & -

M2022%F12A31H BEERE
LR AR FEAMD T TEA
(20214 : #8[A) °
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Vﬁé,ﬂ?f R M

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXERKRERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 ATFEE

180

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

The carrying values of the Group's current financial
assets, including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, bank deposits with original maturity over
three months and cash and cash equivalents, and the
Group’s current financial liabilities, including trade
payables, accruals and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling interests and amount due to a related
party approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial assets
at FVOCI and financial asset at FVPL carried at fair
value as at 31 December 2022 by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

FHENBRZERERLQA

rEEREEREE (BHEES
FE M R IR 1 N E Al R UK
H-REBEBBE=M[ANIER
TEFARRERRESEEY)
EAKERAELHMAE (BRE
HEMNRIE Bt ERAREAM
A BRIA - B A R A A & K
TA LA K e A — 44 BB 77 5ROR) B9
HREE  HAtEmERQF
BREAT

TRERAEAFEMAGES
FEAENEREAEER
2022 12 A31 B AFEAE
WEAFEFAEMEERA
MEmEERZAFES AR
EMEeMEERETIM - ZE
WABEAFEERTH AW
T=EEH

e MHREBEEXKBENEED
LR HRE CREFHE) (F1
;) o

e EEXBBAUEER (AIE
%) skfE iz (B ERISH)
BENBAE(F1AME
TR EERIN) (F24) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

Level 1

F1R

HK$'000

RE M EmARMEE

B 7% R b B B ()
3.3 DR EME@E)
e BEXABLWIIENTEH

EmBEENHEAE D
TRBRBAE)(FE3R) °

Level 3 Total
EEFY &t
HK$000 HK$'000

Level 2
F2R
HK$'000

As at 31 December 2022
Financial assets at FVPL

RW2022%12A318
BAFEFAERN SR
BE

FET

FET

TET TET

— Listed equity investment —EmRERE 22,484 - - 22,484
Financial assets at FVOC| BATEGAEMZEAR

ANEREE
- Unlisted equity investment —FEMRARE - - 74,167 74,167
Total financial assets CREELE 22,484 - 74,167 96,651
As at 31 December 2021 R2021512A31A8
Financial assets at FVPL BLTEGFAEBENER

BE
- Listed equity investment - FTRERE 55,704 - - 55,704
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFEFAEM2ENR

ARESREE
— Unlisted equity investment - ETRARE - - 52,575 52,575
Total financial assets CREEMRE 55,704 - 52,575 108,279

There were no transfers between levels during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same).

REZE2022F12 8318 ItHF
E&EBHzEITEERE (2021
F:[8R) o
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Vﬁé,ﬂ?f R M

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the consolidated statement of financial
position date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, price services or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

(b) Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the

instrument is included in level 3.

The following table presents the changes in level
3 financial instruments for the year ended 31
December 2022:

Balance as at 31 December 2021 and

B 7% B b BB ()
DNPEGE @)

3.3

(a)

(b)

M2021512A318 K%

FI1RkEHMIT A
REBMBEEE 2@ T
B Z RV EDZEREE
BRAKRBH 2 MIZHME
FEoWBZBmETAS R
TFHRMBR ST KLHE
e - TEEE - RERR
B EEME  MZER
ERMERETEHZEATF
RABET 2 MIER 5 © %
MGAIRBER - K& B
BBEZUBEEMERZ
MGHREARITEAE-
ZETAEFTAEIR -

E3gE2MT A
WM—IAFAELEREAE
WIFERABRM SR
A TEAGT AR -

TREFEHZE2022F12
A31TBLEFEEIL R
TEmE L :

Unlisted equity
investment

FLEmiER

IERE
HK$000
FET

1 January 2022 20221 B1BW&EER 52,575
Addition NE 7,830
Fair value changes credited to consolidated — &F Aér&a HM 2 E U m KRR F

statement of other comprehensive income BRI 5 13,762
Balance as at 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31 B & 74,167

For the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, the Group
estimates the fair value based on the latest unit
selling price of the financial assets on an arm'’s
length basis.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERBEEZERERA A

REAFEAARLEE
WEHSBEENE A&
EEBRERAZEAT
B BT (1
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RE M EmARMEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in HK and
Mainland China. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are some transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated taxes based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences would impact the current
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

(b) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

EEETHEFT RAE

R BLE TS MR P R eV R R A B 45
ETHE LB ELREEMRAER
RER (BRERKBEIATHRES
HEVaIBIEL) -

REBMERKAEL BT REER -G
Gt AEMEER B HERA
HNERERER - U TwAEHEE
R EsIBARN T AN RFEHEE
LafEnREEFEERNFIRNME
KRR -

(a) FIEBRIELFTEH

AEBBHNELERTEANM
et -BEMSHEBEGEAE
HEXHE RAEXKBRER
FEETREEERKHEAN
RXGRAE -AEBEREBEER
SRR T e B e fhEt
ERERNEAE -

MxEEENRERBERR
MR IR BHEE
REFEELET Y FE AR
A RESE R TR Y A -

(b) #M% BERRENTER
£

AEBEEEETEDE K
FRREW MG AERF R
HEFEER - ZEADRE
BEMEBEERDENDE
I B5 K 5% e O BB A £ R 6 B8
TR - AT RE A AT B R T
HFERHEBREBETXRBEHNTR
mEEE RN - WA A F
HAORFERGOFE T
EXReEER LM MHE
MUK E mEE L C HERME
hel ERMIENEE -
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Vﬁé‘ﬁ?f R M

4

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Estimation of the fair value of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the table
in Note 3.3.

Impairment of goodwiill, other intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on the higher of value-in-use
or fair value less costs of disposal.

4

FHENBRZERERLQA

EESTHEF R A E )

(9]

(d)

ETRMITANDFEME

VIR ERTHEENEHT
AW RFENERGERMNE
EoAEBEEMREHEARE
ZRELIERER MKF
TEEBRIEENSHSH
RHTR - FERANEERR
R AENFBERIEIINER
M -

BERRBUREREEE
ZRIE

AEEeRFAABEES L
BRE - HERFHFSIRE(
BN F]RERL(E AT B AR E A -
HtELEE W%  BBERR
BUALEREEESER SN
kiR 5 B BRUR B BR T E A BE
AR T U el ORI BURLE o BT IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of goodwill, other intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

The calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates. Management judgment is required in the
area of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(i) whether the carrying amount of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value-in-use which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
gross margin percentage, annual revenue growth
rates, terminal growth rate and the discount rate
used in the cash flow projections, could affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as a
result affect the Group’s financial position and results
of operations.

Fair value assessment of the identified
intangible assets and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combination

Significant judgments and estimates were involved in
the fair value assessment of the identified intangible
assets and the recognition of goodwill arising from
business combination. These significant judgments
and estimates include the adoption of appropriate
valuation methodologies and the use of key
assumptions in the valuation (mainly annual revenue
growth rate, discount rates, attrition rate of customer
relationship and expected useful lives of order
backlog).

4

RE M EmARMEE

EESTHEF R A E )

(d)

(e)

BE - HtEEEE WX
BERRBUREREEE
ZBIE ()
ZEHEBRER A R -
EEERMEEREFDLHE -
LERFETIEEE : ()28
BRLAEBENEREEEE
A REEOR UL Bl 2 = ¢ (i) AT IR
B & 28 (A A e B ER &R
REREXEBIREEREE
stz EREEMER ZR
BE)RBEAXKHEENRE
B RiimERSRERB M
ERANEITERREERE 2
RZEFASREFIREER
HEENMEFE - HEEER
AHEREREE CBR (BRER
ERERAMABZENX F
FERZEERE HRERER
WRER) BMRE AR Y
BERRERZREFEE
(FE CVTAMFEAREZ
BRI AR

FEERBBEEEZ AT
EREREESHAEEZ
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RERBEENEAFE
LRERFXGAHMELEZEE
By RERHE MGG - ZF
BERAE LG RRBRERER
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Vﬁé,ﬂﬁ%iﬁiﬁa‘ﬁ
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WEkoPER
(a) Revenue (a) Wz

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Provision of ophthalmic services TR AR BHR 75 1,074,301 920,049
Sales of vision aid products SHER DB E @ 160,981 140,342
Sales of medical consumables SHEBEMEN 298,342 -
Provision of dental and other medical 24t 7F &} } H 22 5= IR 75
services 198,279 52,186
1,731,903 1,112,577
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the timing BHZE2022F12A31HIEFE
of revenue recognition was mainly at a point in time. Wz T R I fE 2 22 7 0 (Rl B
& Eﬁ ©
(b) Liabilities related to contract with customers (b) HEFEHNEBNERE
The Group has recognised the following liabilities REECHERUTEHERELD
related to contracts with customers: BREMaE:

As at 31 December

R12A318
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FAETT
Contract liabilities — advanced EHBE-BREFPH
payments received from clients ELN S 39,490 10,728
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 BHZE2022F12A31HIEFE
December 2022 that was included in the contract FAFVENABESRNE
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year R U 49 410,728,000 7% 7T
amounted to approximately HK$10,728,000 (2021: (20214 : 8,603,000/ 7T) °

HK$8,603,000).
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RE M EmARMEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(9]

Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker that are used to making strategic
decisions. The chief operating decision-maker is
identified as the executive directors of the Company.
The executive directors consider the business from
a client perspective and assess the performance of
the operating segments based on segment revenue
and segment results for the purposes of allocating
resources and assessing performance. These reports
are prepared on the same basis as the consolidated
financial statements.

The reportable segment of the Group is a component
that is engaged either in providing a particular type
of service or goods, or in providing services or goods
within a particular geographical region.

Since 1 January 2022, in view of more diversified
businesses of the Group currently operates, the chief
operating decision-maker assessed the performance of
the Group by reviewing the results of four reportable
segments, namely HK medical business, sales of
medical consumables, Mainland China ophthalmic
business and Mainland China dental business as
follows:

i. HK medical business — provision of ophthalmic,
dental, oncology, medical aesthetics and other
services and sales of vision aid products in Hong
Kong

EEEREHIELERARE
EHMARARRNREETL
EOE e TERERREWR
ERARBNHITES - 1T
EENEPNAEREEE
AR B o3 BB Uk R B oy BB S AE AY
BEENHBORE  UDEE
BRFERE - ZFHRE R
R A MBI ARRI R R -

AEBENAIZHRD BRIEEER
HRERENRBEER  HE
Ry E M 32 R 1 P SR AR AR A P

E2022F 1A 1H#E  ERARE
EEREEMEBENZ T
FEEEBRREBRBRTEE
AIZR/H I (ANEBSEEER -
HEBEREN  NBRREEL
A FRIER) HEETHR
EEMES BBOT

i. BARABEXB-HETER
RS TR EER
B R EM AR R ER
NEBNE
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Vﬁé‘,ﬁw TR

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WEKkIMER @
(Continued)
(c) Segment information (Continued) (o0 7HERE

ii.  Sales of medical consumables — sales of medical i. HEBEREM-—TEEBHE
consumables in Hong Kong E RN

ii. ~ Mainland China ophthalmic business — provision i.  WHBRREB-TERHE
of ophthalmic services and sales of vision aid HERBRBE RIEERNE
products in Mainland China B)EE oh

iv.  Mainland China dental business — provision of v. AT RIER AR
dental services in Mainland China T RHR T

Such a change is to align with the updated internal EHRZHDATEKENNNA

management and reporting structure. The segment HERRMERE HRFE

information of the comparative year has been restated WOREREES  UAFER

to conform to the current year categorisation and FEIBEREINAR -

presentation.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, BRI BEABEDNE  BE

plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and N RREERBEE -

intangible assets.

Other income, other (losses)/gains, net, finance costs, Hi g A - Hh (B1E) K=

net and income tax expense are not included in FRE MK FRERAEH

segment results. X WA ADBERELE -
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RE M EmARMEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WHkoBER @
(Continued)
(c) Segment information (Continued) (o0 7HERE
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HZE2022F12 A31HIEFED
2022 are as follows: DEEEHYIWT

Year ended 31 December 2022
HENENANHLEE
Mainland
Sales of China Mainland
HK medical medical  ophthalmic China dental

business consumables business business Total
BEBR HEBR Wb iRR Wik R
%% 2} % % CH
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET Tz TET TET FET

Segment revenue Al 805,656 298,342 502,943 124962 1,731,903
Gross profit =7 187,122 108,902 139,457 12,216 447,697
Selling expenses BERT (15,321) (142) (91,102) (20,209) (126,774)
Administrative expenses THRZ (128,526) (901) (187,131) (28,789) (345,347)
Share of profit of associates A {EEE& A A FIE 37,799 - - - 37,799
Segment results PERE 81,074 107,859 (138,776) (36,782) 13,375
Other income EfA 28,654
Other losses, net EEEESE (40,712)
Finance income FBMA 7112
Finance costs B (19,656)
Loss before income tax BREGEAER (11,227)
Income tax expense MRS (34,998)
Loss for the year FREE (46,225)
Other segment information £ &

Additions to non-current assets R E IEREIEE 63,858 1,785 177,921 1,245 244,809
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7% Jt # & (72,585) (214)  (126,092) (25143)  (224,034)

(Losses)/gains on disposal of ~ {HENE « BiE RRER
property, plant and equipment, (B8 /Yiz %2
net (5) - (439) 19 (425)
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SREEBRRNE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WHEEkoHER @
(Continued)
(c) Segment information (Continued) (o0 7HERE
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HZE2021F12 A31HIEFED
2021 are as follows: DEEEHYIWT

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2NFENANBLEE
Mainland
Sales of China Mainland
HK medical medical  ophthalmic  China dental
business  consumables business business Total
ERBE HEER At RR A R
3% ) 3% 3% AFt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET ‘
Segment revenue Al 543,909 - 568,668 - 112577
Gross profit =7 154,383 - 203,845 - 358,228
Selling expenses HERX (9,330 - (17,112) - (126,442)
Administrative expenses THRZ (72,421) - (161,694) - (234,115)
Share of profit of associates HEB AR EFE 10,652 - - - 10,652
Segment results PHEE 83,284 - (74,961) - 8,323
Other income EfA 10,580
Other gains, net Hi s FE 16,492
Finance income B 4,475
Finance costs B (12,995)
Profit before income tax BRETE B AIFE 26,875
Income tax expense MRS (10,645)
Profit for the year FRFE 16,230
Other segment information £ 7 &5&
Additions to non-current assets R E FEREEE 67,743 - 149,148 - 216,891
Depreciation and amortisation 7% Jt # & (49,042) - (99,539) - (148 581)
Losses on disposal of property, — HEYZE « FiE Rk BN
plant and equipment, net BEFE (607) - (9) - (616)
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RE M EmARMEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(9]

6

Segment information (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the total non-financial
non-current assets including property, plant and
equipment, investment property, right-of-use assets
and other intangible assets located in HK and Mainland
China were approximately HK$123,701,000 and
HK$956,174,000 respectively (2021: HK$125,666,000
and 784,611,000).

No analysis of segment assets and liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the
executive directors.

There was no single external client which contributed
more than 10% to the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same).

OTHER INCOME

6

5 WakaBER @

(9]

7 EE R (50

R2022F 128318 U &
ERPEAEHIESRIER
PDEERE(REYVE BE
MEB KREVE FHAEER
EREMBEREE)DNOB
123,701,000% 7T % 956,174,000
76 7T (20214 : 125,666,000 78
TN 784,611,000 7T) °

BRI EERARTEFREMR
DHEERBESN  RAE

2NZEDH

HZE2022F12A31HIEFE
BEE —INEEPER S
I AREEIRZEE 10% LA _E (2021
£ MR °

HA WA

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEE

2022 AYA

2022 & 20214

HK$’000 HK$°000

FAET FET

Management fee income EEEWIA 18,884 5,776
Rental income HEUA 352 -
Government grants (Note) BT 4 Bl (Bt ) 8,792 4,468
Others Hb 626 336
28,654 10,580

Note: There were no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies

attaching to these grants. The Group did not benefit directly
from any other forms of government assistance.

MR BB BB R R IETT IR L

HMg A BER - AEBITBERR
EREREATEANRFER) -
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7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 Htt (B WRFE

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE
2022 2021

2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Losses on disposal of property, plantand H&¥%  E MEER

equipment, net EE 5 (425) (616)
Gains on early termination of lease AR ISR - 452
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FENB AT ERE - (4,499)
(Losses)/gains on financial assets at fair XA FEF ABZZHS R

value through profit or loss BEM(ER), W (33,220) 16,711
Loss on written-off of trade receivables il $5 & 5 & Ug ZR B ) 5 18 7) -
Exchange (losses)/gains, net PE N (E18) W F 58 (7,060) 4,444

(40,712) 16,492
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

8 RRUEIIWNER

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20214
HK$°000
FET

2022 F
HK$’000
F T

Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEE (K 16)

(Note 16) 1,428 1,187
Auditor’s remuneration 2 BRI 35 B

— Audit services — BT RS 2,280 2,100

— Non-audit services —EEFRTE 136 66
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz BEREREBITE

equipment (Note 13) (fF5E13) 86,274 50,593
Depreciation of investment property wEYERE (H:E15)

(Note 15) 353 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE (ME14)

(Note 14) 135,979 96,801
Doctors’ consultation fees BEve 342,978 204,623
Cost of inventories and medical GFERDHEEBEREM KK

consumables sold (Note 17) (fF5E17) 504,901 272,259
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) BERFRAIZ (F:E9) 446,959 277,065
Short-term lease expenses (Note 14) MEHEER Y (M 14) 3,327 2,353
Legal and professional fees ERRBEER 7,769 10,132
Share option expenses to doctors and 5T B8 A % B R A B A A

consultants EARNMXT 985 25
Promotion expenses FEREZ 125,646 125,660
Bank service charges RITIRS B A 11,711 8,877
Repair and maintenance fees HIERREBR 12,813 8,856
Subcontracting fees HNEE = 4,997
Others HAth 72,788 49,312
Total cost of revenue, selling and HEKAR « $HE RITHAX

administrative expenses 45 1,756,327 1,114,906
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vﬁé‘,ﬁw TR

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BERAAX (BEESEH)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021

2021 4
HK$ 000

FET

2022 F
HK$’000
FETT

Wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances T & » & 1041 N2 8L 411,136 252,296
Retirement benefit costs — defined RN TR AN — BB K
contribution schemes (Note (a)) =& (B FE @) 28,511 17,986
Staff welfare and benefits BTREMEF = 6,964 2,553
Share option expenses to employees and B 8 M E =1 E IR
directors 348 4,230
446,959 277,065
Note: fisE -

(a) Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution schemes

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by
Mainland China government. The Group contributes a certain
percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees, and
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group's
and the employees’ contributions were subject to a cap
of HK$1,500 per month, and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FHENBRZERERLQA

IRIRAE PR A — FE AR B

ARREFBE R E AR R
N ETFTEFENBER ST E IR
BRREAGT BB AR B o AN S B i
BAREETEN -—EADLIEDH
HR - BEEHRRS  BRE—F
EEBERRAKRS N RIRREER
MET - R K EEARKEE
HFAEFRINE B X RIKE ) 2 26
BfE-

AEBECDLHEBTBREZ2 MBS
MAEetE ((RREeE]) -5
BeERBUREAERN IR
ERMUHKETE - RIBRBESE
AEEREEEASAREREAR
(EERABHMERERIEN) 5%
Az B EH R - AEBERER
&R HEFRERA1,50087T - Kz
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EEEANFX(BEESEHS)
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's () EBRTHAZMS (&)
emoluments
The remunerations of each director and the Chief AEEBSEERTHRARNE
Executive Officer of the Group for the year ended 31 22022F 12 B3 HILFENH
December 2022 are set out below: B E 50T

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Group, the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REAES(FRRARE AOHIHNRAANES AL
RENRBALAIEAZALNHE
Employer's
contribution
toa
Allowances retirement
Discretionary  and benefits benefit  Share-based
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme  payment
CELE
BER  RAHE UBRHA
e B¢ BEEL  RUBN  FHOHR  BERNAX it
HKS000  HKSODD  HKSO00  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOD
77 FAr 77 Tz FAr Tz FAr

Yearended 31 December 202~ EZ02E 128317

13:3:4
Executive diectors HEZE
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis MIESEE
(“Dr. Dennis LAM" (mEEEE])
(Chief Executive Officer) (Note )~ (TE3E) (B () 10 5,760 = - 18 - 6018
M. LI Xiaoting ('Ms. LI') (Note ()~ BT ((%%1])
CiE0) - 3,000 - 776 18 - 3,79
Mr. Ll Chun Shan (Note (i) EENLE () = 49 - - - - 19
Dr.LFE Yau Wing Vincent (Note (i)~ /A4 54 (3£ i) 20 - - - - 8 32
Independent non-executie diectors - BV H/7EE
Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald FHREE 0 - - - - - 240
Nir. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung ShitnE %0 - - - - - 0
r, CHAN Chi Leong RERTE 240 - - - - - 240
Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang LRt 240 - - - - - 240
Mr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-Kuen (Note () EXFS € &4 (H (i) 600 - - - - LY ]
Mr 1P Shu Kwan Stephen EFBLE 240 - - - - - 240
2280 9,252 - 76 3% 13 011
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SREEBRRNE
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EEEANFX(BEESEHS)

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (&)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's () EESRTHEARZMS (@)
emoluments (Continued)
The remunerations of each director and the Chief AEBRESERITHABHRE
Executive Officer of the Group for the year ended 31 22021 F 12 B3 HILFEMNH
December 2021 are set out below: BME 5T

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Group, the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
i 4

Employer's
contribution
foa
Allowances ~ retirement
Discretionary  and benefits benefit  Share-based
Fegs Salaries bonuses in kind scheme payment

%ﬁﬁ iﬁi i A X B WWB m Ela-
H$000 HS 000 HKS000 HS000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

Year ended 31 December 2021~ EZ2021E 128317

13:3:4
Brecutie diectors HEE
Dr. LAM Shun Chiu Dennis MIESEE
(“Dr. Dennis LAM" (mEsEE])
(Chief Executive Officer) Note ()~ (/7B 48E0) (3E () 240 5,760 - - 18 - 6,018
M. LI Xiaoting ('Ms. LI') (Note ()~ ZB XL ([%%1])
(i) - 3,000 - 783 18 1804 5,605
Mr. Ll Chun Shan (Note (i) SELGE (G - 505 - - - - 505
D, LEE Yau Wing Vincent (Note (i)~ /A% B4 (R (i) 0 - - - - m 15
Inclpencent non-executie diectors BUAH/EE
Dr. LI Kwok Tung Donald FEREE 240 - - - - - 40
Nir. MA Andrew Chiu Cheung Shitnk 0 - - - - - 0
r, CHAN Chi Leong [yt 40 - - - - - 20
Ms. BENTLEY Annie Liang LRt 0 - - - - - U0
Mr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-Kuen (Note () BXFS € 4 (H (i) 299 - - - - - 299
Mr. 1P Shu Kwan Stephen Efpns 0 - - - - - 40
1979 9,65 - 78 3% 2016 14,079
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's
emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The remuneration of Dr. Dennis LAM shown in the
tables represent remuneration received and receivable
from the Group by him in his capacities as a director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
an ophthalmologist to the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same).

The remunerations of Ms. LI and Mr. LI Chun Shan
shown in the tables represent remuneration received
and receivable from the Group by them in their
capacities as directors of the Company and employees
to the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: same).

The remunerations of Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent
represent remunerations received and receivable
from the Group by him in his capacity as a director of
the Company. During the year ended 31 December
2022, Dr. LEE Yau Wing Vincent received doctors’
consultation fees of approximately HK$29,738,000
(2021: HK$26,431,000).

Mr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen was appointed as the
vice chairman of the board of directors on 2 November
2021.

9

RE M EmARMEE

BERAAX (BEESEH)

(&)

() EERITRARME (&)

GEE

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BT B MK JIE R B8 A A
fEHRNEE2022F12 A 31
AEFEERARARESTR
THREFARAEEREIE
A B K FE W & L Y 5 A
(20214 : §8R) °

KA ZL L RFRILL
& B e R TR E E 2022
FNRANALEFEERERA
RIEERAEEEESE WK
JE U AR &= B W % B (2021 4F -
R o

FEEBENFIIERIEAAR
AREECRRERAEER
B H Bl - R ELZ 20224 12 A
BNALEFE FHEBEW
HHE 42 & B#29,738,000
7 7T (2021 4F : 26,431,00078
JT) o

BLEZ (A S A0 2021 4F 11 A
2REZREREZEEITE -
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Vﬁé‘ﬁj R M

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EERIFEZ(BEEESEMS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (&)

(a) ESRITHARME (5)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's

198

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

emoluments (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
aggregate amounts of remuneration including fees,
salaries, discretionary bonuses, allowances and benefits
in kind, employer’s contribution to a retirement
benefit scheme, share-based payment and doctors’
consultation fees which were paid by the Group to the
directors were approximately HK$42,515,000 (2021:
HK$40,510,000).

No remunerations were paid or receivables in respect
of accepting office as director during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

No emoluments were paid or receivable in respect of
directors’ loss of office as a director of any member
of the Group or any other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
retirement benefits, payments or benefits in respect of
termination of directors’ services were paid or made,
directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor were any
payable (2021: Nil). No consideration was provided
to or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services or in any other capacity while
director (2021: Nil).

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of the directors
of the Company and of the holding company of
the Company, or controlled body corporates and
connected entities of such directors during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

FHENBRZERERLQA

REE2022F12A318 IEF
B ASEERE ST
BE(BREES  FHE BIBE
A ZBREWRERA - BERER
REFIFTEE R M50 - AR
MAEERONZIUAREEZ )
B#142,515,00078 7T (2021 4 -
40,510,000/ 7T) °

REZE2022F12 A31HIEHF
B HMEEREMESHEM
TSR RIS (2021 4F « 4) o

REE2022F12A318 IEF
EoBEREERIALEET
MKERARMNEERERAE
BARNBHEMBRBIEHAM
IR A E AR A5 M S A5 ok e Uk
BB S (20214 « &) o

RAEZE2022F12 A31HIEHF
EoBMEERERESIRENE
B S (20214 : ) o

REE2022F12A3181LF
B HMERKEIEERERAE
EEHENBEEI TR ERNR
REF) - (I FRARF » TR (A
8 b F8 B8 A E 1< 3008 (2021 4F
/) MERESEERB KT
EAZEEHMUEME D RG
A8 = F IR IR B sk FE 5 58
=T EREN (2021 4F ¢ &) o

REE2022F12A3181LF
B BEUARQARIEARAZ
TRABIMEBR I HEFEG
RZEZBLEEERATTAN
BER-EERREMXZHLTH
(20214 « #) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's
emoluments (Continued)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest amongst the directors and employees in the
Group include three (2021: three) directors, Dr. LEE
Yau Wing Vincent, Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI (2021:
same), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above for the year ended 31 December
2022. The emoluments payable to the remaining
two (2021: two) individuals for the year ended 31
December 2022 are as follows:

9 EERIAX(BREEH)

(&)

(a)

(b)

EERTRARME (50

REGAEVBERERSTEES
SN RABIBMEFLARAE
ERETEESMEEEEX
s BREZE 2022412 A31
B 1 FEF R RERDA
GFEBENRS  THEREH# (2021
FME) o

TEBREHFHAL

REE2022F12A3181LF
B ASEEEREEFTHA
HE:EH AL EIE =4 (2021
F:=ZR)EE(ZHhEEE
A IIEEAEE A K 2= £ ) (2021 4F -
HE)  BEMFHRERE EX
ETH DM o RELE 202212
A3MBIEFE EBNHBTMWHA
(2021 F - WH) ATHHEH
T

Year ended 31 December
BZ128318LLEE
2022 2021
20214
HK$'000

FET

2022 F
HK$°000
F#ET

Wages, salaries, and allowances TE - Fre kER 3,932 3,150
Bonuses TE4L 600 480
Pension costs SN A DN 36 36

4,568 3,666
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Neaida Ll
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EERIAX(BREEH)

DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (%)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEBRSHFMALE)
No remunerations were paid or receivable in respect REE2022F12A3181EF
of accepting office of the above individuals during the EoBMER LA ATESER
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). il 2 A sk e W ) B & (2021 4 -

=) -

No emoluments were paid or receivable in respect of REZE2022F12A31HIEF
the above individuals’ loss of office of any office in EoBER LA LHERE
connection with the management of the affairs of the BARAASEME QAN ER
Company or its subsidiary undertaking during the year B 88 (AT B AL T S A5 ok FE Uk
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). MBS (2021 6 « &) ©
The emoluments fell within the following bands: HIEATEHER :

Number of individuals
A

Year ended 31 December

BZE12B31BLFE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Emolument bands e E
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7L = 1,500,000
BT - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7L = 2,000,000
B TT - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7¢ = 2,500,000
BT 2 _
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R B IR AR IEE

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BRI FEE

Year ended 31 December
HE12HA31HLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
F T FET
Finance income B U A
Bank interest income IRITHF BUA 7,112 4,475
e o1M2 4,475
Finance costs U ID®N
Interest expense on leases MEF B HEZ (18,470) (12,533)
Interest expense on loan from a non- IR EREROF BRI
controlling interest (Note 35) (fH5E35) (417) (270)
Interest expense on bank loans RITERFERX (769) (192)
__________________________________________________________________________________ (19,656) (12,995
Finance costs, net R AR EE (12,544) (8,520)
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Vil ot
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1M1 FEHRAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of HE2022F12A831BILFEE &
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits 7 A 15 B Bh kB E SRR N B AR B xR
for the year ended 31 December 2022. 16.5% (20214F : 16.5% ) SHIRHEE o
The applicable tax rate for the subsidiaries in Mainland HZE2022F12A3MBEFE A&
China of the Group was 25% (2021: 25%) for the year BEREAMHBATNEANEA
ended 31 December 2022. 25% (20214 : 25%) °
Under the new Corporate Income Tax Law, corporate RIEFOCEMRAERE  RESTMK
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign investor MHISNEIRE E AR P EAMINE
incorporated in Hong Kong for dividend which arises from ZH2008F1 A1 8% BEEHFEFT
profit of foreign investment enterprises earned in Mainland EAMIR B IR R 5% MM ¥TEN
China after 1 January 2008 at a tax rate of 5%. P8R -
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated BabtreEbRENBROHIESEA

statement of comprehensive income represents:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FH&TT
Current income tax BIEAPT1S %X

— Hong Kong profits tax —BENEN 28,688 14,495

— China enterprise income tax —HE{ERER 3,091 3,051

BAEFERETR

Under/(over)-provision in prior years (EBEaEE) 11 (852)
Deferred income tax (Note 28) FEIEFTIS T (M FE28) 3,208 (6,049)
Income tax expense FriSfim X 34,998 10,645
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RE M EmARMEE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FEFHEX @
The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax REBRATERAT (BB FEOR
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using THEF ARE AR S B AR FE A
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the TR EFESEINEREENER
Group companies as follows: N

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBILLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$000 HK$°000
FET F&ET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrFTS R AT (E518) /FIE (11,227) 26,875
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate LEANS AR
applicable to (loss)/profit in respective (E518) /FIBH & 1 B
jurisdictions FFERIE (18,209) (3,094)
Tax effects of: THSENRBLE
Income not subject to tax REUA (7,829) (6,380)
Expenses not deductible for taxation EIE b
purpose 9,168 211
Tax losses for which no deferred income 7 S FERIELE ST E E
tax assets were recognised KIFLIE BB 54,820 21,783
Withholding tax on royalty income BB AR TER 800 847
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETR/
(ERRR R E) 1" (852)
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax &7 5t B R FE FR EA
losses TIEEE (206) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax 2 Fl %t il R HE 32 HY
losses HIAEE (2,635) (726)
Tax concession HIBER (922) (1,144)
Income tax expense FTiS Rt 2 34,998 10,645
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RAMBARHE
12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BR(EE) BF
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing BREXN (BB, BFEAQ
the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of AR A ARG (BB 5
the Company by the weighted average number of HERAB BT E @R NETS
ordinary shares in issue. HErE -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity FANRRRERFTE AENG
holders of the Company during the ~ (&518) /58 (F7#&7T)

year (HK$'000) (21,875) 21,861
Weighted average number of BT T mARINE T
ordinary shares in issue 1,233,126,103 1,148,202,532
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (EB) /&
(HK cents) (&AL (1.77) 1.90
Note: B oE
() The (loss)/earnings per share as presented above is iy EXmINESER(EE) &
calculated using the weighted average number of M EE £2022F12 A
1,233,126,103 (2021: 1,148,202,532) ordinary shares BSTHLEFERESETH
deemed to be in issue for the year ended 31 December 1,233,126,103 % (2021 4F :
2022. 1,148,202,532 %) & 38 A% h &
FHEE -
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RE M EmARMEE

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 BR(BR) B @
(b) Diluted (b) #5%
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by GREE (BB BANTHEBER
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary CEBRAAEREEEINE®
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive B WRBFHEFTEINE
potential ordinary shares. During the year ended BREMMETHEEITEE -
31 December 2022, the Group had no (2021: one HE202F 128318 IFEE -
category of) dilutive potential ordinary shares. AEEWHE (2021F : —48) A
BEENNEER -

As at 31 December 2022, 4,195,000 post-IPO share w2022 12 H31H

options (2021: 200,000 post-IPO share options) 4,195,00019 & R1TEA & X
outstanding were not included in the calculation of NFEEERBRE (2021F -
diluted loss (2021: earnings) per share because they 200,000 BX AFEERER
were antidilutive for the year ended 31 December ) REt B8 REE E 18 (2021
2022. F B BIWESA - LTIE

RZEERENREZ=2022F12
A31HIFEEREEER -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity FAXRRETIFE ARG
holders of the Company during the ~ (&518) /58 (F7#&7T)

year (HK$'000) (21,875) 21,861
Weighted average number of BT L mARINE T 5
ordinary shares in issue 1,233,126,103 1,148,202,532
Adjustments for: AT HIBEL FHE
— impact of the share option —BERESENTE
schemes - 2,529,558

Weighted average number of ordinary AR 5+ & &% 858 (&518)
shares for diluted (loss)/earnings per % T #3238 B N4 S 39 £

share 1,233,126,103 1,150,732,090
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SRS (EBR) &F
(HK cents) (B (1.77) 1.90
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V%? S BEBRMETE
13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 V¥ BERRKRE
Office
Medical Leasehold  furniture and Computer Motor  Construction
Building equipment  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles in progress
HAGER
BRRk RENERE EERE ERRG hE fRIR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 H$000
At1 January 2021 R0UE1A18
Cost A 19,168 23,700 102,3% 9618 10,349 330 11,847 380,401
Accumulated depreciation 237 - (76,794) (69,710) (6,431) (6,781) (2,539) - (162,251)
Net book amount FESE 19,168 146,906 32,685 3187 3568 789 11847 218,150
Yearended 31 December ~ EZ2021E12A318
2021 LEE
Opening net book amount ~ FIEE e 19,168 146,906 3,68 3187 3,568 789 11,847 218,150
Addtions e - 65,121 4944 2735 41 2,906 8819 127302
Additions through FRNENHELR
acquistion of subsidiaries HE - 1310 4,85 1,109 87 - - 13421
Transler 2 - - 13,059 - - - (13,059) -
Disposals L& - ) (607) - (1) - - (625)
Diposdof asubsidiy ~ H&-FHEL - 7.17) {4880 (56 (198) (104 - (12410
Depreciation Mg - (26,345) (19951) (1,350) (2,324 (623) - (50,593)
Currency tranglation NEEEES
differences 583 4,546 1,099 I 13 I 291 6,716
Closing netbook amount ~~ EXEAFE 19,751 190,420 69,204 5,667 6,011 3010 7898 301,961
At 31 December 2021 R0UERANE
Cost ik 19,751 300,631 169,002 15,691 15,177 6,224 7898 534374
Accumulated depreciation  Z3FAE - (110211) (99,798) (10,04) (9,166) (3214 - (232413)
Net book amount FESE 19,751 190420 69,204 5,667 6,011 3010 7,89 301,961
Year ended 31 December ~ EZ2022E128318
022 LEE
Opening netbook amount ~~ FAIEE SR 19,751 190420 69,204 5,667 6,011 3010 789 301,91
Addtions HE 14 28,965 16,649 1382 2801 997 34,606 85,414
Additions through FANENELR
acquisiton of subsidiaries ~ AE 74,953 149712 17,25 3,8% 1561 2,363 4,874 119,875
Trangfer &R - - 19,697 - - - (19697) -
Disposals HE - (622) - @) (37) (995) - (1,681)
Depreciation nE (4733) (36,087) (36,785) (3.921) (3133) (1,615) - (86,274)
Currengy translation 5482
differences (6,125) (13,842) (4724) (229) (445) (280) (1322) (26,962)
Closing net book amount ~~ FREEFE 83,860 183,806 81,207 6,773 6,758 3,480 26,359 392,333
At31 December 2022 RARE12A31A
Cost i 88439 398,385 235,854 37,585 124 9,648 26,359 817,511
Accumulated depreciation ~~ E5HTE (4579) (214579) (154,557) (30812) (14483) (6,168) - (425,178)
Net book amount EEFE 83,860 183,806 81,297 6,773 6,758 3,480 26,359 392,333
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RE M EmARMEE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 ¥ BEERRKRE®

Depreciation expense charged in the consolidated statement REEETEWERITROITEERS
of comprehensive income is as follows: FEAR -

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
Cost of revenue $HE KA 56,349 38,226
Administrative expenses THEX 29,925 12,367
86,274 50,593
Information on non-current assets pledged as security for BEARAREBFIRHERIERD
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in Note 34. BEMNEMNME4PHRE -
14 LEASES 14 HESE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is BB EEE 5 B B AR S B VE R A A FT
a lessee. RIVTHENER -
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) RIREHMBRREKREINE
statement of financial position £
The consolidated statement of financial position shows RAETBRAIRBERIATER
the following balances relating to the leases: HEMEL

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 AOYA
2022 20214
HK$000 HK$000
FAET FET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Properties SIES 357,128 256,361
Land use right T Hb (AR 305,761 338,514
Medical equipment R 2,419 4,450
665,308 599,325
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current & 115,078 86,074
Non-current SERE 281,937 198,616
397,015 284,690
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14 LEASES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$157,174,000 (2021: HK$86,041,000) and the
additions of right-of-use assets through acquisition
of subsidiaries amounted to approximately
HK$82,555,000 (2021: HK$39,478,000), representing
the lease of clinics, hospitals, office premises, staff
quarters and medical equipment.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
shows the following amounts relating to the leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets (Note 8)

Expenses relating to short-term leases
(Note 8)

Interest expense (Note 10)

GET))
(MfzE8)

14 #HE %)

(a)

(b)

FREEENEER
HEEHHEEAENEY
FEF X (MiE10)

REEMBRAREINE
(4

HE2022F12A31HIEFE -
FAEEENE 157,174,000
T (20214 : 86,041,000/
L) BBRENBRARANE
{5 FA 7 & 7= 49 82,555,000 78 7T
(20214 : 39,478,000 7T) -
IEHEEZHT B WAEWE -
BIBREREERE-

REE2HEBREREZNE

B

FArEWERBTATEAR
MEHFRIA :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
135,979 96,801
3,327 2,353
18,470 12,533

Depreciation expense charged in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

REazmBRaRMEOTE
ERHINWT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILLEE

2022 2021

2022 & 2021 4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Cost of revenue SHE KA 84,093 60,820
Administrative expenses 1THHR X 51,886 35,981
135,979 96,801

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$136,243,000 (2021: HK$92,456,000).

FHENBRZERERLQA

HE2022F12A8318H 15
E-HEMNBRSRLEENA
136,243,000 7T (20214 :
92,456,000787TC) °
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RE M EmARMEE

14 LEASES (Continued)

(9]

15

The Group's leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various properties including clinics,
hospitals, office premises, staff quarters and medical
equipment. The lease terms are between one to ten
years, but may have extension options as described
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
must not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.
The majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

14 #HE %)

(9]

FEENEEEBRZEE
B ] 51 B

AEEHEZEYE (BEDH -
Bl MAZMEREBIES
kEEHRE) BENF—F=
T& AT XA R -

MEGRRTIZE R EERERE
Ba s B RGRR RS - &R
HHEABENHEEETHNIE
RIS - T E 15 % 3 B AN
TRRwE - HEEETFRIE
fEE B ARG -

AERENZEMFEEELES
R R IEEEE - ZFEE
BIAUAGRAREEREE
AEEEXEBIREENKER
B TR BERABO TR R
RIbEZEETHAEEMIE
MEEHEATTRE -

15 BREWE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILLEE

2022 2021

2022 20214F

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FETT FET

At 1 January W1A18 - -
Additions through acquisition of FRYEM B R RARE

subsidiaries 14,298 -

Depreciation e (353) -

Currency translation differences SN E =R (907) -

At 31 December M®12A31H 13,038 -

Depreciation of HK$353,000 (2021: Nil) is included in the
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

#r 8 353,000/8 7T (2021 5+ T) 7 A
REEERERMITHRAX
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16

The net book value of the Group’s intangible assets is

analysed as follow:

Goodwill

HE

HK$000
THT

BILEE
AEBERAENERFES DT :

Others
(Note)

H At ()
HK$'000
FET

Brand
name
mEER
HK$000
FHET

Total
@t
HK$000
FET

At 1 January 2021 W2021%1818
Cost %S 138,520 - 10,403 148,923
Accumulated amortisation EE: £ - - (3,989) (3,989)
138,520 - 6,414 144,934
Year ended 31 December 2021  EZ2021%128318
LEE
Opening net book amount FOEmFE 138,520 - 6,414 144,934
Additions NE - - 3,548 3,548
Additions through acquisition of & BB A A
subsidiaries NE 59,243 - - 59,243
Disposal of subsidiary HERBAR (6,410) - - (6,410)
Amortisation B - - (1,187) (1,187)
Currency translation differences N E R 3,617 - 216 3,833
Closing net book amount FREmMFE 194,970 - 8,991 203,961
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12A31H
Cost PR 194,970 - 14,300 209,270
Accumulated amortisation RETHE - - (5,309) (5,300)
194,970 - 8,991 203,961
Year ended 31 December 2022  EZ2022%128318
LEE
Opening net book amount FOEmFE 194,970 - 8,991 203,961
Additions NE - - 2,221 2,221
Additions through acquisition of & BN EEH B A A
subsidiaries NE 373,582 289,911 79 663,572
Amortisation B - - (1,428) (1,428)
Currency translation differences INEIBEERE (27.868) (18,398) (667) (46,933)
Closing net book amount FREmMFE 540,684 271,513 9,196 821,393
At 31 December 2022 R2022512A31H
Cost %S 540,684 271,513 15,571 827,768
Accumulated amortisation RETHE - = (6,375) (6,375)
540,684 271,513 9,196 821,393

Note: Other intangible assets mainly represent computer software.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FHENBRZERERLQA
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

RE M EmARMEE

16 BREEE®)

Amortisation expense charged in the consolidated statement mn

FIanH

of comprehensive income is as follows:

FeETERSERAGOEEERS

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2022 PAOYA
2022 F 2021 £
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of revenue $HE A 885 747
Administrative expenses THHAX 543 440
1,428 1,187

(a) Impairment tests for goodwiill

() FEBBEERR

Goodwill arising from business combinations is
allocated to the following CGUs for impairment

testing:

EGAMHEENRENREEN
TReELBMETRERR

As at
Ji
31 December
2022

31 December
AOYA
20214

12 A31H
HK$ 000
FET

2022 £
128318
HK$°000
FET

Kunming Eye Hospital AR B b
("Kunming Hospital") (EHER]) 33,033 35,791
Shanghai Eye Hospital and clinics LBIRBIER K2
(“Shanghai Group”) (Tbs&m])) 67,812 73,473
Zhuhai Eye Hospital (“Zhuhai RGIRPIERT
Hospital”) ([RGB ) 12,310 13,338
C-MER Eye Centre (Melbourne Plaza)  # 35BREI 0 (B H17)
(“Clinic in Central”) ([h®BAT) 19,535 19,535
CAD/CAM Restorative Dental Centre  CAD/CAM Restorative
Limited (“Clinic in Causeway Bay”) Dental Centre Limited
([ &2 FT ) 12,164 12,164
Champion Eye Centre Limited EZERBFLERAA
("Champion Eye”) ([ZERA) 35,619 -
The Optometry (OPT) Centre Limited R ETERERP OAR A A
("OPT") (MRHEMEREE ) 20,521 -
Shenzhen C-MER Aikangjian Dental — SFEJITH %5 FEE O prs
Group Co., Ltd. EER QA
(“Shenzhen CKJ Group”) (MFRINEERER]) 271,864 =
Other clinics H2 A 67,826 40,669
540,684 194,970
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RAMBREHE
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16 EBEEE#)
(a) Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued) () BEREMNH®E®
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based HeELEBEMNNKRESET
on higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and RIE N AR S KA R A
value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations BEFAEFEZNREEET °F
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial RAEEFEAEZDREEE
budgets approved by management covering a five- HEBE R FHANMBES
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period FRABAREREERAIEL -
are extrapolated using the terminal growth rates. RFHEzENReREEA
RER I R R o
The following table sets out the key assumptions for TREINEHAEBEFENEE
value-in-use calculations: R

nm
WE
Thuhai Clinic Kunming Shanghai Clinicin Shenzhen CKJ

Hospital in Central Hospital Group  CausewayBay  Champion Eye 0PT Group  Other Clinics
WERE  WEYE  BEBR  LERE  BEEDF  BERN RAGRENL MIRRRER  EfR
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKs000 HKS000 HKS 000
7 72 74 73 #r 72 7 77 77

Compound revenue qrowth ~~ SENEES

for 5 years K52 B% 3% 18% 26% 2 3% 5% 3% 2%-32%
Temind evenue growthrate RENGERE 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate LR 14% 12% 14% 15% 13% 12% 12% 16% 11%-13%

2021
2021F
Clinicin
Kunming Shanghai Zhuhai Clinicin Causeway Other
Hospital Group Hospital Central Bay clinics
EHER LEEHE H8ER RRDM  HEEDM LY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

S S S S - -
- - - gy o T K
FET FET FET T T 5T

Compound revenue SEMEES

growth for 5 years HRx 35% 4% 2% 24% 4%  4%-21%
Terminal revenue growth — REIEE KX

rate 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate RS 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERBEEZERERA A
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RE M EmARMEE

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

Management determines growth rate of revenue
based on past performance and its expectations for
the market development. The discount rate used is
pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the CGUs.
The terminal growth rate applied beyond the budget
period is estimated based on current capacity of the
CGUs.

As at 31 December 2022, the recoverable amounts
calculated based on value-in-use exceeded the carrying
values of the CGUs. No impairment of goodwill was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).

Impact of possible changes in key
assumptions

The headroom for the recoverable amount of Zhuhai
Hospital, Kunming Hospital, Shanghai Group and
Shenzhen CKJ Group CGU would be lower than their
carrying amounts if the key assumptions were to
change as follows:

° For the Zhuhai Hospital CGU, a decrease in
compound revenue annual growth rate by more
than 4.3%, a decrease in terminal growth rate
by more than 7.7% or an increase in pre-tax
discount rate by more than 5.4%, all changes
taken in isolation.

o For the Kunming Hospital CGU, a decrease in
compound revenue annual growth rate by more
than 5.7%, a decrease in terminal growth rate
by more than 18.9% or an increase in pre-tax
discount rate by more than 13.5%, all changes
taken in isolation.

o For the Shanghai Group CGU, a decrease in
compound revenue growth rate by more than
2.0%, a decrease in terminal revenue growth
rate by more than 3.0% or an increase in pre-tax
discount rate by more than 2.0%, all changes
taken in isolation.

16 BREEE®)

(a)

(b)

B R E R ()

EEERBBERANESHD
SRRNBEPET RaERE -
PrRERMIRE B ATRE R R
RERER S ELBMA RN
ERER - NEERERAOKR
HEREDREREELEM
EATRRE D fAET o

R2022F 128318 - IREGE
AEEEmTE S EBL
ReELEMNMERE B2
2022412 A31 HIEFE I EAE
REEME (20214 : #) -

TERRTESBHLE

B BRREFELENTE(L K
BBl - RREK - LEKER
RYNERRBEERSELEM
#) R U [ 2 2R R EL AR A

e MHKRBEBRESLELEM
mME EEWAFEEREX
TR#BiR4.3% @ REIEE
RNEHBIET7.7% s B A aL
WK FAMBIBES54%  FTAE
Bl EBEE -

o HEWHERReEAEMN
mME EEWAFEEREX
TR 4BiB57%  REEE
RN FB B 18.9% 5k Bt Al
BhIR & F AR 13.5% ¢
B EBERE -

e HEBEERSELEN
mE BEEKRAZRET
PEEE IR 2.0% - R EH U A8
RETEHEE3.0% H A
FEBRER BB 2.0% @ FT
BE{HEBER -
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RAMBERN
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16 B|BEEE®W
(b) Impact of possible changes in key (b) FEBRIJTESBNTE (8)
assumptions (Continued)
e For the Shenzhen CKJ Group CGU, a decrease e MRV ERREERSE
in compound revenue growth rate by more than EBAME B WA
3.1%, a decrease in terminal revenue growth RETHEBB31%  KH
rate by more than 3.0% or an increase in pre-tax WA RETHEEIB3.0%
discount rate by more than 4.0%, all changes B ATRL IR R LA A
taken in isolation. 40%  FIEE(HERE
J%: o
For the remaining CGUs, their recoverable amounts MHBTREESLEMNMS @ &
would still be higher than their carrying amounts BB R ETMA RN §E
for any reasonably possible change in the key B EAE B NG
assumptions. PHEBRMEE -
17 INVENTORIES 17 BE
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2022 PAOYA
2022 F 2021 4F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET F#&T
Pharmaceuticals and medical consumables 2% 5 & B8 /& £ /7 38,023 28,911
Vision aid products R E BN E & 13,355 4,533
51,378 33,444
The cost of inventories and consumables recognised as HE202F12A831HILEFE  BER
expense and included in cost of revenue amounted to REBUAAHEXNRINFE RFEM
approximately HK$504,901,000 (2021: HK$272,259,000) FX AN #9 /2 504,901,000 7 7T (2021 4F
for the year ended 31 December 2022. 272,259,000 7T) °

214 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED FZERBMEEZERER AT
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RE M EmARMEE

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 18 REHE/TNESHMITE
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Financial assets at amortised cost REHA ARSI BRA 2 B
BE
— Trade receivables — & S IE 47,133 17,980
— Deposits and other receivables — L& K H A E R FIE 54,281 38,205
— Amounts due from associates — FEYEE & A R SRIA 6,739 12,113
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekBeEEY 644,698 386,659
— Short-term deposits —RHE 31,330 -
— Financial assets at fair value through — B RAFEFAEME
other comprehensive income MW AN SR EE 74,167 52,575
— Financial asset at fair value through —RATFEFABED
profit or loss EREE 22,484 55,704
880,832 563,236
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHA ARSI BRA 2/
=i
— Trade payables —B S ENFIE 45,306 39,866
— Accruals and other payables —[EET B R K A E A
PR 69,800 49,395
— Amount due to a related party — JE — R B 5 5O - 33
— Amounts due to non-controlling — A FEIE AR M 2R SR IR
interests 154,704 3,961
— Loans from non-controlling interests —JEERERER 21,215 7,595
— Borrowings — &% 34,257 179,406
— Lease liabilities —-HE&AE 397,015 284,690
722,297 564,946
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Vﬁé‘,ﬁw TR

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES 19

Trade receivables

2 5 WA

B 2 BWRE

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022

2022 £

HK$’000

FET

47,133

2021
20214
HK$°000
FET

17,980

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.

The trade receivables are due when services are rendered
and goods are sold. As at 31 December 2022, the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables based on due date and
invoice date was as follows:

off Iy

5 WA R BRE B R E QA

BORWHBEBRRERERLEEY
B BN & B A 1 - 742022412 A 31
H BZEKFEBERIBAGEREE
HEIRBRER D ATAO T

As at 31 December

MR12831H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
0-90 days 0290 H 39,354 16,590
91-180 days 912180 H 4,565 594
Over 180 days #®i@ 180 H 3,214 796
47,133 17,980

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Details in
determining the loss allowance are set out in Note 3.1(b).

As at 31 December 2022, all the trade receivables balances
were not impaired (2021: same). These relate to a number
of independent clients, commercial companies and local
government to which no credit terms were granted.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED HHERBEEZERERA A

AEBERABBVERELENFEIR
BE 2t BERMEEEE  RAA
B RYGRIAR A 2 MR E R R o
EEBRBRENFIBEENKIE310) -

MR2022F 128318 FTBEESEW
FIBLE I ARMAE (2021 4F : 4EF) »
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RE M EmARMEE

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19 ESEWNKIE @
The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated Z S RKHIENREEIRATEE
in the following currencies: FHE -

As at 31 December

MR12A31H
2022 AOYA
2022 F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
HK$ BT 37,335 13,941
RMB AR 9,798 4,039
47,133 17,980
20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 BE  FANAFERHEMERK
RECEIVABLES 17
As at 31 December
M®12831H
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FETT FAET
Non-current JEBNHER
Prepayments for property, plant and M BERBEER
equipment KRIE 4,746 2,078
Prepayment for employee compensation 1 B # BB FUAE 6,673 7,378
Rental deposits Heks 18,573 6,425
Y | el . 1881
Current BN &R
Prepayments for inventories ERTFENRIE 4,237 1,012
Prepayments for rental expenses ENEEER 1,409 6,956
Prepayments for operating expenses AR EEEA 10,485 7,808
Prepayment for employee compensation 18 B # EIE(f ZE 956 2,125
Prepayment for acquisition of e B — R BT B8 2 A1 Y
a subsidiary TEfT5RIE - 190,808
Rental and other deposits HekEMize 29,510 27,207
Others HAit 6,198 4,573
S T O VOO | 32,795 . 240,489
Total deposits, prepayments and other e BRNRIBREM
receivables FEWHIBEE & 82,787 256,370
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RAMBERN

20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 BE  FANAFERHEMERK
RECEIVABLES (Continued) H (&)
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables ReREMBRHENREDERELR
approximate their fair values. FEBE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is RBERE ZAEERRA LRE
the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. HREWRIENATE NEBEWER
The Group does not hold collateral as security. BEMAERmIERERT -
The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments e~ AR FRIE & H M E W IE R BR
and other receivables are denominated in the following HEETIZA T EEETE -
currencies:

As at 31 December

MR12A831H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 35,322 32,793
RMB AREE 47,465 223,577
82,787 256,370

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT- 21 RERBEESEEYRERERT

TERM BANK DEPOSITS X

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and short-term RekBeEEWERIBAR=E
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or ASATHIR & KRG ERITIFR
less.

As at 31 December

M®12A31H

2022 AOYA

2022 & 2021 £

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FEr

Cash at banks (Note (7)) R17IH S (MTFEG)) 236,070 309,726

Cash on hand FHES 1,488 1,279
Short-term bank deposits with maturities R 2|81 B 318 A LA T #9452 25

of less than three months (Note (ii)) RIT1F R (B RE () 407,140 75,654

Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 644,698 386,659
Short-term bank deposits with maturities  FREIH3 A #3838 3 K2 HA

of more than three months (Note (iii) $R1717 3% (B 2 Gii)) 31,330 -

676,028 386,659

AL C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ZERMEBEZERERA A
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies:

RE M EmARMEE

REeRBSEEYREHERT
FR)

Re MR FEYRATERHE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
US$ (Note (iv)) 7T (B EEGv) 23,363 122
HK$ BT 522,293 123,610
RMB (Note (iv)) AERE (ML Gv)) 130,366 262,927
SGD ¥ oo 6 -
676,028 386,659

Notes: FfsE -

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Cash at banks generated interest at prevailing market interest
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.3% (2021: 0.01% to 0.03%)
per annum during the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rate per
annum on short-term bank deposits with maturities of less
than three months was 5.16% (2021: 2.21%).

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rate per
annum on short-term bank deposits with maturities of more
than three months was 5.08% (2021: Nil).

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$79,285,000 (2021:
HK$150,629,000) were held in Mainland China as at 31
December 2022 and were subject to local exchange control
regulations. Those local exchange control regulations provide
for restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other
than through normal dividends.

() BITHESHREZE2022F12A831H
IEFEEEMFETIEN T0.01%
20.3% (20214 : 0.01% £0.03%)
RBITTR FFEHE -

(i) M20224128318 REIHAH3ME
BUTHEHRITTEARNEREF
RAE516% (20214F : 2.21%) °

(i) M2022F12A31H REHAR
BIEAMEHRTERANERF
2% A5.08% (2021 4F : #) ©

(iv) 72022612 A31 B &R B R #
EWEE KR EFEYT9,285,000
77T (20214 ¢ 150,629,000787T) °
ZEFIBXEHINEE SERRR o
ZEEHINEEFERE P EE
& & MABR I - METEE D ALBRIN ©
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Vﬁé,ﬂ?f R M

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income represent unlisted equity investments which
are denominated in HK$ and US$. These are strategic
investments which are not held for trading and the Group
considers this classification to be more relevant. Its fair value

is analysed as follows:

22 BEATFEFAHEMZEKAN
ERMEE
BATEFAHMEZERANSRE
ERUBTRETHENIELTRA
BE - HEREAFERMEE Wi
BIEEE MALERALSESRA
B EATFESITMT

HK$000
FET

At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and

202151818 - 20215

1 January 2022 12A31HK%2022%181H 52,575
Addition NE 7,830
Change in fair value NEEEH 13,762
At 31 December 2022 7A2022%12A31H 74,167

Nature of financial instruments: SHTAME:
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Effective interest
establishment and issued share capital/ held by the Principal activities/
kind of legal entity registered capital ~ Company Directly  place of operation
Company name HRAL/ BIBER BRITRE/ KA TEER/
INGIER rEERER SRA ERER EEHY
2022 2021
W2E  201F
Avalon Global Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands 124,302,101 4.1% 4.4%  Development of next generation
("Avalon”) ordinary shares healthcare solutions across biopharma,
of no par value diagnostics, medical devices and other
area of healthcare, HK
Avalon Global Holdings Limited ~ RERZEE 124,302,101 % REEENHE D8 BEEAL
([ Avalon]) EEENTAR EnBEREEHFET -REE
Y EE
BELKIN Vision Ltd. ("Belkin") Israeli 925,223 ordinary 8.4% 8.4%  Development of automated one-second
(formerly BELKIN Laser Ltd.) shares of glaucoma laser treatment, Israeli
NIS 0.01 each;
3,164,685 preferred
shares of NIS 0.01 each
BELKIN Vision Ltd. ([Belkin]) LA BREE.01 RERBRDE LRI AES
(#178 BBELKIN Laser Ltd.) BB el
925,223 [ LA -
BREEO.01
FHR AN
3,164,685 R B R

Note: On 6 January 2022 and 23 August 2022, the Group entered
into the convertible loan agreement with Belkin for a loan of
US$500,849 (equivalent to HK$3,905,000) and US$500,000
(equivalent to HK$3,925,000) respectively.

For further details about the fair value estimate and
movement of the financial assets at fair value, please refer

to Note 3.3.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FHENBRZERERLQA

fsE 7220229 1 B6 H 2202248 A23
B - K& H HBelkin 5] 3 Al AR E K
Wi BERE& % 51/4500,8493 5T
(#8 & 7 3,905,000 7T) & 500,000
7t (FBE 73,925,000 7T) °

BEEATEAENEREENAT
B REHNE—FFE B2H
MFE3.3°
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23 BAVEFAEZNEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at financial assets at BHIEATFEFAEENSREES
fair value through profit or loss include the following: FETHIRE :

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FETT FETT
Current assets RBEE
Hong Kong listed equity securities HE T RAE S 22,484 55,704
During the year, the following (losses)/gains were recognised THFERN (BBR) Warirse 2EK
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income: R HER

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEE

2022 AOYA
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Fair value (losses)/gains on equity BEAVEFAEZENERE
investments at financial assets at fair = (REM (B518) /e
value through profit or loss recognised FEER) 2 RARER
in other (losses)/gains, net NFAE (F18) WS (33,220) 16,711
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used in the fair AEATEERANEZERERBAE -
value measurements are disclosed in the table in Note 3.3. FEERERAMEIIHEE -
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24 SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 24

(a) Share capital

IR A

RAREFRD

Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
EEREE EEREE
‘000 HK$000
FR FET
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2021, R2021F1818 -
31 December 2021, 2021128318 -
1 January 2022 and 20251818 R
31 December 2022 202212 H31H 8,000,000 800,000
Issued and paid: BETRAR:
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H 1,147,255 114,725
Issuance of shares upon exercise of TEERAREER
pre-IPO share options BRERETRG 26 167 17
Issuance of shares upon exercise of aFEERAAEER
post-IPO share options BREREITRG 26 1,782 178
Issuance of shares (Note i) BTG (MFE) 1,137 114
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12A318 R
1 January 2022 2022%€181A 1,150,341 115,034
Issuance of shares upon exercise of TFEERAREER
pre-IPO share options BRER TG 26 872 87
Issuance of shares (Notes ii & ii) EGl
(P&Eii Riii) 115,346 11,535
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H 1,266,559 126,656

Notes:

0]

(ii)

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 13 April 2021, 1,137,235 shares were allotted
and issued at HK$5.35 per share (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,084,000) to an independent third
party to acquire the practice and assets of a clinic in
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The allotment resulted
in an increase of share capital and share premium
by approximately HK$114,000 and HK$5,970,000,
respectively.

On 19 January 2022, 8,790,000 shares were allotted
and issued at HK$5.73 per share (equivalent to
approximately HK$50,367,000) to independent third
parties to acquire the equity interests in Champion Eye
Centre Limited, Hong Kong. The allotment resulted
in an increase of share capital and share premium
by approximately HK$879,000 and HK$49,488,000,
respectively.

FHENBRZERERLQA

BsE

()

(i)

»20214%4 /8138 -
1,137,235 i% 17 LA & 1% 5.35
7 7t (M8 8 7 £6,084,000 78
T RERETTF BB ILE
=5 UKERERBE K
DR EEE REE - i
B MG EED RE
Hn#114,000% 7T % 5,970,000
BT

W20224% 1 A198 -
8,790,000 % f% 17 LA & A% 5.73
77t (A8 7 #950,367,000 7%
L) BRERETTELE =
7o LREREZEREH O
BRARRAE - B EH
B8 15 R B 5 34 (B 5 B 38 hn 49
879,000 7T K 49,488,000 75
5o
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24 SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 24 REREFRS ®
(Continued)
(a) Share capital (Continued) (@) BA& (@)

Notes: (Continued) MisE : ()

(i) On 20 January 2022 and 8 December 2022, the (i)  F20224F 1 A20H K&2022
Company issued 76,500,000 and 30,056,000 shares F12A8H  ARAI RS
by placement to two independent third parties, at a FRAMMABILE = F 8T
price of HK$6.41 and HK$3.87 per share respectively. 76,500,000 fi% £ 30,056,000
The placements resulted in an increase of share capital BERH BRI AR
and share premium by approximately HK$10,656,000 6.41 %L k3.878 T o B &
and HK$596,135,000, respectively. BE Kk REHEED R

N 4910,656,000%8 7T &
596,135,000 # 7T °

(b) Treasury shares (b) EEKRHG
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
ordinary shares shares
ZEREA EEREE
‘000 HK$ 000
T FAET
At 1 January 2021, A2021F1818 -
31 December 2021 and 2021%F 128318k
1 January 2022 2022 1H1H - -
Shares repurchased =) 7,174 29,927
At 31 December 2022 72022128311 7,174 29,927
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the HZE2022F12A31HIEFE
Company repurchased its own ordinary shares on the RARRBABIEREA
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong as follows: REBR  FBEWT
Lowest Highest
Number price paid price paid Aggregate
Month/Year of shares per share per share  price paid
ENER EBNER
B3/ 6 R4 8B BIKE BEfE CEBN@E
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$ 000
Tz BT BT FAET
November 2022 2022F 11 A 4,248 3.31 4.06 15,862
December 2022 202212 A 2,926 4.36 5.02 14,065
7,174 29,927
25 STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE 25 EERERFEE
The balance represents statutory surplus reserve. In ERERIE LT RMESR -REET
accordance with articles of association of certain subsidiaries A AR B A b aE A S B B B A B Y
incorporated in Mainland China, the subsidiary is required HAHERMA - BAMBARESE
to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation prepared BB e 2R HEENRTEFED
in accordance with China accounting standards to the 10%FHREERES  BERHEHE
statutory reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the EMIRARS0% ALk - ZFEESTA
registered share capital. Such reserve can be used to reduce FA R R E AR B 5 48 IS AR AR o

any losses incurred and to increase share capital.
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26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company approved and adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
pursuant to shareholder’s resolutions passed on 28
June 2017 and 13 December 2017, respectively. Share
options were granted under both schemes to incentify
the Company’s certain directors, senior management,
ophthalmologists, physicians, employees and consultants.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme held by eligible participants
and movements in such holdings in relation thereto during
the year ended 31 December 2022:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vﬁé‘ﬁ?f R M

26 UG HEBRBMNK

RiE B R20174F6 A28H & 2017
FR2ABHBBEHBRERZR
NAEHEWRAF RN RAFAEERE
TR E R AAEEEERERT
gl o R FRIFEZMIAR 8% HER
BAMBEETES ARERE -
REIELE B4 - EEREM-

TREBERAERL2BEFZENENR
NHABREBERETE R EAARE
ERBRETSETEEORARE
R E A M E =2022F12 A31H
IFENERZRES

Number of share options ‘000

BREYATH
Exercise At Granted Exercised Forfeited At
price per 1 January during during during 31 December
Grant date Expiry date share 2022 the year the year the year 2022
RanE RanE
REAH R A BRTEE 1R1R ERERY EREAE  FRERK AR
HKS
AT
PrePO Share Option ~ ERAREEH
Scheme BRETE
1 April 2017 31 March 2023 0.1 (i 519 - - (519) -
WITE4R1H WBE3A31A
1 April 2017 31 March 2023 1.0 (i 173 - (130) #3) -
WITE4A1H WBE3A31H
1 April 2017 31 March 2027 1.0 (i 742 - (782) - -
WITE4R1H W27E3A31H
1434 - 872) (562) -
Post-PO Share Option ~ ERAREER
Scheme BhRETY
18 July 2019 16 November 2023 518 i) 3452 - - (597) 2,855
2019574188 WB3F11A16H
14 September 2020 13 September 2023 634 () 1,140 - - - 1,140
2020598148 03F9F13A
2 November 2021 1 November 2027 173 200 - - - 200
01E1 A2 7511 A1A
6,226 - (872) (1,159) 4,195
Number of options RERATI{EH
exercisable at year end BRESE 4,062
Weighted average exercse ~ JIETH{7(FE
price (HKS) ) 427 N/A 1 275 5.62
Weighted average remaining IS T AL
contractual lfe (years) (%) 483

FHENBRZERERLQA
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26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 26 URGBAEBRNSR @

Number of share options ‘000
BREHA Th
Granted
Exercise At during Exercised Forfeited At
price per 1 January the year during during 31 December

Grant date Expiry date share  Notes 2021 (Note (v)) the year the year 2021
RONE  FRER R0
\ )

Riti A ERAH BRITEE 1A18 FRERE  FRERR 128318

Pre-IPO Share Option BERABREH

Scheme BRETE
1 April 2017 15 July 2021 0.1 (il 173 - - - 173
01754818 015TR15H
1 April 2017 31 March 2022 0.1 (i 173 - - - 173
01754818 00538318
1 April 2017 31 March 2023 0.1 (i 173 - - - 173
01754818 03F3A318
1 April 2017 31 March 2023 10 173 - - - 173
01754818 03538318
1 April 2017 31 March 2027 10 742 - - - 742
01754818 07538318
1 September 2017 31 May 2024 0 W 166 - (166) - -
WI7TE9A1E WUESF3A

1,600 - (166) - 1434
Post-PO Share Option ~~ ERABREX
Scheme BRETE
18 July 2019 16 November 2023 518 (i) 5,400 - (1,782) (166) 345
201957518H 035115168
14 September 2020 13 September 2023 634 (i 1,140 - - - 1,140
2020597148 WREIF13A
2 November 2021 1 November 2027 173 - 200 - - 200
W1E11728 007F1A1R

8,140 200 (1,948) (166) 6,226
Number of options RERTTEH
exercisable at year end BRELE 2628
Weighted average evercise ~ MIETF 176 (E
price (HKS) (%) 445 258 475 518 427
Weighted average remaining  JIE TS5 TA1E 4
contractual ffe (years) (%) 519
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26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

@

(i)

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 1 April 2017, 43,578,000 options were granted to a total
of 131 grantees, which include certain ophthalmologists,
physicians, employees and executive directors.

The options are vested over periods of one to five years.
The vesting of the pre-IPO share options granted to the
ophthalmologists and certain employees is subject to
performance targets in terms of revenue generated during
the vesting periods. No performance condition exists for the
consultants, remaining employees and executive directors
who shall remain in their engagement, employment or office
over the vesting periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option ranges from HK$0.1 to
HK$1.0. Once vested, the options remain exercisable for
periods of three to five years. All unexercised pre-IPO share
options will lapse by the end of the exercise periods or upon
the cessation of employment of the grantees under the
service condition.

On 1 September 2017, 2,821,000 options were granted to
a total of eight grantees, which include certain consultants,
employees and an ophthalmologist of the Group.

The options are vested over periods of one to three years.
The vesting of the options granted to the ophthalmologist is
subject to performance target in terms of revenue generated
by the grantee during the vesting periods. No performance
condition exists for the consultants and employees who shall
remain in their engagement or employment over the vesting
periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option ranges from HK$0.1 to
HK$1.0. Once vested, the options remain exercisable for a
period of three years. All unexercised pre-IPO share options
will lapse by the end of the exercise periods or upon the
cessation of employment of the grantees under the service
condition.

26 URDAEBRNIRE

GEE

(i)

(ii)

FHENBRZERERLQA

H2017F4818 @& /\131 &
BA(BREETRREEE

BE R#MITES) K H 43,578,000 19
B AR o

BRERBHA EZE0F -BBER
FTREMEBLERE TEENERARH
BENBREAXBENEMES
WAMEBEBBERR - HHFERM -
HBTEERATEFLEREXSE
et MRENBBHANARDIZR
RIS MR8 - BB IE -

SHBRENTEENF0VELE
1087 —BRE  BREATR=
ERFHRBATE B RITED
BIR A B E AR RO S R T R
R IR PR R T 16 A = LB A AR
INEE NI

B’\2017¢9H1E m A N\ & &
BABEAEEETHER  EB
T BR L B8 A ) 1% HH 2,821,000 17 B8 B
3

BRERBHA EZE=F -BBER
TRMEBLENBREAIRBEYRA
IR APTEERARZE R BRR -
LR R R B IR B R R
i 12 5 74 57 I8 B P ZR A0 9% PR AR 75 16k
HEBARE -

FHBRENTEENF0VELE
1087 —BRE BREATR=
FHREATE - MERTENER
B 3 S A RS ORI AT R AR K
PIZRIRTS G112 LR A AR AR
KA o
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26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 18 July 2019, 6,540,000 options were granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to a total of 40 grantees,
which include certain Hong Kong ophthalmologists,
consultants and an executive director.

The options are vested over periods of one to three years. The
vesting of these options to the Hong Kong Ophthalmologists
are subject to performance targets in terms of revenue
generated during the vesting periods. No performance
condition exists for the consultants, and executive director
who shall remain in their engagement, employment or office
over the vesting periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option is HK$5.18. Once vested,
the options remain exercisable but not to exceed the period
of five years from the date of grant. All unexercised post-IPO
share options will lapse by the end of the exercise periods or
upon the cessation of service of the grantee.

On 14 September 2020, 1,140,000 options were granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to the executive
director of the Company, Ms. LI Xiaoting.

The options were vested over one year. No performance
condition exists for the executive director who shall remain in
office over the vesting periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option is HK$6.34. One vested, the
options remain exercisable until three years from the date of
grant. All unexercised post-IPO share options will lapse by the
end of the exercise periods or upon the cessation of service
of the grantee.

26 URGBAEBRNSR @

faE - ()

(iii)

(iv)

R2019F7 8188 - RIEE X AR
BEBBRETSRE L40BEE
ANBEEETEEBRMELE - BH
k—Z#$17E F) & [t 6,540,000 1
B o

BRERBHA ZEZE=F -BBEZ
ERTEERPMELENBRERT
FEBRMEEBANEABFR
R HWNBERLATEEYERE
EEKSE MRENBEHNEAED
ZRRG GRS - ZEKBE -

SOBBRENITEERSI8ETT
—ERE BRETXELHBSR
- BETBBRFH BRI
B ERAFMEERBRE/SLT
(B BAR sl P AR A I E AR TS 12 KK o

MR2020F9 /148 © IR B XA
BEBFEREFERARRNITE
EZH B R 1,140,000 17 B Bk
1 o

BRESBNS —F HRHTE
FUBRBREEGE MERNEE
BN RRRB R BE -

SOBEENITEER634ETT
—HRE BRETRELASRR
ZERNTE-MBERTENERR
s ERBRESNITEHRIRN
IR AR A BRTG 12 R
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26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 2 November 2021, 200,000 options were granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to the independent non-
executive director of the Company, Dr. Rex AUYEUNG Pak-
Kuen.

The options are vested over periods of one to three years.
No performance condition exists for the independent non-
executive director who shall remain in office over the vesting
periods under the service condition.

The exercise price of each option is HK$7.73. One vested, the
options remain exercisable until three years from the vested
dates. All unexercised post-IPO share options will lapse by the
end of the exercise periods.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, share-based
payment expenses of approximately HK$1,333,000
(2021:HK$4,255,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in relation to the share
options.

26 URGBAEBRNSR @

MizE - ()
(v)  R2021F11 A28 RIEBHXAH

(vi)

FHENBRZERERLQA

BREBEREFERARRBLIE
HITE B E5{EEE L% H 200,000
DEBERLE -

BRERBIMA —ZE2=F - H1NH
VHERTEFLEREEEGT
ifi 152 7 57 88 B P 7B 2 PR AR 7% Ak 1
B -

SOBBEENITEERTTIIET
—ERE BRETNEHASR
ZHERNTE-MBRTENERR
B ERBIRES N TTEIRER -

HZ2022F12A31BEFE B
BARERENURO AEBOMNR
557 #71,333,0007 7T (20214 :
4,255,000 70) RirE 2 E R EF
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27 DIVIDENDS 27 BB

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE
2022 2021

2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Final dividend of 2021, declared and paid =& K& {F 2021 & K HA 8
of HK nil cents (2021: Final dividend of &A% & 3@ IR =81
2020 of HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share (20214 : 2020 4F K i

(Note (i) A& 2.2.0840) (B (i) - 22,968

Notes: BEE

(i) At a board meeting held on 31 March 2021, the Directors (i) 202143831 ETHESS S
recommended the payment of a final dividend in respect FLEEFEZIRMT2020F KEHAK
of 2020 of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share, which was BEREBR2.03 (1  BIKF 2020
estimated to be approximately HK$22,945,000 at the time F12AMANBE BT BRAE
calculated on the basis of the ordinary shares in issue as at IR HA A% B IR Bl R 4V A& 22,945,000
31 December 2020. The final dividend was declared and BT ZAHKREER2021F5 A
approved at the annual general meeting on 26 May 2021, 26 ATERFBEFARE LT IR EL
totalled HK$22,968,000. o A $£22,968,000% 7T ©

(i) At a board meeting held on 31 March 2023, the Directors (i)  M2023F3A3THEBTHESS
did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the gEE EETESENEE2022F
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). 12 A31 B IEFEIR S EMRRER S

(20214 F)
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28 EILFRB

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 & 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

F T FHET

Deferred income tax assets EIEFTISTRE E 6,937 10,971
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTISTLAE (72,530) (518)

(65,593) 10,453
The net movements on the deferred income tax assets/ BEMEHEE,/(BRFE) 28)FHEN

(liabilities) are as follows: T

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEE

2022 AOYA
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January B1A1H8 10,453 3,127
Addition through acquisition of FRKERERATFE
subsidiaries (72,478) 1,407
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—fEHBAT = (267)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated RirazmEkaER
statement of comprehensive income (FB) FA (3,208) 6,049
Exchange differences [N ZR (360) 137
At 31 December M12A31H (65,593) 10,453

230 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ZERMEBEZERERA A
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:

Deferred income tax assets

RE M EmARMEE

28 EEEH (@)

FRELHEREERABNES CR
At R A — BRCE SRR R A R K )
LA

EEFSHEE

(Accelerated)/
Decelerated
tax Share-based
depreciation payment  Tax losses Leases Provision Total
(&) /& MRAB &
HENE ERNAR HEES e B @5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1 818 (297) 979 2,881 740 (1,176) 3,127
Addition through acquisition & BME—FHELF
of a subsidiary RE - - 1,866 - - 1,866
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBARA - - (1,143) - - (1,143)
(Charged)/credited tothe  MRAZENEER
consolidated statement of ~ ($1%) /5t A
comprehensive income 391 (50) 1317 782 1,209 9,249
Exchange differences EREE - - 125 12 - 137
At 31 December 2021 R2021E128318 94 529 11,046 1,534 33 13,236
At 1 January 2022 R202F181A 9% 529 11,046 1,534 33 13,236
Creditedicharged) to the ~ MFA2EMER
consolidated statementof £t A/ (11%)
comprehensive income 1,401 (529) (5,235) (1,102) (33) (5,498)
Exchange differences ERESR - - (327) (33) = (360)
At 31 December 2022 R202E128318 1,495 - 5,484 399 - 71,378
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 28 EEEH (@)
EEFREHEE

Deferred income tax liabilities
Accelerated
tax
depreciation  Tax losses Leases Provision  Brand name Total
HEBR BE B oReR @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AT AT AT FET AT AT

/E/L

MERERE

232

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

1 January 2021 R2021E1818 - - - - -
Addition through acquisition of & B —HHE

a subsidiary NAIRE - (459) - - (459)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RIELA - 876 - - 876
Charged to the consolidated WA 2 AMER

statement of comprehensive 1%

income (631) (722) (672) (1,175) - (3,200)
At 31 December 2021 R20215 128318 (631) (722) (255) (1,175) - (2,783)
As 1 January 2022 R2022%181A (631) (722) (255) (1,175) - (2,783)
Addition through acquisition of B4t EE — M B

a subsidiary NERE - - - (72,478) (72,478)

Credited to the consolidated ~ RérA 2AMER
statement of comprehensive 5T A
income 138

255 1175 = 2,290

At 31 December 2022 R2022% 128318 (493)

= = (72,478) (72,971)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry forward purposes only to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefits through future taxable profit
is probable. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has not
recognised deferred income tax assets of HK$105,735,000
(2021: HK$53,550,000) in respect of accumulated losses
amounting to HK$499,211,000 (2021: HK$243,367,000)
that can be carried forward against future taxable income.
As at 31 December 2022, in respect of the accumulated
losses, HK$36,506,000, HK$44,257,000, HK$91,429,000,
HK$106,795,000 and HK$217,447,000 will be expired in
2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027 respectively.

FHENBRZERERLQA

BEEMESHEEDEREENTIE
EIEER WA EEBARRER
BHABEREENEANEEAR -
MR2022F12 A31 8 KEBE W E5)
AEENEERRERRBRANR
=+ E518499,211,000# 7T (2021 4 :
243,367,000 ) BERIELEFTIS T
& E 105,735,000 7T (2021 % -
53,550,000 71) ° 7420224 12 A
318 - R51 %518 436,506,0007%8 7T *
44,257,000 7T 91,429,000 7T -
106,795,000 7T & 217,447,000 7
TC % B 2023 4 ~ 2024 4F ~ 2025
&+ 2026 F %2027 Ff@im e
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RE M EmARMEE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, deferred income tax liabilities
of approximately HK$7,770,000 (2021: HK$4,562,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding taxation that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
in Mainland China of approximately HK$111,007,000 (2021:
HK$91,237,000), as the directors considered that the timing
of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and the related temporary difference will not be
reversed and will not be taxable in the foreseeable future.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables, based on invoice date, were aged as
follows:

28

29

EEFBH @)
EEFTBSHREE @)

R2022F12A31B HREERAE
AIAEFIBR A TR EEMARME
HEREREZES TN R RER
MW BRF R - BT R E R
0 B /B 2 B AR BE S & FI4Y 111,007,000
7 7T (20214 : 91,237,000/ 7T) /&
NHOENHERECEHNSHARY
7,770,000 7T (2021 4F : 4,562,000
BIL) o

B BARE

B E B2 500 E 5 e SRR R
m -

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEr
0-30 days 0&30H 29,462 32,377
31-60 days 31&60H 7,361 4,477
61-90 days 61%290H 2,609 233
Over 90 days HBi®o0H 5,874 2,779
45,306 39,866

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in
the following currencies:

5 18 1 30 0R 40 AR L B0 T
HE -

As at 31 December

MR12831H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 €
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 11,352 14,263
RMB AREE 33,954 25,603
45,306 39,866

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their
fair values.

of I

SN PR R EEEL QAR
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30 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30 ESFERARHEMENTIE
As at 31 December
MW12831H8
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FAETT FET
Non-current FEFRED
Consideration payable for acquisition W B — R BT B8 2 R PE A
of a subsidiary KE - 1,475
Others HAth 2,968 2,182
2,968 3,657
Current wE
Accruals for employee benefits JEEtE TEME 43,482 23,644
Accruals for operating expenses FERT & B 23,010 19,505
Accruals for listing expenses st EmER 3,591 3,591
Payables for doctors’ consultation fees — JEftE4A 24 40,828 21,219
Payables for property, plant and ERTYIZE - BRE R&E
equipment B 2,827 3,751
Consideration payable for acquisition of Y BE & A 7 B R (B
subsidiaries 1,027 6,367
Others HAth 2,347 1,566
oo oo imenioieeeeeiicmeccciemecicscoseecocooooo... R nza12 79,643
Total accruals and other payables FEEH B A R H A E T RIE
= 120,080 83,300

FERT &M R E RN IR REE S
BUATERE

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

MR12831H
2022 2021
2022 & 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
HK$ BT 63,701 49,440
RMB AREE 56,379 33,860
120,080 83,300

fll B FURM BRE (E R E AP B

o

The carrying amounts of other payables approximate their

H
fair values. &

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BORROWINGS

Current BIEA
Borrowings CE

RE M EmARMEE

(B

As at 31 December
M®12H31H
2022 2021
20214
HK$°000
FET

2022
HK$’000
F T

34,257 179,406

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate
their fair values and are denominated in HK$ and RMB.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of fixed
rate borrowings and variable rate borrowings were
HK$11,260,000 (2021: HK$4,294,000) and HK$22,997,000
(2021: HK$175,112,000) respectively. The effective interest
rate of borrowings of the Group was 5.49% (2021: 2.44%)
per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of
HK$22,997,000 (2021: HK$179,406,000) were repayable
on demand.

Information on non-current assets pledged as security for
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in Note 34.

RITEFOEREEEEQFERES -
WAB TR AREFHE °

M20224%12 A318 » B FE MR E
RGN EERNEERES A
11,260,000/ 7T (2021 £ : 4,294,000
7 7T) 522,997,000 T (2021 4F :
175,112,000/ L) - XEBERNE
BREFIE A 5.49% (2021 F 1 2.44%) °

M2022F 12 A318 g 171HE
22,997,000 T (2021 4 -
179,406,000/ 0) /B B REE -

BRERAKEETERNIERDE
EMER R E34PIRE -
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

Cash generated from operations

32 REREEH

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to net

cash generated from operations:

(a)

REXBHRERE
BRAT S AT (B 1R) FIE

B &

TN L

EEPMBRESIFENYR

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HILEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20215
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrETS R AT (B518) /FE (11,227) 26,875
Adjustments for: MIATRIEEL FE
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EE#E (5T 16)
(Note 16) 1,428 1,187
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREBINE
equipment (Note 13) (B&E13) 86,274 50,593
Depreciation of investment property BEWMESE (HE15)
(Note 15) 353 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (KT 14)
(Note 14) 135,979 96,801
Losses on disposal of property, plantand &% % « iE R EEHE
equipment, net (Note 7) EiEFE (ME7) 425 616
Gain on early termination of lease RELLHEEN K
(Note 7) (i EE7) - (452)
(Losses)/gains on financial assets at fair &2 FEF ABHH SR
value through profit or loss (Note 7) BEELMN(ER)/
Was (FH5E7) 33,220 (16,711)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—THB QA MNEE - 4,499
Share-based payment expenses PARR D A BT RO (- 3R B 2
(Note 26) (Pfd5E 26) 1,333 4,255
Share of profit of associates DIEEEE A RIS
(Note 39) (Pt 39) (37,799) (10,652)
Finance income (Note 10) B A (M 10) (7,112) (4,475)
Finance cost (Note 10) B (B9EE10) 19,656 12,995
222,530 165,531
Changes in working capital: BEESETE):
Inventories & (8,659) 9,212)
Trade receivables B 5 REWGRIE (26,696) (18,541)
Deposits, prepayments and other Be  BEREREMER
receivables FRIA (25,414) (3,251)
Trade payables B 5 ENRIR 887 19,748
Accruals and other payables AT E R R A 5RIE (8,366) 8,997
Contract liabilities EHEE 30,176 1,975
Balances with associates HEE N RN 5,374 (7,138)
Balances with related parties ER R B B A R (30) 7
Cash generated from operations KEMERe 189,802 158,116

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RE M EmARMEE

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment
comprise:

32
(b)

Be

REER (@)
HEVE BERREFRS

b7
REeREeRERT HED
% BB LERENAEFUARE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2022 AOYA
2022 20214
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FAET FET
Net book amounts (Note 13) BREFE (FFsE13) 1,681 625
Losses on disposal of property, plant HE&E Y% = KR &
and equipment (Note 7) BEEE7) (425) (616)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE L& EAH
plant and equipment T8 1,256 9
(c) Significant non-cash transaction (0 EXFBEERS
During the year ended 31 December 2022, share- REE2022912 8318 1LF
based payment expenses of HK$1,333,000 (2021: £ - #5277 1,333,00078 7T (2021
HK$4,255,000) were recognised (Note 26). F 1 4,255,0007870) AR D AE
HEE ARG X (st 26) o
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from d) RMETHELENEENHIER

financing activities

IEN
Amount  from non-
dueto  controlling Lease

Borrowings  adirector HEE liabilities Total

Efi—4% FER
& EERE  ERE&R  RE8f @3
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 R2021€1581A - - - 244,965 244,965
Cash flows Ben 174,450 6,000 7,485 (88,630) 99,305
Non-cash movement ESEEY 1) 4,956 (6,000) 110 128,355 127,421
At 31 December 2021 R2021€12A318 179,406 = 7,595 284,690 471,691
Cash flows Ben (161,981) = 13,800 (132916)  (281,097)
Non-cash movement FREEY 16,832 - (180) 245,241 261,893
At 31 December 2022 M202%12A318 34,257 = 21215 397,015 452,487
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RAMBERN
33 COMMITMENTS 33 A&iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the RERBETNEREREBE
end of the year but not recognised as liabilities is as MERERMAZIT :
follows:

As at 31 December

R12A31H

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FETT F#&T

Property, plant and equipment L E Yy e 47,659 18,228

Acquisition of subsidiaries WM E A ) - 294,174

47,659 312,402

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEEHRIE
At 31 December 2022, the Group had future 2022128318 AEER
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- TAHHELEEREETHRK
cancellable short-term leases as follows: SERENRBEOT

As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2022 2021

2022 & 2021 €
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Not later than one year TER—F 430 703

238 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ZERMEBEZERERA A
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34 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 3 FAEBHBNEE

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for ERERERNEENREBENT
borrowings are:

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEE

2022 2021

2022 20214

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

Property, plant and equipment (Note (1)) #12 - BiE M & # (FH5EG) 50,764 -

Note: B 5E
() The Group’s buildings in Mainland China with carrying i KN&EEHBRKF A i BR E A
values of HK$50,764,000 (2021: Nil) were pledged to bank 50,764,000 7T (20214 : T) /Y
to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding amount of EFERTROURGE2EAR
HK$11,260,000 (2021: Nil). 11,260,000 7T & 8R 77 f& 5% (2021
F:E) e
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REHBRRNEE
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BEEARS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the WM— A B hEESEEESNS -7
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or NS TEM G REERARER
exercise significant influence over the other party in making EAFEN AEFHRBE@EE -
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered T R HERZERIHRLRAERTE
to be related if they are subject to common control or B 75 M AR /5 B B HsE -

common significant influence.

The Group is controlled by C-MER Group Limited R2022F 128310 AEEBTHER
(incorporated in the BVI), the ultimate holding company, ERARFHEEBR AR (RHEE
which owned 53.7% of the Company’s shares as at 31 BLBEEEMAN) I EEA R
December 2022. The ultimate controlling party of the Group NAIS3T% RN - REB B RKKZER
is Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI. 7RIS E Rt .

Name of related parties Relationship with the Company

BHE BB BEARQBWEAR

C-MER Group Limited Ultimate holding company

HBEEAR LA BAER AT

Maida Medical Software Development Common controlling shareholder (Dr. Dennis LAM)
(Shenzhen) Limited
BEBESEHRE ORI BRAT  HEERBKRE (MIBHE )

Project Vision Charitable Foundation Common directors (Dr. Dennis LAM and Mr. LI Chunshan)

Limited

SEIRZEEESBRAA HEAEE (RIEREERFRLLEE)

Asia-Pacific Academy Of Common controlling shareholder and common director
Ophthalmology Limited (Dr. Dennis LAM)

Asia-Pacific Academy Of HEERBRERERES (KIEHEE)
Ophthalmology Limited

Health Hope International Medical Common directors (Dr. Dennis LAM and Ms. LI), acquired by the
Laboratory Limited Group on 9 February 2021 and became an associate company of

the Group since 23 July 2021
FEROR (BIFR) AR F HAEE (MERBERFTLL) - AREEN 202162 oA -

B20219F7 A 23 B AKNE B Z QA

240 C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ZERMEBEZERERA A
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35 BEMAXRS @
(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the (@) BGAUBRREMILOEDH
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the BEN NEEE@EBEFTBET
following transactions with related parties: FRZ5 -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021

2022 F 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Ophthalmic services provided to a ) — [ B g A AR BR st

related company PR %5
— Project Vision Charitable -~ R IREEESH
Foundation Limited R A a] 149 195
Management fee income from a KE—HEABARNER
related company BILA
— Project Vision Charitable -SSR IREEESH
Foundation Limited R~ 7] 114 114
Management fee income from an KE—[EEERAINER
associate BIA
— Health Hope International Medical — — 7 ZE 48] (BER) AR
Laboratory Limited NG 18,078 5,662
18,192 5,776
Interest expenses to a non-controlling 37 {5 ¥ — % FE#E A i 25 19
interest (Note 10) FE (M3 10)
— Huizhou Chang Jiu Investment —BENTRAKREBR
Limited Company NE] 417 270
Lease payments to a related company ¥ —fEIE: A Bl
g%
- Maida Medical Software —BEREYYRRE
Development (Shenzhen) ORI BR AR
Limited 10,242 10,189
The management fee income was received for the BB AT A & B ) B8 B
administrative services provided by the Group to T7 AR 1T B 1 AR A i W ER o
the related parties. The ophthalmic service income, REIRBEKRA - EEBWRAR
management fee income and lease payments were HE &R IR B 7 5 [ B g B
determined based on the terms mutually agreed T7 HERE W RFETE °

between the Group and the related parties.
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Key management compensation

35 BEEEAXRS (@)
(b) FEBEASHM

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021

2022 & 2021 £

HK$000 HK$°000

F#ET FEr

Fees, wages, salaries, bonus wWe - ITE  #He - B4 14,982 14,446
Retirement benefits costs — defined R KIE A 2K — F 2B 5

contribution scheme HEl 72 72

Allowances and benefits in kind AR EET 776 783

Share-based payments LARR 19 A B R0 14 3K 432 2,016

16,262 17,317

(c) Year-end balances with related parties () EEBBAMERER

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEE

Amount due to a related party
— Project Vision Charitable

2022

2022 F
HK$°000
FET

FE I — % BARE 07 3R
- REIREEESE

2021
20214
HK$000
FET

Foundation Limited (Note i) R~ a (FFED = 33
Amounts due to non-controlling JFEAT FEIE B i 2R 5K IR
interests
— Non-controlling shareholders of —ANERREEE
Shenzhen CKJ Group (Note v) FEfZE IR AR R (B aEv) 152,010 -
— Individual shareholders of — 8 2 R AV B A BR R
subsidiaries (Note ii) (PR EE) 2,694 3,961
154,704 3,961
Loans from non-controlling interests ~ 3F¥2 A% 4 75 & 3%
-BEMNMRAKEABRAA —BMNTRAKE
(Note iii) B R AR (T 7,415 7,595
— Individual shareholders of The —RIRER IR OB
Optometry (OPT) Centre Limited [ENSIEONEPN &S
(Note iv) (P =E V) 13,800 -
21,215 7,595
Amounts due from associates JiE LA BS: 5 N B 5ROB
— Health Hope International Medical — — 7 ZE 48] (BER) AR
Laboratory Limited (Note ii) UNEINC ) 5,731 11,105
— C-MER RainsOptics Limited —REABERAF]
(Note ii) Ci=an) 1,008 1,008
6,739 12,113

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FHENBRZERERLQA




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EmARMEE

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Year-end balances with related parties
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The balances are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand and are denominated in RMB.

(i) The balances are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand and are denominated in HK$
and RMB.

(i) The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 6% (2021:
6%) per annum. It is unsecured, repayable in 3 years
and denominated in RMB.

(iv)  The loans are unsecured, interest-free, repayable in 5
years and denominated in HKD.

(v)  The balance mainly represents consideration payable
of RMB134,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$150,884,000) for acquisition of Shenzhen CKJ
Group which is repayable within 12 months after
completion and denominated in RMB. The remaining
balance is unsecured, interest-free, repayable on
demand and denominated in RMB.

36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

To expand the Group’s healthcare services network in Hong
Kong, the Group entered into the following transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2022:

(i)  On 19 January 2022, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% of the equity interests in
Champion Eye Centre Limited (“Champion Eye”),
a company that operates ophthalmic clinics in Hong
Kong, from independent third parties and the
consideration was paid by allotment and issue of
8,790,000 shares of the Company (their value being
approximately equivalent to HK$50,367,000).

35 BEEEAXRS (@)
() HBEBINEREH @)

P&E :

() FRESHREER 28NA
REREE - WIAARBEHE -

) BRESARER 28R
BRELEE  EUBTRAR
WA -

(iii) ,\mhzlmiﬂfe%(zom
F6%):HE - AEIKE -
RIFREE - jﬁtx/\E*#f%Jr
ﬁo

(iv) BERBEIER . T8 AR
SERBEERAETTAE -

v BHEGZEBEZERKEZRY
EREEEMNEMREAR
# 134,000,000 7T (& A 4
150,884,000 7T) * BT
BREAARNEE TUAR
BESHE - RREAEER - 5
B EREKEER UUAR
BESHE -

36 XEH/
AERAEBRNESNEBRERE

P NEBREZ2022F12 A 31
HIEFEBETUTRS

() HR2022%F 18198 AEE %
RRBLE = REZERR
FLBERAE (ZERM)D K
100% %48 - Z A RIRBBLE
REIZ A RERBA &
77 7K X 8] 8,790,000 % A% 17 (&
E1E 48 & 7 50,367,000 7T)
Ao
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 19 January 2022, the Group completed the
acquisition of 60% of the equity interests in The
Optometry (OPT) Centre Limited (“OPT"), a company
that operates optometry centres in Hong Kong, from
independent third parties, for a total consideration
of HK$34,500,000 (comprising of an acquisition
price of HK$13,800,000 and a shareholder’s loan of
HK$20,700,000 provided to OPT).

On 17 February 2022, the Group completed the
investment of 61.5% equity interests of Shenzhen
C-MER Aikangjian Dental Group Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Shenzhen Aikangjian Group Co., Ltd) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Shenzhen CKJ Group”),
a company that operates dental clinics in the PRC, at
a total consideration of RMB430,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$517,590,000) (comprising of a consideration
of RMB380,500,000 and capital contribution of
RMB50,000,000 in cash). As at 31 December 2022,
the Group’s 55% equity interests in Shenzhen CKJ
Group were pledged as security for the payment of
consideration to the seller. The security was released
subsequently upon fulfilment of payment obligations
by the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
completed the acquisition of several clinics that
provide clinical research, dental and other medical
services in Hong Kong (“Other clinics”), from
different independent third parties, at a total cash
consideration of HK$27,572,000.

36 XA/t

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

FHENBRZERERLQA

R2022F 1198 KEE %
AL ST 5 = 5 BB AR ¢ Bl B8
AR 0B R A A ([1R B B iR
Ra]) K60% B - Z A E R
EBBKERBE L - BRE
434,500,000 7T (B EE
13,800,000 7% 7T & 42 1 F 4% Y Al
IR LAY AR E 020,700,000
HEIT) e

R2022F 28178 K& B %
R FRNFIBERERREORE®
BRAR (BRI TERRES
BMEBBROHAERAR) REWE
AR (GBIRYEERER])
(—ERPBE AL L TR
HIAT)) H61.5%RIERE 4
REA AR 430,500,000 7T (17
B 5 517,590,000% 7T) (B
8 A R # 380,500,000 7t &2 18 &
I & AR #50,000,0007T) ° %
2022912 A31H  REBRZE
I B BE f# 52 B 79 55 % A% 1 1K
W EAREAINHRENE
R-BHFBEREAEBREITN
RETEBERR -

HZE2022F12A31HIEFE
AEETHRURETRBYIE=ZH
U iE 2 M BB IR R IR 2T -
FREEMEZEREOD A
([Hth2frl)  BBREREAR
27,572,000 7T ©
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(iv)  (Continued)
The following table summarises the consideration paid
and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed recognised at the acquisition dates during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

36 XA/t

(iv) (%)
HZE2022F12A31HIEFE
RUEERABRERINEAFRER
T EERMEREAESE
R R -

Shenzhen
Champion OPT  CKJ Group Other clinics
Eye As at As at As at acquired
19 January 19 January 17 February during
2022 2022 2022 the year
REEM ]
FERN BRRPL EBRESHE
R2022%F  R2022F  R202F FRUEN
1A19H 18198 2178 H4PH st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET F/ET FET FET BT
Consideration RE
Cash B - 34,500 517,590 27,572 579,662
Allotment of shares )
(Note) (Ff5E) 50,367 - - - 50,367
50,367 34,500 517,590 27,572 630,029

Note: The fair value of the 8,790,000 shares allotted as part
of the consideration paid for acquisition of Champion
Eye (HK$50,367,000) was based on the published
share price of the Company of approximately HK$5.73
per share

Bt 3% : i % 8,790,000 % B 15 1E & 52
HEEZERMNISRE
(50,367,000/% 7T) B A F1ETY
ERAHOARRRENE
B 5.737%7T
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 36 XA/t

Shenzhen
Champion Eye OPT CK) Group  Other clinics
FERN RADRRML RYEEREE 2t
As at As at As at
Date of completion of the 19 January 19 January 17 February During

acquisition 2022 2022 2022 the year Total
R2028 K025 R2028

TR R 1519H 1519A 2A178 FRbE it

Note HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000

Recognised amounts of identifiable 7 3 BIFT e & & R e
assets acquired and liabilites ~ EENEEALE

assumed
~ Property, plant and equipment  —#1% - R LR (& 2485 278 116,450 662 119,875
- Right-of-use assets -fRELE 7,609 2,609 70,110 2227 82,555
- Investment property -RENE - - 14,298 - 14,298
- Intangible assets -EFEE - - 79 - 79
- Brand name -nEeR ] - - 289911 - 289911
-Cashand cash equivalents ~ —$ £ RBESEN 18,969 1,945 27,087 741 4874
- Trade receivables -B5RYGE 817 762 875 646 3100
- Deposits, prepaymentsand ~~ —& % ENFER
otfer receivables AfbElGE 2,268 21395 58,650 448 82,761
- Inventories -KE 4684 1,360 4831 57 10,932
- Trade payables ~E5ENTE (967) (755) (5,09) - (6,314)
- Acaruals and other payables  — B EARERER
B (10477) (1,625) (@2.m) (1,254) (56,067)
- Borrowings -3 - - (16,832) - (16,832)
- Lease liabilties -HERE (7839) (2,629) (74912) (2,280) (87,660)
- Deferred income tax liabilies  —ERLFEHERE - - (12478) - (12478)
- Curtentincome tax iabiities ~ ~HEIFEH A (2,801) @) (666) (656) (4,164)
Total identifiable net assets MEpIFEELR 14,748 23,99 369,600 591 40838
Non-controlling interests FFRRiER (i) - (9,320 (142,296) (175) (151,791)
Goodwil HE (i 35,619 2051 290,286 27,15 373582
Total consideration BRE 50,367 34,500 517,590 2572 630,029
Acquisition-related costs WERENA iy 149 83 80 37 309
Net cash outflow on acquisition  WEEHIE & IH 5
Cash paid during the year ended  REIE2025 1243181
31 December 2022 EEEMRE - - 108,327 21572 135,899
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 51 : FT5EE REESED
acquired (18,969) (1,945) (27,087) ) (48,742)
(18,99) (1,945) 81,240 26,831 87,157
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company

have

settled the consideration payable for prior year

acquisition of approximately HK$7,170,000 and the
total cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash
acquired, during the year is approximately HK$94,327,000.

Notes:

0}

(i)

(iii)

Brand name

The brand name arising from business combination
represents the reputation and established brand that is
widely recognised by public in the dental industry. None of
the brand name recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests were recognised at their
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of identifiable
net assets.

Goodwill

The goodwill arises from a number of factors including
expected synergies through leveraging the expertise and
reputation of the Group, the local knowledge and experience
of the acquirees and the established workforce including
ophthalmologists, local doctors, dentists and supporting staff.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

36 ¥KE0tm
HE202F12A31BIEEE AR

cifs)

BN E—FERBOERNRED

7,170,000 7T + M4 AU EERHTE A &)
NEMRESEE (BRAERE)NA
94,327,000 7T °

GEE

(M

(i)

(iii)

B

REBEHMEENRELEEE
FRITENARBERMERME -
8 &t AT HE R Y n 2 4 TR BE S BE FORL
PSR

iR E S

FEIE AR RS TH IR L ) 3 18 P BB %
BENDHERDEER -

[k

FERIRZEARNKESL  BEAA
AEBENFEEANBREE  HWRE
TEE BN ERAREE S
N(BERMEL  BHEL  TE
Exi&BT)RHELNHRBE -
EMREEAARMAENME B
AR
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Acquisition-related costs

Acquisition-related costs represent legal and professional
fees incurred to effect the business combinations. Total
acquisition-related costs amounted to HK$329,000 which
is charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Revenue and profit contribution

Champion Eye contributed revenue of approximately
HK$150,723,000 and net profit of approximately
HK$3,429,000 to the Group since acquisition date. OPT
contributed revenue of approximately HK$22,253,000 and
net profit of approximately HK$3,486,000 to the Group
since acquisition date. Shenzhen CKJ Group contributed
revenue of approximately HK$124,962,000 and net loss of
approximately HK$38,626,000 to the Group since acquisition
date. Other clinics contributed revenue of approximately
HK$11,875,000 and net profit of approximately HK$182,000
to the Group since acquisition date. Had the business
combinations taken place at 1 January 2022, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income would show pro-forma
revenue and net loss of approximately HK$1,749,105,000
and HK$55,820,000, respectively.

36 XA/t

faE - ()

(iv)

(v)

FHENBRZERERLQA

U RS AR B R A

Uiz B AR A AR AN 48 TR K 3 75 A B P B
BMEEREREEER - WHEABK
R#A%E329,000/8 L ZBREZE
20212 A3ALFEENEEE
a7 R IR o

Wy 5 & FB B R

ZERBAKNEAREEETH
ENBARERANEEEFRK
%5 #49150,723,000 7% T & F B %
B8 493,429,000 7T © 12 5% 60 B AR
PLOEKRERRREAERNEESE
U 25 #922,253,000 7% 7T & F) B F
%8 473,486,000/8 7T o FYIE FE#
EEAKRERANEREE R K
#49124,962,000% ot & E5 1B % &
#4938,626,000% 0 - M@ FT B
EWERAHEANE®EE B WS
#711,875,000/8 T R F B F 54
182,000/ 7T » f# B 7202241 A 1
HETEKEH AlRe2ENE
D RPN W ke 18 E R
#91,749,105,000 % 7t & 55,820,000
PETT
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RE M EmARMEE

37 SUBSIDIARIES 37 BT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 AR A72022F 12 A31 AN EZH
December 2022: BAT%E:

Company name

RAER

C-MER Eye Care Medical Group

Limited

FERNBRREARLT

C-MER Eye Care Group Limited

FERNREARAT

Hong Kong (International) Eye Care

Group Limited

R (BN RHERREERAA

Hong Kong C-MER International Eye
Care Group (China) Limited
EAABERRNBREE (TE)

BARAF

Shenzhen C-MER Dennis Lam Eye

Hospital*

RYFBMIERMER

Beijing C-MER Dennis Lam Eye

Hospital Co., Ltd.*

ERBBHEARHERER

A7

Shenzhen Xinan C-MER Dennis Lam

Eye Hospital*

R LA IBH B R R *

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

kind of legal entity
MR/ R b5
REEERER

The BVI,
limited liability company

ABRKES ARALAT

The BV,
limited liability company

ABRKES ARALAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% BRALAH

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% BRALAH

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

PEMY HNEBELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

RN HEBELR

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

TERL HEBELE

Particulars of issued
share capital/
registered capital
BRAREK/
EMEREE

2,000 ordinary shares
US$2,000
2,000f% & &%
2,000% 7T

2,000 ordinary shares
US$2,000
2,000f% & %
2,000% 7T

10,000 ordinary shares
HK$10,000
10,0008 & &%
10,0007 7T

500,000 ordinary shares
HK$500,000
500,000 % & %
500,000 7T

RMB104,000,000

AR 104,000,000 7T

RMB60,000,000

A% 60,000,000

RMB20,000,000

AE20,000,0007C

Effective interest
held by the Company
LT
ERER
Directly Indirectly
E& (4

100% -

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities/
place of operation
TUEE,/
EEBE

Investment holding, HK

RERR Bk

Investment holding, HK

RERR Bk

Provision of ophthalmic
service, HK

RERMRE - B8

Provision of ophthalmic
service, HK

RERMRE - B8

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

RAERMRE
RE R,

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

RARMRE
R E R,

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

RARMRE
RE R,
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Company name

NFER

Shenzhen C-MER Optical Trading Co.,

Ltd.*
RAIFERAEZERAG"
Shenzhen Xinan C-MER Optical

Trading CO., Ltd*

MIFRFBAREHERAE

Kunming Eye Hospital*

ERRMER (BRAR)

Huizhou C-MER Dennis Lam Eye

Hospital Co., Ltd*

BMABHIERRNBRER

2"

Shanghai Lucida Medical Scientific
Ltd. *

LERARERSANRER

2"

Shanghai C-MER Vision Eye Hospital
Co., Ltd.*

LERBRERNERERAR
Zhuhai C-MER Dennis Lam Eye
Hospital Co., Ltd.*

KEFBHIEIRNERAR

2"

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
MR/ Y b3
REERRER

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

TERL HEBELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

RN HEBELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

RN HEBELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

TERL HEBELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

TERL HEBELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

TERL HEBELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

TERL HEBELE

37 MBAT @

Particulars of issued

share capital/

registered capital

BRATRE/

EMERFE

RMB1,000,000

AE 1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

AE 1,000,000

RMB51,400,000

AE#51,400,000 7T

RMB23,000,000

AR 23,000,000 7T

RMB55,974,100

AR 55,974,100 T

RMB40,000,000

AR 40,000,000 7T

RMB17,429,234

ANEH17429234 7T

FHENBRZERERLQA

Effective interest

held by the Company
NG g
ERER

Directly Indirectly

B S

- 100%

- 100%

- 80%

- 70%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities/
place of operation
TRER/
EEBE

Sales of eyewear and
eye care products,
Mainland China

HERZRBHER
Em PERY

Sales of eyewear and
eye care products,
Mainland China

HERFRBHER
Em PERY

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

REBRRT -
FEIR

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

REBRT -
FEIR

Sales of medical
products, Mainland
China

HEBEERD
HE R

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

REBRRT -
FEIR

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

REBRT -
FEIR
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Company name

NFER

Guangzhou Yue Xiu Economic
Development Ltd.*

EMEAEERRERLA

D-MER Dental Limited (formerly
known as C-MER Dental Group
Limited)

EETHNBRAR (IRAHTR
EBBRAT)

C-MER Family Medicine Center

(Shatin) Limited
ERREERERL(DB)ERLA

CAD/CAM Restorative Dental Centre
Ltd.

CAD/CAM Restorative Dental Centre
Ld.

Pro-Dental Limited

EEFHEBERAT

EON Healthcare Holdings Limited

BRERERARAT

Guangzhou C-MER Dennis Lam Eye
Hospital Co., Ltd.*

BENABHIERRNBERER

2"

Fuzhou C-MER Dennis Lam Eye
Hospital Co., Ltd.*

BMABHIERRNMZER

2"

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

kind of legal entity
AR/ L5
REEERER

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

TEHNEHBELE

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&R BRLH

Hong Kong,
limited liability company
& ERAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&R BRAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&R BRAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&R BRAT

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

TENEHBELR

Mainland China,
wholly foreign owned
enterprise

TENEHBELE

37 MBAT @

Effective interest
held by the Company
NGl g
ERER

Particulars of issued
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRE/
AMEAE

RMB10,000,000

AR 10,000,000 7T

HK$10,000,000

10,000,0007% 7T

HK$10

107

HK$100

10087

HK$300,000
300,0007% 7T
HK$100

10087

RMB50,000,000

AR 550,000,000 7T

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,000 7T

Directly
B

Indirectly
S

100%

100%

80%

60%

90%

70%

100%

70%

Principal activities/
place of operation
TRER/
EEBE

Property holding,
Mainland China

RENE  HERL

Provision of dental
service, HK

REFHRE B8

Provision of family
medicine service, HK

REFERERTY -
BE

Provision of dental
service, HK

REFHRE B

Provision of dental
service, HK

REFHRE B8

Provision of medical
aesthetic service, HK

REBEXARE -
BE

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

REBRT -
FEIR

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

REBRRT -
FEIR
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

37 MBAT @

Particulars of issued

establishment and share capital/
kind of legal entity registered capital
Company name MR/ B L BRTRE/
REER REEERER EMEARGHE
Jieyang C-MER Dennis Lam Eye Mainland China, RMB35,000,000
Hospital Co., Ltd. (formerly known  wholly foreign owned
as Guangdong Yuedong Eye enterprise
Hospital Co., Ltd.*)
BEABMIEIRNERARLR HE NEBELR AR 35,000,000 7T
(MBERERBHER)
Foshan C-MER Dennis Lam Eye Mainland China, RMB20,000,000
Hospital Co., Ltd.* wholly foreign owned
enterprise
LR BRIERR R B AR TEAEBELR AR 20,000,000 7T
NG
C-MER Family Medicine Center Hong Kong, HK$100,000
(Taiwai) Limited limited liability company
FEFEBETNL(RE)ERRA BB BRAA 100,000 7
The Optometry (OPT) Centre Limited ~ Hong Kong, HK$125,000
limited liability company
RAMBRPLERAT 8 BRAT 125,000 7
Champion Eye Centre Limited Hong Kong, HK$2,400
limited liability company
FERMPOBRAA 8 BRAT 24007
Shenzhen C-MER Aikangjian Dental ~ Mainland China, RMB62,836,647
Group Co., Ltd.* (formerly known ~ wholly foreign owned
as Shenzhen Aikangjian Group Co.,  enterprise
Ltd)
RAFBERRAESEARLR HE HEBELR AR 62,836,647 7T
(MBRYTERRENSEER
RE)*
* English translation is for identification purpose only. The

English names of the group companies incorporated in
Mainland China represent the best efforts by management of
the Group in translating their Chinese names as they do not

have official English names.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FHENBRZERERLQA

Effective interest

held by the Company
NG g
ERER

Directly Indirectly

B S

- 100%

- 100%

- 80%

- 60%

- 100%

- 61.5%

Principal activities/
place of operation
TRER/
EEBE

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

RERMRSE -
FEA

Provision of ophthalmic
service, Mainland
China

REBRRT -
HER

Provision of family
medicine service, HK

REFERERTY -
BE

Sales of eyewear and eye
care products, HK

HERERRNER
Em A

Provision of ophthalmic
service, HK

RERMRE - B8

Provision of dental
service, Mainland
China

REFHRE -
FEAL

EXBEERB - AREFER
WEMKZNERLFLERE
HEW RAXEWAAEEER
BEREARBIRBEEFXZERZ

B
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38 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 38 FEIERERS
Summarised financial information of non- FE IR IR RE R B BB B A B R
controlling interest
Set out below are summarised financial information for UTEH RN BIHERROREERS
Shenzhen C-MER Aikangjian Dental Group Co., Ltd. RAFINBIR M BER  BEREY
which has non-controlling interest that is material to the REEMEBEANIELERER - T
Group. The amounts disclosed are before inter-company REBRNCEAETARIMEENN
eliminations. HFE o
Shenzhen C-MER Aikangjian Dental Group Co., Ltd RIN#EBEEROBEEEERL A
2022
2022 F
HK$'000
FET
Current assets REEE 69,225
Current liabilities nBBEE (78,252)
Net current liabilities REBAEFEE (9,027)
Non-current assets ETEEE 454,742
Non-current liabilities EREBARE (123,923)
Net non-current assets ERBEEFE 330,819
Net assets EEZRE 321,792
Accumulated NCI (38.5%) R T I #E 25 (38.5%) 123,890
Period from
17 February
2022 to
31 December
2022
2022 F
2H178B &
2022 F
12A31H
HK$’000
FRET
Revenue g 124,962
Total comprehensive loss ZHBEEE (39,211)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEIEERERNER (15,096)
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38 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued)

38

Summarised financial information of non-

controlling interest (Continued)

Shenzhen C-MER Aikangjian Dental Group Co., Ltd

RS ()
FERESZNMBETEER B

R 7% 5 E RO EEEE R L A

(Continued) (%)

2022

2022 F

HK$’000

FET
Cash flows used in operating activities KRETFFARERE (13,501)
Cash flows used in investing activities KEESARERE (1,246)
Cash flows used in financing activities BmEESMAREeRE (2,281)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B RREEEBYR L FHE (17,028)

As at 31 December 2022, all the cash and bank balances of
Shenzhen C-MER Aikangjian Dental Group Co., Ltd were
held in Mainland China. These cash and bank balances are
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by Mainland China Government.

39 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

39

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position is as follows:

MN2022%12 8318 FIHIBEE
BROREEBERARMBERS KIRIT
EHRENPEAEE - ZEHE R
SRIT 45 82 PR B AP B 1A 3 AT 8 6 Y
SNEE E il 28 A K 3R 13 o

REE DB MRS
R AMBRRRERNSBMOT -

31 December

31 December

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4F

12H31H 12 A31H

HKS$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

As at 1 January R1HA1H 24,814 1,928
Addition NE - 12,234
Dividend received B U B (20,651) -
Share of profit 3k FI 37,799 10,652
As at 31 December W12 A318 41,962 24,814

Set out below is the information of the associate of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, which, in the
opinion of the directors, is material to the Group. The
associate listed below has share capital consisting solely of
ordinary shares, which are held by the Group.

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

FHENBRZERERLQA

AT #0518 72 2022 4F 122021 4F
NAMEHNBERARMNER M=
REMEEREREFRBEKL - N
THAMBE R AMBE A ERAEE
BHEMNLRRAERK -
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 39 REEQTNERS @)
Nature of investment in associate that is material to the HAEES KRB E R AMNKRED
Group: Mg -
Particulars of
Place of issued share capital/
Company name incorporation registered capital % of ownership interest  Principal activities Carrying amount
ARER AMAILE  BRORA/EMEREE  FAEERAAL 0 TEEE KEfE
2022 2021 2022 2021
ANE N E WNE 02145
Health Hope International Medical ~ Hong Kong 8,100,000 ordinary shares 45.9% 459%  Medical laboratory services 40,897 23434
Laboratory Limited ("Health HK$35,280,000
Hope")
RERN(BR)ERDA(5E) F% 8,100,000/ £ % E2RBRY
35,280,000/
Health Hope is a private company and there is no quoted FEBILART HRMHDIWETISHRE -

market price available for its shares.

Management assessed that the Group has significant ERENGASEUFEREAYE
influence but not control over Health Hope, as such, Health NEN G Bt BERER
Hope is accounted for associate of the Group under equity EERAREREE RRIARK -
method.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s MEEREENHE AT N ERE
interests in the associates. IR ARBIE -

As at 31 December 2022, the balance due from associates R2022F 12 A31H @ EUREE & A 7
amounted to HK$6,739,000 (2021: HK$12,113,000). FXIE 45 £2 6,739,000 7T (2021 4F -

12,113,000 7T)
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39 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 39 REEENTINER @
Summarised financial information for material EABMEQATNBEGEEER
associate

AT &5 RSB (E R RAARN S
EMRIE AR

Set out below is the summarised financial information of
Health Hope, which are accounted for by the Group using

256

the equity method:

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
Health Hope Health Hope
2022 F 20214
12A31H 12 H31H
HE E
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (CREEE%)
Assets and liabilities EERAEE
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 11,308 21,898
Total current assets MENEERE 105,273 52,063
Total non-current liabilities EmBAERE (1,653) (2,226)
Total current liabilities mEBELS (27,952) (14,187)
Net assets BEFE 86,976 57,548
Period from
Year ended 24 July 2021 to
31 December 31 December
2022 AOYA
20214
HZE2022%F 78248%
12A31H 20214
IEFE 12A31HHHE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REER)
Profit for the year/period F/HRFE
Revenue Wz 181,141 54,452
Profit for the year/period and total F/HAFE R AN SR
comprehensive income 83,000 24,390

C-MER EYE CARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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39 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 39 REFERNRINRER ()
Summarised financial information for material EABEARNEIRBEER (8
associate (Continued)

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the FERREREEARNBREXE
financial statements of the associate (and not Group’s share e (RUIFAREEDIHNZSE
of those amounts) adjusted for differences in accounting &%) ERAEEHABERARNE
policies between the Group and the associate. TR ERERE -

Reconciliation of the summarised consolidated financial FT 2 5 BEBE 47 & B 75 & ) B E OB 2
information presented to the carrying amount of its interest NEIMERREENHE

in the associate:

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

Health Hope Health Hope
2022 F 20214
12H31H 12 H31H

HE H
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (CREgE%)

Closing net assets FREEFHE 86,976 57,548
Group’s share in % KEBDEES L 45.9% 45.9%
Group’s share in HK$ AEEDE BT 39,922 26,415
Goodwill and others EENHAM 975 (2,981)
Carrying value AREE 40,897 23,434
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40 AATMEEERBR

COMPANY
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 PAOYA
%2022 F 72021 4F
12H31H 12 A31H
HK$000 HK$°000
FAETT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
nvestments in subsidiaries  KMBRRMER 77— 59515
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UL B B A B IR 1,759,020 1,102,260
Financial asset at fair value through 1ZAF{EF—1BE SRk
profit or loss BE 22,484 55,704
Prepayments and other receivables 8 {< ZX I8 & E i & W 7008 364 178
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELFEY 1,002 9,291
1,782,870 1,167,433
Total assets BEE 1,842,392 1,226,948
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity AAREREEAEWN
holders of the Company R
Share capital f& A< 126,656 115,034
Reserves i a 1,681,133 1,100,450
_Totalequity ~~ #®@= 1.807.789 1215484
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAST B B A B R IE 30,721 7,618
Accruals and other payables FERTE A A b e 5RI8 3,882 3,846
Jotallisbilities .. BAR 34603 11464
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 1,842,392 1,226,948
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(@) Reserve movement of the Company

RE M EmARMEE

40 XPFMNEEEER®

(a) XAFNHEEE

Contributed ~ Share-based

Share Treasury surplus ~ payment Accumulated
premium shares (Note) reserve |osses Total
BABH NRRAER
ke  EERG (W) WEEREE  RiFE st
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
Asat 1 January 2021 R0NE1A18 1,071,699 - 57,617 22,695 (61,130) 1,090,881
Profit for the year ERHIE - - - - 13,259 13,259
Dividend paid ERARE - - - - (22,968) (22,968)
Issuance of shares B1RA 5970 - - - - 5970
Issuance of shares upon exercise of  EXAFEEHBREENE
pre-PO share options (Note 26)  Ex&473% 13 (R 26) - - - _ _ _
Issuance of shares upon exercise of BN AR R EREREENE
post-PO share options (Note 26)  B¥%{77% (7 (FizE 26) 9,053 - - - - 9,053
Share-based payment expenses AR BERHHFER
(Note 26) (R&£26) - - - 4,255 - 4,255
As at 31 December 2021 and RANENANAR
1 January 2022 WRETAH 1,086,722 - 57,617 26,950 (70,839) 1,100,450
Loss for the year ERER - - - = (37,131) (37,131)
Issuance of shares B 645,623 - - - - 645,623
Issuance of shares upon exercise of  ENAFREHBREENE
pre-PO share options (Note 26) ~ B%{77{3 (FizE 26) 785 = = = = 785
Acquisition of shares for employee 5B 8 /35 BIMER
share scheme - (29,927) - - - (29,927)
Share-based payment expenses AR BERHHFER
(Note 26) (K3t 26) - - - 1333 - 1333
As at 31 December 2022 RANENA3NA 1,733,130 (29,927) 57,617 28,283 (107,970) 1,681,133

Note: As part of the reorganisation in preparation for
listing, the Company acquired interests in subsidiaries
comprising the Group and assets and liabilities of
the operating business from Dr. Dennis LAM and
Ms. Li in 2016. As the reorganisation was regarded
as a continuance of the operating business under
the subsidiaries comprising the Group, no fair value
was applied to the acquired subsidiaries interest
and assets and liabilities. The difference between
the consideration paid to the equity holder and the
original investment of the equity holder was recorded
as a contributed surplus.
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Financial Information Summary
U BEREE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the REBRAREHI c ERERRBAERE
Group for the last five financial years, prepared on the basis as set VRFEMNCHZHEE EERBEREZ
out herein, is set out below: AT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2022 PIOA 2020 2019 2018

2022 20215 20205 20195 2018
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TE7 FET TFET TFET FAET

Results E
Revenue WA 1,731,903 1,112,577 699,545 576,209 429,374
Gross profit E7 447,697 358,228 194,077 191,321 149,337
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER) /T (46,225) 16,230 (8,412) 39,122 42,571
Adjusted net (loss)/profit ENEREF(BR)/
for the year 2@ FlEOEQ (46,225) 16,230 (8,412) 39,122 44,592
Gross profit margin (%) EHE (%) 25.9% 32.2% 27.7% 33.2% 34.8%
Net profit margin (%) FFIEE (%) N/A N/A
TEH 1.5% THEE 6.8% 9.9%
Adjusted net profit margin (%)78@ £ FHEHF| K (%) R N/A N/A
TEA 1.5% N 6.8% 10.4%
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BERE 2,901,687 1955877 1,629,211 1,119,649 886,849
Total liabilities BEEHE 903,448 618,634 331,980 258,328 53,144
Total equity RRBE 1,998,239 1,337,243 1,297,231 861,321 833,705
Notes: MI5E -

(1) Adjusted net (loss)/profit is derived by adding listing expenses from (1) #EHARZF(EBE) /FIBH EmRXEER
the net (loss)/profit for the year. F (1) MBBMETESTE -

(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure 2 WHELREHRUNMBEEERHEEIS

that is not required by, or presented in accordance with, HKFRSs BERE AU BHRSERLERTE -
and is therefore referred to as a “non-GAAP” financial measure. It INEIRBEBM SRS EAZS) - it -
is not a measurement of the Group’s financial performance under ZEEMBILARETRAINTBKE S
HKFRSs and should not be considered as an alternative to profit EE - MTIFRREBVBRELAGS
from operations or any other performance measures derived in REBNMBRROTE - LB HERT
accordance with HKFRSs or as an alternative to cash flows from ERIEIRREBHBREEREENLE
operating activities or as a measure of the Group’s liquidity. M@ S E M EMRBENERIERRE
EEPHRERNENEREFRHELAEE
BB S H BT -
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